Belden GOT

A good company.
A greatl opportunity.



A Good Company. A Great Opportunity.

Today, Belden CDT is a good company. Our brands are
highly respected; many are well known in all corners of the
globe. Given the unusual depth and breadth of our product
portfolio, we enjoy a unique and important relationship
with our channel partners. We have a track record of
delivering consistently high quality product when our
customers need it. Our balance sheet is strong, and we have
the cash flow to fund future growth.

Yes, today we are a good company. And we can be
a much better one. Our portfolio can be better managed,
with a focus on our more profitable businesses and faster
growing geographic regions. We can better leverage our
core strengths to build profitable growth. We can improve
our manufacturing footprint, deploy more lean manufac-
turing techniques and pursue acquisitions that help us
achieve our strategic objectives.

Belden CDT is a good company with the opportunity
— and the means - to become a great company. That is the
direction we will head in 2006.
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Dear fellow shareholders:

| joined Belden CDT Inc. as president and
chief executive officer on October 31, 2005.
| am pleased to have the opportunity to
address you early in my tenure to share the
excitement, confidence, and optimism | feel
about our company.

Let’s begin by reviewing the company’s 2005
achievements. As a newcomer, | claim no
credit for these achievements. When using the
word “we,” therefore, | am referring to all our
associates who made these results a reality.

2005 was a good year for Belden on several
fronts:

m Our profitability grew. The merger and
resulting cost-reduction initiatives, sales
growth and improved factory utilization
contributed to improvement in our operating
margin in 2005 compared with 2004.

Meet John Stroup

John Stroup joined us from Danaher Corp., where he had been serv-
ing as Group Executive of the industrial manufacturer's Motion Group.
He amassed marketing, sales and general management experience
earlier in his career in positions at Scientific Technologies Inc.,
Rockwell Automation’s Industrial Motion Control business and Parker
Hannifin. He holds a bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering
from Northwestern University and an M.B.A. from the University of
California at Berkeley Haas School of Business.

m We realized promised cost reductions
and merger cost synergies. In 2005, we
completed the actions needed to generate the
full $35 million in savings envisioned following
Belden and CDT’s 2004 merger.

m Revenue grew to $1.35 billion, reflecting
the effect of the 2004 merger and moderate
volume and price increases. By late in the year,
copper, one of our principal raw materials,
had risen to more than $2.00 a pound. We
moved our pricing upward throughout the year
to recover higher costs for copper and other
materials. While we were successful in
recouping our higher material costs in North
America Electronics, we had a more difficult
time in Networking. In Europe our ability to
increase prices was also limited. That geo-
graphical market is characterized by excess
capacity and high fixed costs, both of which
contribute to a highly competitive pricing
environment and put ongoing pressure on
our margins.
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“The Belden brand may well be the strongest cable brand
in the world. It is associated with technical excellence,
manufacturing quality, and strong customer service.”

m We increased earnings per share through OUI' unique strengths
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a share repurchase program that reduced the
number of shares outstanding by 11 percent.
The company’s strong balance sheet and
proven ability to generate cash throughout the
business cycle made it attractive for us to use
a portion of our cash for share repurchase,
while still leaving us plenty of liquidity and
financial flexibility.

m We continued to refine our focus toward

higher value products and markets. We
chose to exit the copper telecom cable mar-
ket in the United Kingdom and, as a result,
sold our operation in Manchester, England in
March 2006. This move allows us to focus
more of our resources on markets with higher
potential for growth and profitability. We also
commenced a restructuring plan to reduce
manufacturing space and overhead in our
European operations. Raising the profitability
of our European operations nearer to that of
our North American operations is one of the
greatest opportunities we have to create
shareholder value.

We successfully launched our next-
generation networking solution. Released
in January 2005, our Belden IBDN System
10GX provides 10-gigabit bandwidth over
copper conductors, a capacity previously
available only with fiber-optic technology. The
first customer for our new flagship networking
product was the United States National
Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)
with a project involving 4,000 drops. Our
10-gigabit solution, along with the integrated
networking system product line we relaunched
late in 2004 under the Belden brand, is help-
ing to shift our product mix toward more
systems sales and higher capacity cable.
These two trends positively impact revenue
and operating margins.

Beyond these achievements, the company
has certain strengths that make it an excellent
vehicle for the creation of value — strengths
that attracted me to this opportunity and
strengths that our long-time shareholders have
realized for some time:

m The company has strong brands. These are
not household names, but industrial brands
that professionals recognize, trust, and prefer.
The Belden brand may well be the strongest
cable brand in the world. It is associated with
technical excellence, manufacturing quality,
and strong customer service. Our other
brands — Alpha, Mohawk, Thermax, West
Penn, and others — are also highly respected
in their specific markets.

m We have valuable channel relationships. No
other manufacturer brings the breadth and
depth of products to the distribution channel
that we bring. Our product line and reputation
for quality are important to our channel part-
ners and provide us with a unique position in
the industry.

m The company has a tradition of excellent
customer service. We have a consistent
track record of supplying our customers with
high quality products that are delivered in a
timely manner.



“l am leading a team drawn from across the organization

through a strategic planning process. I am excited about
sharing the results of this process with associates and

shareholders later this year.”

Looking ahead

Belden CDT is indeed a company with many
strengths. Our opportunity is to capitalize on
these strengths and grow the company prof-
itably. To do this, we will need to think more
holistically than we have in the past. By this |
mean we need to make decisions that take
into account the capabilities and the needs of
the entire organization and not just local con-
cerns. We need to be able to deploy our best
ideas as broadly as possible, to centralize
resources that can easily serve multiple
business units, and to make wise use of our
total capacity.

| am leading a team drawn from across the
organization through a strategic planning
process. | am excited about sharing the
results of this process with associates and
shareholders later this year. Meanwhile, a
number of priorities are already clear.

Our first priority will be better management of
our portfolio. Early this year we took action to
recombine the Belden electronics and net-
working groups in a single organization. We
did this to better realize our potential through
more intelligent and integrated commercial
strategies. Throughout the company, we have
some businesses that perform very well, and
others that are much less profitable. One result
of our strategic plan will be to determine which
underperforming products we can improve
and which we might need to exit.

As we review our portfolio, we will also rebal-
ance our geographic focus to include more
opportunities in faster-growing regions, including
China, India and Eastern Europe. | was
pleased to learn that the Belden brand is very
well known in Asia. We have been developing
demand for our products in Asia for several
years, serving customers with products imported
from Europe and North America. We are now
facing the need to create local capacity.

Second, we will leverage our core strengths in
pursuit of profitable growth. That means find-
ing new customers for the products we have
and developing additional products of value
for customers who already know and trust our
brands. Across the company, we are reviewing
our approaches to branding and product
positioning to ensure that our commercial
strategies fully leverage our strengths.

Third, we are reviewing our capacity worldwide,
with an eye toward reducing costs, simplifying
our logistics, and improving flexibility.

Fourth, we will be moving to deploy lean
manufacturing techniques. While the company
has centers of manufacturing excellence, we
are not consistent in our processes or our
results. Lean manufacturing will provide us
the opportunity not only to reduce manufactur-
ing cost, but also to reduce inventory as
we shift to a philosophy of producing to
customer demand.

Belden CDT
2005 Annual Report
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Finally, we will pursue acquisitions that help us
meet our strategic objectives. Because acqui-
sitions are always riskier than organic growth,
we are establishing a disciplined process for
business development — prioritizing internal
and external opportunities, making sure that
we evaluate multiple opportunities, and ensur-
ing that investments meet both strategic and
financial objectives. It is not our intention
simply to “roll up” the wire and cable industry.
Any acquisition will need to bring us something
we need — new technology, new customers, a
geographic presence — that adds to our value
and is a good strategic fit.

Before | close, | want to thank two people
whose efforts were instrumental in bringing our
company where it is today. First, thanks to
C. Baker Cunningham, who retired as President,
Chief Executive Officer, and board member in
2005. Baker was CEO and Chairman of
Belden Inc. from 1993, when Belden spun off
from Cooper Industries, until its 2004 merger
with CDT. He was then President and CEO of
Belden CDT Inc. until October 2005. Baker
successfully led the integration of the legacy
Belden and CDT organizations.

“We will rebalance our geographic focus to include more
opportunities in faster-growing regions, including China,
India and Eastern Europe.”

Thanks also to Fred Kuznik, who retired from
the Board this year. Fred stepped into the CEO
role at CDT in 2001 after a successful career
at Motorola. Fred’s initiative was crucial to the

successful merger of Belden and CDT.

| am excited about the future of our company
and our industry. | have confidence in our plan
and in the people who will be executing it and
look forward to reporting our progress to you a

year from now.

Thank you for your interest in Belden CDT.

O%g%@?

John S. Stroup
President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART I

Item 1. Business
General

Belden CDT designs, manufactures and markets high-speed electronic cables, connectivity products and
related items for the specialty electronics and data networking markets. We focus on segments of the worldwide
cable and connectivity market that require highly differentiated, high-performance products. We add value through
design, engineering, excellence in manufacturing, product quality, and customer service.

On July 15, 2004, Belden Inc. (Belden) and Cable Design Technologies Corporation (CDT) completed a
merger transaction pursuant to which Belden became a wholly owned subsidiary of CDT and CDT (as the surviving
parent) changed its name to Belden CDT Inc. Due in part to Belden’s shareholders as a group having received a
larger portion of the voting rights in the combined entity, Belden was considered the acquirer for accounting
purposes. As a result, the transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. For
financial reporting purposes, the Belden historical financial statements and fiscal year are used for reporting
following the merger. For federal securities law purposes, CDT (now Belden CDT) remains the reporting entity
following the merger. For more information about the merger, see Note 3, Belden CDT Merger, to Belden CDT’s
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Belden CDT Inc. is a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1988. Its affiliated company, Intercole Inc., began a
series of more than 20 acquisitions in the wire and cable industry in 1985. In 1993, CDT completed an initial public
offering of its stock.

Belden, started in Chicago in 1902 as Belden Manufacturing Company, began by manufacturing silk insulated
wire and insulated magnet wire. In 1980, the business was acquired by Crouse-Hinds Company and, in 1981, by
Cooper Industries, Inc. (Cooper) as part of Cooper’s acquisition of Crouse-Hinds Company. In 1993, the business
was transferred to Belden Wire & Cable Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of Belden Inc., in connection with the
October 6, 1993 initial public offering by Cooper of the common stock of Belden Inc.

With the merger of Belden and CDT, the Company began reporting two business segments: Electronics and
Networking. Financial information about Belden CDT’s two business segments appears in Note 22, Business
Segments and Geographic Information, to Belden CDT’s Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As used herein, unless a business segment is identified or the context otherwise requires, “Belden CDT”, the
“Company” and “we” refer to Belden CDT Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole.

Products

Belden CDT produces and sells cable and wire products, connectivity products, and other products. In each of
the last three years, cable and wire products accounted for more than 90 percent of the Company’s revenues.

Our various cable and wire configurations are produced and sold by both the Electronics business segment and
the Networking business segment. These configurations include:

* Multiconductor cables, consisting of two or more insulated conductors that are twisted into pairs or quads
and cabled together, or run in a parallel configuration as a flat cable.

* Coaxial cables, consisting of a central inner conductor surrounded by a concentric outer conductor or shield.
A dielectric material separates the two conductors and a jacket covers the overall construction. The inner
conductor is usually copper or copper-covered steel, while the outer conductor is usually a metallic tape or a
wire braid.

* Fiber optic cables, which transmit light signals through glass or plastic fibers. Fiber optic cables may be
either multimode or single mode. We purchase coated fibers and manufacture multimode fiber optic cables
for use in data networking and other applications.
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* Lead, hook-up and other wire products. Lead and hook-up wires consist of single insulated conductor wire
that is used for electrical leads. Insulation may be extruded or laminated over bare or tinned copper
conductors.

» Composite cable configurations. A composite cable may be any combination of multiconductor, coaxial,
and fiber optic cables jacketed together or otherwise joined together to serve a complex application and
provide ease of installation.

Our connectivity products are produced and sold primarily by the Networking business segment for data
networking applications. Connectivity products include connectors, patch panels, and interconnect hardware and
other components. They are typically sold as part of an end-to-end structured cabling solution.

Our other products include cabinets, enclosures, racks, raceways and ties for organizing and managing cable;
tubing and sleeving products to protect and organize wire and cable; passive components such as Power Over
Ethernet modules; and services.

Markets and Products, Electronics Segment

Our Electronics business segment designs, manufactures and markets metallic and fiber optic cable and wire,
with applications in a wide variety of markets. We group these into the following markets: Industrial; Video, Sound
and Security; and Transportation and Defense (as described in more detail below). The Electronics business
segment contributed approximately 59%, 63%, and 69% of Belden CDT’s consolidated revenues in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Industrial.  We define the industrial market broadly to include applications ranging from advanced industrial
networking and robotics to traditional instrumentation and control systems. Our products are used in discrete
manufacturing and process operations involving the connection of computers, programmable controllers, robots,
operator interfaces, motor drives, sensors, printers and other devices. Many industrial environments, such as
petrochemical and other harsh-environment operations, require cables with exterior armor or jacketing that can
endure physical abuse and exposure to chemicals, extreme temperatures and outside elements. Other applications
require conductors, insulating, and jacketing materials that can withstand repeated flexing. We offer multicon-
ductor, coaxial, fiber optic and composite cables for all these applications. We provide insulated single-conductor
lead and hook-up wire, including heat-resistant PTFE lead wire for electrical leads in motors, internal wiring, and
test equipment. We also supply heat-shrinkable tubing and wire management products to protect and organize wire
and cable assemblies. We sell our industrial products primarily through wire specialist distributors, industrial
distributors and re-distributors, and directly to original equipment manufacturers (OEMs).

Video, Sound and Security. =~ We manufacture a variety of multiconductor and coaxial products which
distribute audio and video signals for use in broadcast television (including digital television and high definition
television), broadcast radio, pre- and post-production facilities, recording studios and public facilities such as
casinos, arenas and stadiums. Our audio/video cables are also used in connection with microphones, musical
instruments, audio mixing consoles, effects equipment, speakers, paging systems and consumer audio products. We
offer a complete line of composite cables for the emerging market in home networking. Our primary market
channels for these broadcast, music and entertainment products are broadcast specialty distributors and audio
systems installers. We also sell directly to music OEMs and the major networks including NBC, CBS, ABC, Fox,
BBC, RTL and satellite systems such as B-Sky-B. We also provide specialized cables for video surveillance
systems, airport baggage screening, building access control, motion detection, public address systems, and
advanced fire alarm systems. These products are sold primarily through distributors and also directly to specialty
system integrators.

Transportation and Defense. We provide specialized cables for use in commercial and military aircraft,
including cables for fly-by-wire systems, fuel systems, and in-flight entertainment systems. Some of these products
withstand extreme temperatures (up to 2000° F), are highly flexible, or are highly resistant to abrasion. We work
with OEMs to have our products specified on aircraft systems and sell either directly to the OEMs or to specialized
distributors or subassemblers. For the automotive market, we supply specialized cables for halogen headlights, for
the oxygen sensors in catalytic converters, for air-bag actuators, and for satellite radio receivers. We market a
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complete line of marine cables meeting the specialized performance and safety standards of that market. Our cables
are used in highway traffic signal control systems and mass-transit systems. These automotive, marine and other
transportation cables are sold primarily through distributors.

Markets and Products, Networking Segment

Our Networking segment provides multiconductor, coaxial, and fiber optic cable products, connectors, and
cable management products in two markets: networking and telecommunications. The Networking business
segment contributed approximately 41%, 37%, and 31% of Belden CDT’s consolidated revenues in 2005, 2004 and
2003 respectively.

Networking.  We design, manufacture and market enabling technologies for the physical communications
infrastructure within and between buildings. End-use applications are hospitals, financial institutions, government,
service providers, transportation, data centers, manufacturing, industrial and enterprise customers. In the net-
working market, we supply solutions for the electronic and optical transmission of data, voice, and video over local
and wide area networks. Products for this market include high-performance cables (including 10-gigabit Ethernet
technologies over copper), connectors, wiring racks, panels, interconnecting hardware, intelligent patching devices,
Power over Ethernet panels, and cable management solutions for complete end-to-end network structured wiring
systems.

We offer two major types of structured cabling solutions: our complete end-to-end integrated solution for
customers looking for superior performance, and cable alone for users preferring an open architecture where
integrators specify our copper and fiber cables for use with the connectivity components of other suppliers. Our
systems are installed through a network of highly trained system integrators and are supplied locally by authorized
distributors.

Communications. ~ Within the communications market, we supply multiconductor and coaxial cable products
that transmit voice, video, and data signals through the public telephone network. We provide a full range of
telecommunications wire and cable products in Europe, primarily selling directly to service providers including
British Telecom, Deutsche Telecom and Matav (in Hungary) and, to a lesser extent, through distributors. We supply
outside plant cable (also called exchange cable), service distribution wire and central office cable. We also provide
cable cutting and inventory management services to certain telecom customers. In 2005 we announced plans to exit
the copper telecom cable business in the United Kingdom; see Note 6, European Operations, to Belden CDT’s
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We exited the North American
telecommunications market in 2004.

Also within the communications market, we manufacture flexible, copper-clad coaxial cable for high-speed
transmission of voice, data and video (broadband), used for the “drop” section of cable television (CATV) systems
and satellite direct broadcast systems (DBS). We sell CATV cable directly to multiple systems operators, who
operate CATV systems throughout the world, and through CATV and electronic distributors. In Europe, we
manufacture copper-based CATV trunk distribution cables that meet local specifications and are widely used
throughout the region. We also sell coaxial cables used in connection with wireless applications, such as cellular,
PCS, PCN and GPS. These broadband, CATV and wireless communication cables are sold primarily through
distributors.

Customers

We sell to distributors and directly to OEMs and installers of equipment and systems. Sales to the distributor,
Anixter International Inc., represented approximately 16% of our sales in 2005.

We have supply agreements with distributors and with OEM customers in the United States, Canada, Europe,
and elsewhere. In general, our customers are not contractually obligated to buy our products exclusively, in
minimum amounts or for a significant period of time. The loss of one or more large customers or distributors could,
at least in the short term, result in lower total sales and profits. However, we believe that our relationships with our
customers are satisfactory and that the customers choose Belden CDT products due to, among other reasons, the
breadth of our product offering and the quality and performance characteristics of our products.
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There are potential risks in our relationships with distributors. For example, adjustments to inventory levels
maintained by distributors (which adjustments may be accelerated through consolidation among distributors) may
adversely affect sales on a short-term basis. Further, in both segments of our business certain distributors are
allowed to return certain inventory, in an amount not to exceed three percent of the prior year’s purchases, in
exchange for an order of equal or greater value. We have recorded a liability for the estimated impact of this return
policy.

In Europe, we sell directly to telecommunications service providers, and in some cases we have long-term
supply agreements, generally three years in duration. Due to the size of these contracts, the award or loss of a
contract may have a material impact on the operating performance of the Company. In addition, the order pattern for
these customers can vary due to their operational priorities, weather, financial condition, budget constraints,
maintenance policies and other factors. During 2005, we announced plans to exit the copper telecom cable business
in the United Kingdom no later than the end of our contract with British Telecom which expires in October 2006.
Please see Note 6, European Operations, to Belden CDT’s Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

International Operations

Both business segments of the Company have manufacturing facilities in Canada and Europe, and both
segments have sales in international markets. The Company has sales offices in Europe, Asia, and Latin America.
During 2005, approximately 49% of Belden CDT'’s sales were for locations outside the United States. Our primary
channels to international markets include both distributors and direct sales to end users and OEMs.

Changes in the relative value of currencies take place from time to time and their effects on the Company’s
results of operations may be favorable or unfavorable. On rare occasions, we engage in foreign currency hedging
transactions to mitigate these effects. Much of the material we sell in Europe is made in Europe, reducing our
currency risk for that region. For more information about Belden CDT’s foreign currency exposure management,
see Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The past few years have been characterized by consolidation of manufacturing operations in our industry
worldwide in response to both changes in demand and improvements in productivity. A risk associated with our
European manufacturing operations is the relative expense and length of time required to reduce manufacturing
employment in European countries (if needed).

The Company’s foreign operations are subject to economic and political risks inherent in maintaining
operations abroad such as economic and political destabilization, international conflicts, restrictive actions by
foreign governments, and adverse foreign tax laws.

Financial information for Belden CDT by geographic area is shown in Note 22, Business Segments and
Geographic Information, to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Competition

Belden CDT faces substantial competition in its major markets. The number and size of our competitors varies
depending on the product line and business segment.

For both our business segments, the market can be generally categorized as highly competitive with many
players. Some multinational competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and marketing
resources than we have. Additionally, certain international competitors operate in lower cost regions of the world,
which could result in a cost advantage. There are also many regional competitors that have more limited product
offerings.

The principal competitive factors in all our product markets are product features, availability, price, customer
support and distribution coverage. The relative importance of each of these factors varies depending on the
customer. Some products are manufactured to meet published industry specifications and cannot be differentiated
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on the basis of product characteristics. We believe, however, that Belden CDT stands out in many of its markets on
the basis of its customer service, delivery, product quality, and breadth of product line.

Although we believe that we have certain technological and other advantages over our competitors, realizing
and maintaining such advantages will require continued investment in engineering, research and development,
marketing and customer service and support. There can be no assurance that we will continue to make such
investments or that we will be successful in maintaining such advantages.

Research and Development

Belden CDT engages in a continuing research and development program, including new and existing product
development, testing and analysis, process and equipment development and testing, and compound materials
development and testing. For information about the amount spent on research and development, see Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Patents and Trademarks

Belden CDT has a policy of seeking patents when appropriate on inventions concerning new products, product
improvements and advances in equipment and processes as part of our ongoing research, development, and
manufacturing activities. We own many patents and registered trademarks worldwide, with numerous others for
which applications are pending. Although in the aggregate our patents and trademarks are of considerable
importance to the manufacturing and marketing of many of our products, we do not consider any single patent
or trademark or group of patents or trademarks to be material to the business as a whole, except for the Belden®
trademark. Belden CDT’s patents and trademarks are used by both the Electronics and the Networking business
segments.

Raw Materials

The principal raw material used in many of our products, for both business segments, is copper. Other materials
that we purchase in large quantities include Teflon® FEP and polyvinyl chloride (PVC). We also use polyethylene,
color chips, insulating materials such as plastic and rubber, shielding tape, plywood and plastic reels, corrugated
cartons, aluminum, steel and optical fiber. With respect to all major raw materials used by the Company, we
generally have either alternative sources of supply or access to alternative materials. Supplies of these materials are
generally adequate and are expected to remain so for the foreseeable future.

In the past two years, the price of copper has risen rapidly. Materials such as PVC and other plastics derived
from petrochemical feedstocks have also risen in price. Generally, we have recovered much of the higher cost of raw
materials through higher pricing of our finished products. The majority of our products are sold through
distribution, and we manage the pricing of these products through published price lists which we update from
time to time, with new prices taking effect a few weeks after they are announced. Some OEM and telecom customer
contracts have provisions for passing through raw material cost increases, generally with a lag of a few weeks to
three months. We have been generally more successful (1) in North America than in Europe and (2) with our
electronic products rather than our networking products in increasing our prices to recapture the rising cost of
materials.

Belden CDT sources a minor percentage of its finished products from a network of manufacturers under
private label agreements.

For information on price risk related to copper and certain petroleum-based commodities, see Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Backlog

Our business is characterized generally by short-term order and shipment schedules, and many orders are
shipped from inventory. Accordingly, we do not consider backlog at any given date to be indicative of future sales.
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Our backlog consists of product orders for which we have received a customer purchase order or purchase
commitment and which are scheduled for shipment within six months. Orders are subject to cancellation or
rescheduling by the customer, generally with a cancellation charge. At December 31, 2005, the Company’s backlog
of orders believed to be firm was $103.6 million (most of which was attributable to the Electronics business
segment) compared with $74.9 million at December 31, 2004. The Company believes that all such backlog will be
filled in 2006.

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to numerous federal, state, provincial, local and foreign laws and regulations relating
to the storage, handling, emission and discharge of materials into the environment, including the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Clean Water Act, the Clean Air Act,
the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
We believe that our existing environmental control procedures are adequate and we have no current plans for
substantial capital expenditures in this area.

A former Belden CDT facility in Shrewsbury, Massachusetts was sold to a third party in 1992, subject to an
indemnification in favor of the buyer for certain preexisting environmental liabilities, principally caused by a
former owner. Contaminated soil has been removed, and groundwater remediation has been suspended. Site closure
documents have been submitted to the state environmental agency for review and approval. The Company will close
the groundwater system upon approval of the closure application by the state agency.

The Company’s facility in Venlo, The Netherlands was acquired in 1995 from Philips Electronics N.V. Soil and
groundwater contamination was identified on the site as a result of material handling and past storage practices.
Various soil and groundwater assessments are being performed, and the government authorities have advised that
some form of remediation will be necessary. We have recorded a liability for the estimated costs. In addition, we
may need to make capital expenditures to install groundwater treatment equipment. We do not expect the capital
expenditures to materially affect our financial condition, operating results or cash flow.

We are named as a defendant in the City of Lodi, California’s federal lawsuit along with over 100 other
defendants. The complaint, brought under federal, state and local statutory provisions, alleges that property
previously owned by our predecessor contributed to groundwater pollution in Lodi. There has been no validation or
investigation to demonstrate or deny the City’s claim that the property allegedly owned by our predecessor is a
potential pollution site. A trial date is tentatively scheduled for January 2007. We have recorded a liability for the
estimated costs related to resolution of this matter.

The Company has been identified as a potentially responsible party (PRP) with respect to two sites designated
for cleanup under CERCLA or similar state laws, which impose liability for cleanup of certain waste sites and for
related natural resource damages without regard to fault or the legality of waste generation or disposal. Persons
liable for such costs and damages generally include the site owner or operator and persons that disposed or arranged
for the disposal of hazardous substances found at those sites. Although CERCLA imposes joint and several liability
on all PRPs, in application, the PRPs typically allocate the investigation and cleanup costs based upon the volume of
waste contributed by each PRP. Settlements can often be achieved through negotiations with the appropriate
environmental agency or the other PRPs. PRPs that contributed less than 1% of the waste are often given the
opportunity to settle as “de minimis” parties, resolving their liability for a particular site. The number of sites with
respect to which the Company has been identified as a PRP has decreased in part as a result of “de minimis”
settlements.

Belden CDT does not own or operate either waste site with respect to which it has been identified as a PRP. In
each case, Belden CDT is identified as a party that disposed of waste at the site. With respect to one of the sites,
Belden CDT'’s share of the waste volume is estimated to be less than 1%. At the other site, Belden CDT contributed
less than 10% of the waste. Although no estimates of cleanup costs have yet been completed for these sites, we
believe, based on our preliminary review and other factors, including Belden CDT’s estimated share of the waste
volume at the sites, that the costs relating to these sites will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition or cash flow. We have recorded a liability to the extent such costs are known and
estimable for such sites.



We do not currently anticipate any material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition,
cash flow or competitive position as a result of compliance with federal, state, provincial, local or foreign
environmental laws or regulations, or cleanup costs at the facilities and sites discussed above. However, some risk of
environmental liability and other costs is inherent in the nature of our business, and there can be no assurance that
material environmental costs will not arise. Moreover, it is possible that future developments, such as increasingly
strict requirements of environmental laws and enforcement policies thereunder, could lead to material costs of
environmental compliance and cleanup by the Company.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately 5,200 employees worldwide. We also utilized about
900 workers under contract manufacturing arrangements in Mexico. Approximately 2,100 employees are covered
by collective bargaining agreements at various locations around the world. The Company believes that its
relationship with its employees is good.

Importance of New Products and Product Improvements;
Impact of Technological Change; Impact of Acquisitions

Many of the markets that we serve are characterized by advances in information processing and commu-
nications capabilities, including advances driven by the expansion of digital technology, which require increased
transmission speeds and greater bandwidth. These trends require ongoing improvements in the capabilities of cable
and connectivity products, and present recurring opportunities for us and others to introduce more sophisticated
products. We believe that our future success will depend in part upon our ability to enhance existing products and to
develop and manufacture new products that meet or anticipate such changes.

Fiber optic technology presents a potential substitute for certain of the copper-based products that comprise the
majority of Belden CDT’s sales. Fiber optic cables have significant advantages over copper-based cables in
applications where large amounts of information must travel great distances. But due to the high relative cost
required to interface electronic and light signals and the high cost of fiber termination and connection, we believe
that copper cable is still the solution with the best combination of performance and cost for all but the trunk and riser
portions of data networks and similar applications. We produce and market multimode fiber optic cables and many
customers specify these products in combination with copper cables. Advances in copper cable technologies and
data transmission equipment have increased the relative performance of copper solutions. The final stage of most
networks remains almost exclusively copper-based and we expect that it will continue to be copper for the
foreseeable future. However, if there were a significant and rapid decrease in the cost of fiber optic systems relative
to the cost of copper-based systems, without a further significant increase in copper capabilities, such systems could
become superior on a price/performance basis to copper systems. We do not control our own source of optical fiber
production and, although we cable optical fiber, we could be at a cost disadvantage to competitors who both produce
and cable optical fiber.

To date, the development of wireless devices has required the development of new wired platforms and
infrastructure. In the future, wireless communications technology may represent a threat to both copper and fiber
optic-based systems. We believe that insufficient signal security, susceptibility to interference and jamming, and
relatively slow transmission speeds of current systems restrict the use of wireless technology in many data
communications markets. However, there are no assurances that future advances in wireless technology will not
have an adverse effect on our business.

Continued strategic acquisitions are an announced part of Belden CDT’s future strategy. However, there can be
no assurance that future acquisitions will occur or that those that do occur will be successful.

Available Information

Belden CDT Inc. maintains an Internet website at www.beldencdt.com where our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports
are available without charge, as soon as reasonably practicable following the time they are filed with or furnished to
the SEC.




We will provide upon written request and without charge a printed copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K.
To obtain such a copy, please write to the Corporate Secretary, Belden CDT Inc., 7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 800,
St. Louis, MO 63105.

New York Stock Exchange Matters

Pursuant to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) listing standards, the Company submitted a Section 12(a)
CEO Certification to the NYSE in 2005. Further, the Company is herewith filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (as exhibits hereto), the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certifications required
under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain current information with respect to the persons who are Belden CDT’s
executive officers as of February 15, 2006. All executive officers are elected to terms that expire at the
organizational meeting of the Board of Directors following the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Name Age Position

John S. Stroup. . ........ ... .. ... 39 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Kevin L. Bloomfield . .............. 54 Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Robert Canny . ................... 49  Vice President, Operations and President,
Specialty Products

Stephen H. Johnson. ............... 56 Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer

John S. Norman . ................. 45 Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

D.LarrieRose . .................. 58  Vice President, Operations and President,
Europe

Peter Sheehan .. .................. 45 Vice President, Operations and President,

Belden Americas
Cathy O. Staples . . ................ 55 Vice President, Human Resources

John S. Stroup was appointed President, Chief Executive Officer and member of the Board effective
October 31, 2005. From 2000 to the date of his appointment with the Company, he was employed by
Danaher Corporation, a manufacturer of professional instrumentation, industrial technologies, and tools and
components. At Danaher, he initially served as Vice President, Business Development. He was promoted to
President of a division of Danaher’s Motion Group and later to Group Executive of the Motion Group. Earlier, he
was Vice President of Marketing and General Manager with Scientific Technologies Inc. He has a B.S. in
mechanical engineering from Northwestern University and an M.B.A. from the University of California at Berkeley
Haas School of Business.

Kevin L. Bloomfield has been Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel of the Company since July 16,
2004. From August 1, 1993 until July 2004, Mr. Bloomfield was Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel of
Belden Inc. He was Senior Counsel for Cooper from February 1987 to July 1993, and had been in Cooper’s Law
Department from 1981 to 1993. He has a B.A. degree in economics and a J.D. degree from the University of
Cincinnati and an M.B.A. from The Ohio State University.

Robert Canny has been Vice President, Operations and President, Specialty Products, since July 16, 2004. He
previously held the position of Group Vice President, Specialty Products for Cable Design Technologies Corp. and
was Vice President and General Manager of CDT’s Thermax operation. Prior to joining Thermax, Mr. Canny held
management and technical positions at Rockbestos, Times Fiber and RFS Cablewave Systems. He holds a B.S. in
physics from Southern Connecticut State University and a M.S. in industrial engineering from the University of
New Haven.

Stephen H. Johnson has been Treasurer of the Company since July 2004, and was Treasurer of Belden Inc.
from July 2000 to July 2004. In November 2005 he was named Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He
was Vice President, Finance of Belden Electronics from September 1998 through June 2000 and Director, Tax and
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Assistant Treasurer of Belden from October 1993 through August 1998. He was associated with the public
accounting firm of Ernst & Young LLP from 1980 through September 1993 and was a partner with that firm since
1989. Mr. Johnson has a B.A. in history from Austin College and a Ph.D. in philosophy from the University of Texas
at Austin. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

John S. Norman joined Belden CDT in May 2005 as Controller and was named Chief Accounting Officer in
November 2005. He was vice president and controller of Graphic Packaging International Corporation, a paper-
board packaging manufacturing company, from 1999 to 2003 and has 17 years experience in public accounting with
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Mr. Norman has a B.S. in accounting from the University of Missouri and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

D. Larrie Rose has been Vice President, Operations and President, Europe, since July 16, 2004. He was Vice
President, Operations of Belden and President, Belden Holdings Inc., from April 2002 until July 2004. He served as
Vice President, Sales & Marketing for Belden Electronics from 1998 until 2002. From 1981 until 1998, Mr. Rose
held various European management positions for Belden including Vice President, International Operations from
1995 until 1998. He has been with Belden since 1972. Mr. Rose has a B.S. in social science and industrial arts from
Ball State University.

Peter Sheehan has been Vice President, Operations since July 16, 2004 and President, Belden Americas, since
February 7, 2006. From July 2004 to February 2006, he was President, Electronic Products. From December 1995
until July 2004 he was Executive Vice President of Cable Design Technologies Corp. From 1990 to 1995 he was
Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing, for Berk-Tek, an Alcatel Company. Mr. Sheehan has a Bachelor of Arts
and Science degree from Boston College.

Cathy Odom Staples has been Vice President, Human Resources of the Company since July 16, 2004 and held
the same position with Belden from May 1997 through July 2004. She was Vice President, Human Resources for
Belden’s Electronic Products Division from May 1992 to May 1997. Ms. Staples has a B.S.B.A. degree in human
resources from Drake University.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We make forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in other materials we file with the
SEC or otherwise release to the public, and on our website. In addition, our senior management might make
forward-looking statements orally to analysts, investors, the media and others. Statements concerning our future
operations, prospects, strategies, financial condition, future economic performance (including growth and earnings)
and demand for our products and services, and other statements of our plans, beliefs, or expectations, including the
statements contained in the “Outlook™ section and other portions of Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” that are not historical facts, are forward-looking
statements. In some cases these statements are identifiable through the use of words such as “anticipate,” “believe,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “target,” “can,” “could,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would” and
similar expressions. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements we make are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to various
assumptions, risks, and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested
by these forward-looking statements. These factors include, among others, those set forth below and in the other
documents that we file with the SEC. There also are other factors that we may not describe, generally because we
currently do not perceive them to be material, which could cause actual results to differ materially from our
expectations.

EEINT3

We expressly disclaim any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

Following is a discussion of some of the more significant risks that could materially impact our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Any change in the level of economic activity in North America and Europe, our major geographical mar-
kets, may have an impact on the level of demand for our products and our resulting revenue and
earnings.

The demand for many of our products is economically sensitive and will vary with general economic activity,
trends in nonresidential construction, investment in manufacturing facilities and automation, demand for infor-
mation technology equipment, and other economic factors.

Changes in the price and availability of raw materials we use could be detrimental to our profitability.

Copper is a significant component of the cost of most of our products. During the past two years, the price of
copper has risen rapidly. Other materials we use, such as PVC and other plastics derived from petrochemical
feedstocks, have also risen in price. Generally, we have recovered much of the higher cost of raw materials through
higher pricing of our finished products. The majority of our products are sold through distribution, and we manage
the pricing of these products through published price lists which we update from time to time, with new prices
taking effect a few weeks after they are announced. Some OEM and telecom customer contracts have provisions for
passing through raw material cost increases, generally with a lag of a few weeks to three months. We have been
generally more successful (1) in North America than in Europe and (2) in electronic products than in networking
products in increasing our prices to recapture the rising cost of materials. If we are unable to raise prices sufficiently
to recover our material costs, our earnings will be reduced. If we raise our prices but competitors raise their prices
less, we may lose sales, and our earnings will be reduced.

We believe the supply of raw materials (copper, plastics, and other materials) is adequate and we do not expect
any substantial interruption of supply or shortage of materials. If such a supply interruption or shortage were to
occur, however, this could have a negative effect on revenue and earnings.

The global wire and cable industry is highly competitive.

We compete with other manufacturers of cable, wire, connectivity and related products based in North
America, Europe and Asia. These companies compete on price, reputation and quality, product characteristics, and
terms. Actions that may be taken by competitors, including pricing, business alliances, new product introductions,
and other actions, could have a negative effect on our revenue and profitability.

We rely on key suppliers, and we source some of our products from other manufacturers.

There are only a few suppliers in the world for FEP, a polymer also known by the DuPont trade name Teflon®.
FEP is an important material in the manufacture of much of our data networking cable sold in North America. We
believe the supply of FEP is adequate and will remain adequate in the future. If we were unable to obtain a sufficient
supply of FEP, we might not be able to produce enough of certain products to meet demand, and our sales and
profitability would be affected negatively. In addition, we might find it necessary to pay higher prices for scarce
material and raise our product prices to compensate for higher material cost, a situation in which our price increases
might lag our cost increases and depress our gross margins.

Belden CDT sources a minor percentage of its finished products from a network of manufacturers under
private label agreements. We depend on these manufacturers to supply high quality products in a timely manner. If
there were problems with the quality or delivery of these private-label goods, our sales and profits would be
negatively affected.

We rely on several key distributors in marketing our product.

The majority of our sales are through distributors. These distributors carry the products of competitors along
with our products. Our largest distributor customer, Anixter International Inc., accounted for 16 percent of our
revenue in 2005. If we were to lose a key distributor, our revenue and profits would likely be reduced, at least
temporarily.

In the past, we have sometimes seen distributors acquired and consolidated. If there were further consolidation
of the electronics and cable distributors, this could have an effect on our relationships with these distributors. It
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could also result in consolidation of distributor inventory, which would temporarily depress our revenue. We have
also experienced financial failure of distributors from time to time, resulting in our inability to collect accounts
receivable in full.

Because we do business in many countries, our results of operations are affected by changes in currency
exchange rates.

Other than the United States dollar, the principal currencies to which we are exposed through our manufac-
turing operations and sales are the euro, the Canadian dollar and the British pound. Most of our products sold in
Europe are manufactured there, resulting in a natural hedge, to some degree. Most of our products sold in Asia are
priced in U.S. dollars. When the U.S. dollar strengthens against other currencies, the results of our non-U.S.
operations are translated at a lower exchange rate and thus into lower reported earnings.

Our effective income tax rate may vary from year to year because of the mix of income and losses among
various tax jurisdictions in which we do business.

Our effective income tax rate is the result of the income tax rates in the various countries in which we do
business. Our mix of income and losses in these jurisdictions determines our effective tax rate. More income in
higher tax rate jurisdictions or more losses in lower tax rate jurisdictions would increase our effective tax rate and
thus lower our net income. If we generate losses in tax jurisdictions for which no benefits are available, our effective
income tax rate will increase.

We might be unable to achieve planned cost savings.

The plans for our business include both revenue improvement and cost saving initiatives. For example, the
Company has announced a restructuring program for its European operations. The restructuring program is
expected to reduce manufacturing costs in Europe. If we do not achieve all the planned savings, we might not
achieve expected levels of profitability.

We may incur costs related to warranty, product liability lawsuits, or other lawsuits or claims that may be
brought against us.

Some of our products are warranted for 25 years. We have a reserve for expected warranty costs, but if actual
costs are higher than expected, the excess costs will be recognized in future periods, reducing our income.

Our products could be subject to product liability claims and litigation. If our products are not properly
designed and manufactured, personal injuries, death, or property damage could result. The costs associated with
defending product liability claims and payment of damages could be substantial.

Please see Part I, Item 3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a discussion of certain legal proceedings in
which we are involved.

We are subject to current environmental and other laws and regulations.

We are subject to the environmental laws and regulations in each jurisdiction where we do business. We are
currently, and may in the future be, held responsible for remedial investigations and clean-up costs of certain sites
damaged by the discharge of hazardous substances, including sites that have never been owned or operated by us but
at which we have been identified as a potentially responsible party under federal and state environmental laws.
Changes in environmental and other laws and regulations in both domestic and foreign jurisdictions could adversely
affect our operations due to increased costs of compliance and potential liability for noncompliance.

If our goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired, we may be required to recognize charges that
would reduce our income.

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, goodwill and certain other intangible
assets are not amortized but must be reviewed for possible impairment annually, or more often in certain
circumstances if events indicate that the asset values are not recoverable. We have incurred charges in the past
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for the impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets, and we may be required to do so again in future periods.
Such a charge would reduce our income without any change to our underlying cash flow.

Changes in accounting rules and interpretation of these rules may affect our reported earnings.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are complex and require interpretation. These
principles change from time to time, and such changes may result in changes to our reported income without any
change in our underlying cash flow.

Our business is subject to the political and economic uncertainties of making and selling our products
abroad.

A significant proportion of our sales are outside the United States. We have manufacturing facilities in Canada,
Mexico and in several European countries. We rely on suppliers in many countries, including China. The
Company’s foreign operations are subject to economic and political risks inherent in maintaining operations
abroad such as economic and political destabilization, international conflicts, restrictive actions by foreign
governments, and adverse foreign tax laws.

Our future success depends on our ability to develop and introduce new products.

Our products are used in connection with technologies of many kinds. Our markets are characterized by the
introduction of increasingly capable products. We have long been successful in introducing successive generations
of more capable products, but if we were to fail to keep pace with technology or with the products of competitors, we
might lose market share and harm our reputation and position as a technology leader in our markets.

Competing technologies could cause the obsolescence of many of our products.

Fiber optic technology presents a potential substitute for certain of the copper-based products that comprise the
majority of our sales. Fiber optic cables have significant advantages over copper-based cables in applications where
large amounts of information must travel great distances. But due to the high relative cost required to interface
electronic and light signals and the high cost of fiber termination and connection, we believe that copper cable is still
the solution with the best combination of performance and cost for all but the trunk and riser portions of data
networks and similar applications. We produce and market multimode fiber optic cables and many customers
specify these products in combination with copper cables.

Advances in copper cable technologies and data transmission equipment have increased the relative perfor-
mance of copper solutions. The final stage of most networks remains almost exclusively copper-based and we
expect that it will continue to be copper for the foreseeable future. However, if there were a significant and rapid
decrease in the cost of fiber optic systems relative to the cost of copper-based systems, without a further significant
increase in copper capabilities, such systems could become superior on a price/performance basis to copper
systems. We do not control our own source of optical fiber production and, although we cable optical fiber, we could
be at a cost disadvantage to competitors who both produce and cable optical fiber.

To date, the development of wireless devices has required the development of new wired platforms and
infrastructure. In the future, wireless communications technology may represent a threat to both copper and fiber
optic-based systems. We believe that the insufficient signal security, susceptibility to interference and jamming, and
relatively slow transmission speeds of current systems restrict the use of wireless technology in many data
communications markets. However, there are no assurances that future advances in wireless technology will not
have an adverse effect on our business.

We have defined benefit pension plans that are not fully funded.

We have defined benefit pension plans in the United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. The cash funding
requirements for these plans depends on the financial performance of the funds’ assets, actuarial life expectancies,
discount rates and other factors. The fair value of the assets in the plans is often less that the projected benefit owed
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by the Company. In most years we are required to contribute cash to fund the pension plans and other post-
retirement benefit plans, and the amount of funding required may vary significantly.

Some of our employees are members of collective bargaining groups, and we might be subject to labor
actions that would interrupt our business.

Some of our employees, primarily outside the United States, are members of collective bargaining units. We
believe that the Company’s relations with employees are generally good. However, if there were a dispute with one
of these bargaining units, the affected operations could be interrupted resulting in lost revenues, lost profit
contribution, and customer dissatisfaction.

We might have difficulty protecting our intellectual property from use by competitors, or competitors
might accuse us of violating their intellectual property rights.

Disagreements about patents and intellectual property rights occur in our industry. Sometimes these dis-
agreements are settled through an agreement for one party to pay royalties to another. The unfavorable resolution of
an intellectual property dispute could preclude us from manufacturing and selling certain products, could require us
to pay a royalty on the sale of certain products, or could impair our competitive advantage if a competitor wins the
right to sell products we believe we invented. Intellectual property disputes could result in legal fees and other costs.

We announced a decision to exit the communications cable market in the United Kingdom, which will
reduce our revenue and income.

In September 2005 we announced plans to exit the telecommunications cable market in the United Kingdom
upon the expiration of our contract with British Telecom plc in October 2006 or sooner, if possible. In connection
with this decision, we expect to sell or liquidate a business that had approximately $106 million of revenue in 2005,
and we expect to retain little or none of that revenue. The business generated operating profit we will no longer
recognize. While we expect that the sale or liquidation of the business will generate cash in excess of the cash
required to exit the business, the timing and nature of our exit from this business could negatively impact our
earnings.

We have in the past closed plants and reduced the size of our workforce, and we might need to do so
again in the future.

Much of our manufacturing capacity is in North America and Western Europe, which are relatively high-cost
regions. Over the past few years, we have closed several plants and have reduced the number of people we employ.
We incurred asset impairment charges, severance charges and other costs in relation to these plant closures. If we
decide to close additional facilities, we could incur significant cash and non-cash charges in connection with these
actions.

This list of risk factors is not exhaustive. Other considerations besides those mentioned above might cause our
actual results to differ from expectations expressed in any forward-looking statement.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Belden CDT has an executive office that it leases in St. Louis, Missouri, and various manufacturing facilities,
warehouses and sales and administration offices. The significant facilities are as follows:

Used by the Electronics business segment:

Primary Character
(M=Manufacturing,

Number of Properties by Country W=Warehouse) Owned or Leased
United States-19 . . . ... ... . 12M,7W 11 owned
8 leased
Brazil-1 . ... w leased
Canada-1 . ...... ... e M owned
Mexico-1 ..o M leased
1 owned
The Netherlands-2. . . . ... .. . i 1M, 1 W 1 leased
1 owned
United Kingdom-4 .. ..... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. 1M,3W 3 leased
1 owned
Germany-2 . ... ... M 1 leased
Czech Republic-1 ... ... . ... . . .. M owned
1 owned
Ttaly-2. . M 1 leased
1 owned
Sweden-2 . . ..o e 1M, 1W 1 leased

Used by the Networking business segment:

Primary Character
(M=Manufacturing,

Number of Properties by Country W=Warehouse) Owned or Leased
2 owned
United States-5 . . . ... e 4 M, 1W 3 leased
Canada-1 . ........ . e M owned
United Kingdom-3 .. ..... ... .. ... .. ... . ... .. ... .... 1M,2W owned
Czech Republic-1 . ... .. M owned(1)
Denmark-1 . ... ... M owned
China-1. .. .. w leased
Hungary-1. ... ... M owned
MexXiCo -1 . .ot e M leased
Spain-1. ... w leased

(1) This facility is shared with the Electronics business segment.

The total square footage of all Electronics business segment locations and Networking business segment
locations in North America are approximately 2.7 million square feet and 1.2 million square feet, respectively. The
total square footage of all Electronics business segment locations and Networking business segment locations
outside of North America are approximately 1.4 million square feet and .7 million square feet, respectively. The
Company believes its physical facilities are suitable for their present and intended purposes and adequate for the
Company’s current level of operations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is a party to various legal proceedings and administrative actions that are incidental to its
operations. These proceedings include personal injury cases (about 147 of which the Company was aware at
February 24, 2006) in which the Company is one of many defendants, 58 of which are scheduled for trial during
2006.

Electricians have filed a majority of these cases, primarily in New Jersey and Pennsylvania. Plaintiffs in these
cases generally seek compensatory, special and punitive damages. As of February 24, 2006, in 23 of these cases,
plaintiffs generally allege only damages in excess of some dollar amount (i.e., in one case, not less than
$15 thousand and in the other cases, in excess of $50 thousand in compensatory damages and $50 thousand in
punitive damages). In 122 of these cases, plaintiffs generally do not allege a specific monetary damage demand. As
to each of the other 2 cases, the plaintiffs generally allege $5 million in compensatory and $5 million in punitive
damages. In none of these cases do plaintiffs allege claims for specific dollar amounts as to any defendant. Based on
the Company’s experience in such litigation, the amounts pleaded in the complaints are not typically meaningful as
an indicator of the Company’s ultimate liability.

Typically in these cases, the claimant alleges injury from alleged exposure to heat-resistant asbestos fiber,
which was usually encapsulated or embedded and lacquer-coated or covered by another material. Exposure to the
fiber generally would have occurred, if at all, while stripping (cutting) the wire or cable that had such fiber. It is
alleged by claimants that exposure to the fiber may result in respiratory illness. Generally, stripping was done to
repair or to attach a connector to the wire or cable. Alleged predecessors of the Company had a small number of
products that contained the fiber, but ceased production of such products more than fifteen years ago.

Through February 24, 2006, the Company had been dismissed (or reached agreement to be dismissed) in
approximately 156 similar cases without any going to trial, and with only 7 of these involving any payment to the
claimant. Some of these cases were dismissed without prejudice primarily because the claimants could not show
any injury, or could not show that injury was caused from exposure to products of alleged predecessors of the
Company. The Company has insurance that it believes should cover a significant portion of any defense or
settlement costs borne by the Company in these types of cases.

The Company vigorously defends these cases. As a separate matter, liability for any such injury generally
should be allocated among all defendants in such cases in accordance with applicable law. In the opinion of the
Company’s management, the proceedings and actions in which the Company is involved should not, individually or
in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition.

See “Item 1. Business — Environmental Matters” regarding certain proceedings arising under environmental
laws.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report, no matters were submitted to a vote of
security holders of the Company.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BDC.” This ticker symbol
was adopted upon the merger of Belden and CDT. The previous ticker symbol of Cable Design Technologies
Corporation was CDT. Note that the share prices below reflect the stock price of CDT (not Belden) prior to the
merger and reflect the price of Belden CDT Inc. (BDC) for the period since the merger, which occurred after the
close of the market on July 15, 2004. Share prices for CDT have been adjusted to reflect the reverse one-for-two
stock split that occurred immediately before the merger. The Company changed its fiscal year end from July 31 to
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December 31 as of the merger, and the share price information below reflects calendar quarters with the fourth

quarter ended December 31.

As of March 1, 2006, there were approximately 805 record holders of common stock of Belden CDT Inc.

We paid a dividend of $.05 per share in the fourth quarter of 2004 and each quarter of 2005. We anticipate that
comparable cash dividends will continue to be paid quarterly in the foreseeable future.

Common Stock Prices and Dividends
CDT prior to July 16, 2004 (adjusted for reverse split)
BDC from July 16, 2004 onward

2005 (By Quarter)

2 4
Dividends per common share(1)...................... $ 005 $005 $005 $0.05
Common stock prices:
High ... ... $24.59  $2341  $22.75  $26.00
Low. ..o 18.93 17.65 19.08 18.65
2004 (By Quarter)
2 4
Dividends per common
share(1). .. oo — — —  $005
Common stock prices:
High .. ... $22.40  $21.38  $22.55 $24.48
Low. .o 16.84 15.56 18.75 20.50

(1) This table shows dividends paid by the registrant, Belden CDT Inc., formerly known as Cable Design
Technologies Corporation, which began paying dividends only after the 2004 merger with Belden Inc.
Belden Inc. paid a dividend of $0.05 quarterly, or $0.20 per year, since 1993. Because the merger was
accounted for as a reverse acquisition, the historical financial results of Belden and thus the Belden dividend
history are used in Item 6: “Selected Financial Data” and throughout Items 7 and 8 of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 23, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $125.0 million of
common stock in the open market. The program was announced via news release on May 23, 2005. Through
December 31, 2005, we had repurchased approximately 5.2 million shares of our common stock at a cost of
$109.4 million. Shares purchased in the fourth quarter of 2005 are as follows:

Total Number of Average Price Paid

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares
that May Yet be

Purchased Under the

Shares Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs

Period
October 1, 2005 through

October 23, 2005. . ....... 988,200 $19.27 988,200 $54,302,000
October 24, 2005 through

November 20, 2005....... 791,400 $20.16 791,400 $38,345,000
November 21, 2005 through

December 31, 2005 . ... ... 947,100 $24.05 947,100 $15,572,000
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Statement of operations data:

Revenues ................. $1,352,131 $ 966,174  $624,106  $633,083  $708,031
Operating income . . ......... 68,151 42,764 27,221 20,183 62,556
Income (loss) from continuing

operations . . ............. 32,642 15,353 10,157 ) 30,328
Diluted income (loss) per share

from continuing operations . . .68 43 40 — 1.22

Balance sheet data:

Receivables, net . ........... $ 198,106 $ 174,554 $ 86,225 $ 90,875 $ 93,496
Inventories, net. . ........... 261,963 227,034 93,406 111,980 113,675
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities. . . ............. (209,031) (185,035) (89,179) (87,463) (58,994)

Operating working capital . .. $ 251,038 $ 216,553 $ 90,452  §115392  $148,177
Total assets. . .............. $1,286,076  $1,371,221  $689,125  $744,571  $726,959
Long-term debt. ... ......... 172,051 232,823 136,000 203,242 234,703
Total long-term debt, including

current maturities ......... 231,051 248,525 201,951 203,242 234,703
Stockholders’ equity . ........ 713,508 810,000 281,540 315,205 321,497

Other data:

Diluted weighted average

common shares outstanding . . 52,122 38,724 25,387 24,763 24,803
Dividends per common share .. $ 20§ 20 % 20 S 20§ .20

In 2005, we recognized asset impairment expense of $12.8 million, severance expense of $8.7 million and
accelerated depreciation expense of $3.5 million related to our decisions to exit the United Kingdom commu-
nications cable market and to restructure our European manufacturing operations. We also recognized executive
succession expense of $7.0 million during 2005.

In 2004, Belden merged with and became a wholly owned subsidiary of CDT, which then changed its name to
Belden CDT Inc. This merger was treated as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of accounting. For
financial reporting purposes, the results of operations of CDT are included in our operating results from July 16,
2004. We recognized $21.7 million in restructuring and merger-related expenses during 2004. We also recognized
asset impairment expense of $8.9 million related to the discontinuance of certain product lines in Europe and excess
capacity in the United States resulting from the combined capacity after the merger.

In 2002, we recognized asset impairment expense of $18.0 million, severance expense of $8.3 million and
inventory obsolescence expense of $3.6 million related to the discontinuance of certain product lines and
manufacturing facility closures in Europe and Australia.

In 2001, we recognized goodwill amortization expense of $2.1 million.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis, as well as the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and
related footnotes, will aid in the understanding of the operating results as well as the financial position, cash flows,
indebtedness and other key financial information of the Company. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior
year amounts to make them comparable to current year presentation. Preparation of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
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other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily derived from other sources.
There can be no assurance that actual amounts will not differ from those estimates. The following discussion will
also contain forward-looking statements. In connection therewith, please see the cautionary statements contained
herein under Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which identify important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements.

Overview

Belden CDT designs, manufactures and markets high-speed electronic cables, connectivity products and
related items for the specialty electronics and data networking markets. We focus on segments of the worldwide
cable and connectivity market that require highly differentiated, high-performance products. We add value through
design, engineering, excellence in manufacturing, product quality, and customer service.

We believe that revenue growth, operating margins and operating working capital management are our key
performance indicators.

During the five-year period from 2001 through 2005, our total revenues increased by 91% from $708.0 million
to $1,352.1 million. This revenue comparison reflects two offsetting trends:

* From 2001 through 2003, companies selling products to the electronics and networking markets suffered
through a significant downturn in demand. Much of this downturn could be attributed to the poor health of
the general economies in both North America and Europe during that period. A majority of our revenues
historically were derived from customers located in those regions. We experienced increased demand for our
products in 2004 and 2005 as the general economies of those two regions began to improve.

* In 2004 and 2005, incremental revenues of $549.3 million were generated because of the Belden CDT
merger discussed below.

During the five-year period from 2001 through 2005, our operating income increased 9% from $62.6 million to
$68.2 million. This increase is attributable to several factors, including the following:

e In 2004 and 2005, incremental operating income was generated because of the Belden CDT merger
discussed below.

* As noted above, companies selling products to the electronics and networking markets suffered through a
significant downturn in demand because of the poor health of the North American and European economies
during 2001 through 2003. Although we responded to the decreased demand with manufacturing and SG&A
cost reductions, we were unable to reduce costs to a level or at a velocity to completely offset the negative
effect of reduced sales volume on operating income.

* In 2005, we elected to exit the United Kingdom communications cable market and restructure our European
manufacturing operations. As a result of these decisions, we recognized impairment, severance and other
restructuring costs. Further discussion regarding these activities is included in European Operations below.

e In 2004 and 2005, the cost of many of our most-used raw materials, including copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks, increased dramatically. We have increased sales prices across most
of our product lines in an effort to recover much of the higher cost of these raw materials. We have been
generally more successful (1) in North America than in Europe and (2) in electronic products than in
networking products in increasing our prices to recapture the rising cost of materials. In those markets where
we have been less successful at increasing sales prices to recapture the rising cost of materials, operating
income was adversely affected. Further discussion regarding rising material costs and our response to them
is included in Effects of Inflation below.
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We define operating working capital as receivables and inventories less accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. During the five-year period from 2001 through 2005, our operating working capital increased 69% from
$148.2 million to $251.0 million. This increase is attributable to several factors, including the following:

 In 2004, additional operating working capital of $113.8 million was acquired through the Belden CDT
merger discussed below.

e In 2004 and 2005, the cost of many of our most-used raw materials, including copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks, increased dramatically. We have increased sales prices across most
of our product lines in an effort to recover much of the higher cost of these raw materials. The rise in
materials costs and our increased sales prices have resulted in higher inventory and receivable positions. The
adverse effect of these higher asset positions on operating working capital was partially offset by a higher
accounts payable and accrued liabilities position also resulting primarily from rising raw material costs.

Over the past few years, we have closed several manufacturing facilities and have reduced the number of
people we employ. We incurred asset impairment charges, severance charges and other costs in relation to these
plant closures. If we decide to close additional facilities, we could incur significant cash and non-cash charges in
connection with these actions.

Belden CDT Merger

Belden Inc. (Belden) and Cable Design Technologies Corporation (CDT) entered into an Agreement and Plan
of Merger, dated February 4, 2004 (the Merger Agreement) pursuant to which Belden merged with and became a
wholly owned subsidiary of CDT (the Merger) on July 15, 2004. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, 25.6 million
shares of Belden common stock, par value $.01 per share, were exchanged for 25.6 million shares of CDT common
stock, par value $.01 per share, and CDT changed its name to Belden CDT Inc.

Belden and CDT each believed the Merger was in the best interests of its respective stockholders because, as a
result of the Merger, the long-term value of an investment in the combined company would likely be superior to the
long-term value of an investment in either standalone company. In deciding to consummate the Merger, Belden and
CDT considered various factors, some of which are listed in Note 3, Belden CDT Merger, to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Merger included the following significant related transactions:
* CDT effected a one-for-two reverse split of its common stock immediately prior to the Merger;

* Belden cancelled approximately 0.3 million shares of its common stock held in treasury on July 15,
2004; and

* We granted retention and integration awards to certain of our executive officers and other key employees
totaling $7.9 million to be paid in cash and restricted stock distributed in three installments over two years.

* We recognized $4.5 million and $30.6 million of asset impairment, restructuring and incentive compen-
sation expenses in 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the Merger.

As of the Merger consummation date, we had approximately 46.6 million shares of common stock outstanding.
On that date, the former CDT stockholders and former Belden stockholders respectively owned approximately 45%
and 55% of the Company.

The Merger was treated as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of accounting. Belden was
considered the acquiring enterprise for financial reporting purposes because Belden’s owners as a group retained or
received the larger portion of the voting rights in the Company and Belden’s senior management represented a
majority of the senior management of the Company.

The cost to acquire CDT was $490.7 million and consisted of the exchange of common stock discussed above,
change of control costs for legacy CDT management and costs incurred by Belden related directly to the
acquisition. The purchase price was established primarily through the negotiation of the share exchange ratio.
The share exchange ratio was intended to value both Belden and CDT fairly so that neither company paid a premium
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over equity market value for the other. We established a new accounting basis for the assets and liabilities of CDT
based upon the fair values thereof as of the Merger date. The Company recognized goodwill related to the Merger in
the amount of $203.6 million.

For financial reporting purposes, the results of operations of CDT are included in our Consolidated Statements
of Operations from July 16, 2004.

The fair values assigned to each major asset and liability caption of CDT as of the July 15, 2004 effective date
of the Merger and unaudited pro forma summary financial results presenting selected operating information for the
Company as if the Merger and the one-for-two reverse stock split had been completed as of January 1, 2004 and
2003 are included in Note 3, Belden CDT Merger, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

European Operations

In the second quarter of 2005, British Telecom plc requested bids from both the Company and several other
suppliers on a supply agreement currently awarded to the Company. This business provided reasonably satisfactory
profit contribution in the past, but we viewed the communications cable market as extremely mature, with falling
demand, excess capacity, and continuing price pressure. On September 29, 2005, we announced our decisions to
(1) exit the United Kingdom communications cable market and (2) restructure our European operations in an effort
to reduce manufacturing floor space and overhead and streamline administrative processes. We are actively
exploring alternatives for disposition of the Manchester, United Kingdom operation. If unable to arrange a sale of
the business at an acceptable price, we plan to liquidate the business.

As aresult of these decisions, we recognized asset impairment expense of $12.8 million and severance expense
of $8.7 million during 2005. We expect to recognize additional severance expense of at least $1.2 million and other
restructuring costs and associated expenses of $4.8 million during 2006; however, the amount of severance expense
recognized could increase should we elect to liquidate the Manchester, United Kingdom business. We may also
recognize additional asset impairment expenses or losses on the disposal of assets during both the exit from the
United Kingdom communications cable market and the European restructuring.

Effects of Inflation

The principal raw material we use in many of our products is copper. We also purchase Teflon® fluoropol-
ymers, PVC, polyethylene, color chips and insulating materials such as plastic and rubber in large quantities.
During 2004 and 2005, the price of copper has risen rapidly. Materials such as PVC and other plastics derived from
petrochemical feedstocks have also risen in price. Generally, we have recovered much of the higher cost of raw
materials through higher pricing of our finished products. The majority of our products are sold through
distribution, and we manage the pricing of these products through published price lists which we update from
time to time, with new prices taking effect a few weeks after they are announced. Some OEM and telecommu-
nications customer contracts have provisions which allow us to pass on raw material cost increases, generally with a
lag of a few weeks to three months. We have been generally more successful (1) in North America than in Europe
and (2) with our electronic products rather than our networking products in increasing our prices to recapture the
rising cost of materials.
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Consolidated Operating Results

The following table sets forth information comparing 2005 consolidated operating results with 2004 and 2003.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

REVENUES . . v v v, $1,352,131  $966,174  $624,106

Gross profit. . . ... .. 285,124 200,073 119,307

Operating iNnCoOmMEe . . . ..ottt ettt et 68,151 42,764 27,221

Interest expense, Net . ... .........ouiiinunnnnnnnn... (10,091) (12,881) (12,571)
Income from continuing operations . ................... 32,642 15,353 10,157

Loss from discontinued operations . . .. ................. (247) 417) (71,768)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations . . ............ 15,163 253 —
Net income (10SS) . .. ..ot 47,558 15,189 (61,611)

Business Segments

We conduct our operations through two business segments — the Electronics segment and the Networking
segment. The Electronics segment designs, manufactures and markets metallic and fiber optic cable products with
primarily industrial, video/sound/security and transportation/defense applications. These products are sold prin-
cipally through distributors or directly to systems integrators and OEMs. The Networking segment designs,
manufactures and markets metallic cable, fiber optic cable, connectivity and other non-cable products primarily
with networking/communications applications. These products are sold principally through distributors or directly
to systems integrators, OEMs and large telecommunications companies.

The following table sets forth information comparing Electronics segment operating results.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
External CUStOMEr TEVENUES . . . o ot v e e e e e e e e e e $798,986  $604,372  $428,066
Affiliate revenues. . . . ... ... 94,790 81,055 30,739
Total TEVENUES . . . . . oot 893,776 685,427 458,805
Operating iNCOME. . . . . vttt 108,899 54,100 29,657
As a percent of total revenues . . .. ................ ... 12.2% 7.9% 6.5%
The following table sets forth information comparing Networking segment operating results.
Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
External customer revenues . ....................ou..... $553,145  $361,802  $196,040
Affiliate reVeNUES. . . . . . oot 14,449 3,105 1,872
Total reVenues . . . ... 567,594 364,907 197,912
Operating iNCOME. . . . ..ttt t ettt et e e e e e 13,023 24,726 10,201
As a percent of total revenues . .. ........... ... ... 2.3% 6.8% 5.2%
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Operating Results — 2005 Compared With 2004
Continuing Operations
Continuing Operations Consolidated Revenues

Revenues generated in 2005 increased 39.9% to $1,352.1 million from revenues generated in 2004 of
$966.2 million because of the impact of the Merger, increased selling prices, increased sales volume, and favorable
currency translation on international revenues.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations during 2005 totaled approximately $302.3 mil-
lion and contributed 31.3 percentage points of revenue increase.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 4.5 percentage points of revenue increase during 2005.
This price improvement resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the Company
during 2004 and 2005 across most product lines in response to increases in the costs of copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks.

The impact of increased unit sales generated during 2005 contributed 3.7 percentage points of revenue
increase. We experienced higher unit sales of products with networking/communications, industrial, transportation/
defense, and video/sound/security applications.

Favorable foreign currency translation on international revenues contributed 0.4 percentage points of revenue
increase.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the United States, representing 51.1% of total revenues
generated during 2005, increased by 39.7% compared with revenues generated during 2004. Absent the impact of
the Merger, sales of product to customers in the United States increased by 10.9%. This increase resulted primarily
from the impact of sales price increases implemented during 2004 and 2005, increased volume sales of networking
products, increased demand from Gulf Coast region distributors in anticipation of repairs to the damage resulting
from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and increased project activity requiring instrumentation/control cable products,
in-flight entertainment cable products, fiber optic cable products, central office communications cable products,
and products with video/sound/security applications.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in Canada represented 10.2% of total revenues generated
during 2005. Canadian revenues generated in 2005 increased by 68.8% compared with revenues generated in 2004.
Absent the impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation on product sold by our international operations
to customers in Canada, revenues generated in 2005 increased by 25.8% compared with revenues generated in 2004.
This increase resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented during 2004 and 2005,
increased demand for networking products and increased capital project activity within the industrial sector
resulting from higher oil prices and increased demand from utilities companies.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the United Kingdom, representing 11.8% of total
revenues generated during 2005, increased by 21.2% compared with revenues generated during 2004. Absent the
impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation on products sold by our international operations to
customers in the United Kingdom, revenues generated in 2005 increased by 11.8% compared with revenues
generated in 2004. This increase resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented during
2004 and 2005 and the addition of Belden-branded products to the portfolios of several United Kingdom
distributors who historically carried only CDT-branded products.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in Continental Europe represented 18.7% of total
revenues generated during 2005. Continental European revenues generated during 2005 increased by 49.7%
compared with revenues generated during 2004. Absent the impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation
on products sold by our international operations to customers in Continental Europe, revenues generated during
2005 were unchanged from revenues generated during 2004. This performance resulted primarily from strong
communications cable demand and the favorable impact of copper pass-through pricing on these products,
increased demand for products with industrial applications primarily in Central Europe, and nonrecurring sales
of product for the 2006 Torino Olympic Games offset by our decision to cease production of cord products and
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assemblies in Continental Europe during the first quarter of 2004 and nonrecurring sales of product for the 2004
Athens Olympic Games.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the rest of the world, representing 8.3% of the
Company’s total revenues generated during 2005, increased by 24.2% from 2004. Absent the impact of the Merger
and favorable currency translation of products sold by our international operations to customers in the
Latin America, Asia/Pacific and Africa/Middle East markets, revenues generated in 2005 increased by 14.3%
compared with revenues generated in 2004. This increase represented the impact of sales price increases
implemented during 2004 and 2005 and higher demand in all three markets.

Continuing Operations Consolidated Costs, Expenses and Earnings

The following table sets forth information comparing the components of earnings.

Percent
Increase
2005 Compared
Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 with 2004
(In thousands, except % data)
Gross profit. ... ... $285,124  $200,073 42.5%
As a percent of revenues. . . ... ... .. 21.1% 20.7%
Operating iNCoOME . . ...t v v, $ 68,151 $ 42,764 59.4%
As a percent of revenues. . ... ... ... ... 5.0% 4.4%
Income from continuing operations before taxes . ........ $ 57,361 $ 31,244 83.6%
As a percent of revenues. ... ... ... 4.2% 3.2%
Income from continuing operations. . . ................ $ 32,642 $ 15,353 112.6%
As a percent of revenues. .. ... ... .. 2.4% 1.6%

Gross profit increased 42.5% to $285.1 million in 2005 from $200.1 million in 2004 primarily because of the
addition of gross profit generated by CDT operations during the year, the impact of sales price increases
implemented during 2004 and 2005, and the favorable impact of currency translation on the gross profit generated
by our international operations. Also contributing to the favorable gross profit comparison were the current-year
impact of material, labor and overhead cost reduction initiatives, the impact of production outsourcing in Europe
during 2004, and the impact of a 2003 production capacity rationalization initiative in Europe that resulted in lower
output, higher scrap and increased maintenance costs during 2004, severance and other related benefits costs of
$11.4 million recognized during 2004 related to personnel reductions in both North America and Europe and the
planned 2005 closure of a manufacturing facility in the United States.

These positive factors were partially offset by higher product costs resulting from increased purchase prices for
copper and commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks, severance and other related benefits costs of
$8.5 million and accelerated depreciation of $3.5 million recognized during the current year related to our decisions
to exit the United Kingdom communications cable market and restructure our European manufacturing operations,
and severance and other related benefits costs of $1.3 million recognized in the current year related to the
2005 closure of a manufacturing facility in the United States and other personnel reductions.

Gross profit as a percent of revenues increased by 0.4 percentage points from the prior year because of the
previously mentioned items and increased manufacturing utilization as a result of plant rationalization and
consolidation.

Operating income increased 59.4% to $68.2 million in 2005 from $42.8 million in 2004 primarily because of
higher gross profit largely attributable to the Merger and asset impairment costs of $8.9 million recognized during
2004 related to product line exits in Europe and the disposal of certain assets in the United States due to excess
capacity (particularly as a result of the combined capacity after the Merger).

Partially offsetting the positive operating income comparison was an increase in selling, general and
administrative (SG&A) expenses to $207.1 million in 2005 from $151.4 million in 2004 primarily because of
the addition of SG&A expenses related to the CDT operations, executive succession costs totaling $7.0 million

25



recognized during the current year, merger integration costs of $3.8 million recognized during 2005, severance and
other related benefits costs totaling $1.1 million recognized in the current year related to (1) our decisions to exit the
United Kingdom communications cable market and restructure our European manufacturing operations and
(2) personnel reductions in North America and the Asia/Pacific region, and the unfavorable impact of currency
translation on the SG&A expenses of our international operations. These negative factors were partially offset by
severance and other benefits costs of $1.8 million recognized during 2004 related to personnel reductions and both
increased incentive compensation costs and increased professional services costs recognized during 2004 because
of the Merger. SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased to 15.3% in 2005 from 15.7% in 2004
primarily because of the nonrecurring incentive compensation and professional services costs related to the Merger.

Also partially offsetting the positive operating income comparison were tangible asset and goodwill impair-
ment costs of $3.3 million and $9.5 million, respectively, recognized during 2005 because of our decision to exit the
United Kingdom communications cable market. Operating income as a percent of revenues increased to 5.0% in
2005 from 4.4% in 2004 as a result of the previously mentioned items.

Income from continuing operations before taxes increased 83.6% to $57.4 million in 2005 from $31.2 million
in 2004 because of higher operating income largely attributable to the Merger and lower net interest expense
partially offset by nonoperating income of $1.7 million recognized in 2004 on our sale of certain fully impaired
equipment and technology which was used for the production of deflection coils. Net interest expense decreased
21.7% to $10.1 million in 2005 from $12.9 million in 2004 because of the repayment of 7.60% medium-term notes
totaling $64.0 million in the third quarter of 2004, the repayment of 6.92% medium-term notes totaling
$15.0 million in the third quarter of 2005, and higher interest income earned on cash equivalents partially offset
by the assumption of 4.00% subordinated convertible debentures totaling $110.0 million from the legacy CDT
operations in the third quarter of 2004. Interest income earned on cash equivalents was $4.9 million in 2005
compared to $1.8 million in 2004. Average debt outstanding was $24 1.2 million and $231.1 million during 2005 and
2004, respectively. The Company’s average interest rate was 6.04% in 2005 and 6.25% in 2004.

Our effective tax rate on income from continuing operations was 43.1% and 50.9% in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily attributable to a decrease in deferred tax asset
valuation allowances recognized against foreign net operating loss carryforwards from $9.4 million in 2004 to
$5.0 million in 2005. The impact of the deferred tax asset valuation allowances was partially offset by favorable
resolution of tax contingencies of $3.7 million and $2.4 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income from continuing operations increased 112.6% to $32.6 million in 2005 from $15.4 million in 2004
mainly because of higher income from continuing operations before taxes resulting largely from the Merger
partially offset by higher income tax expense.

Electronics Segment

Revenues generated from sales to external customers increased 32.2% to $799.0 million in 2005 from
$604.4 million in 2004 because of the impact of the Merger, increased selling prices, increased sales volume, and
favorable currency translation on international revenues.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations during 2005 totaled approximately $148.0 mil-
lion and contributed 24.5 percentage points of revenue increase.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 5.2 percentage points of revenue increase during 2005.
This price improvement resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the segment
during 2004 and 2005 across most product lines in response to increases in the costs in copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks.

The impact of increased unit sales generated during the 2005 contributed 2.1 percentage points of revenue
increase. The segment experienced higher unit sales of products with industrial, transportation/defense, and video/
sound/security applications partially offset by lower unit sales of products with networking/communications
applications.
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Favorable foreign currency translation on international revenues contributed 0.4 percentage points of revenue
increase.

Operating income increased to $109.0 million in 2005 from $54.1 million in 2004 mainly because of the
addition of operating income generated by the CDT operations, the impact of sales price increases implemented
during 2004 and 2005, the current-year impact of manufacturing and SG&A cost reduction initiatives, favorable
currency translation on operating income generated by our international operations, and the impact that a European
capacity rationalization initiative had on 2004 operating income. The operating income comparison was also
favorably affected by severance and other related benefits costs totaling $12.5 million recognized during 2004
related to personnel reductions and the planned 2005 closure of a manufacturing facility in the United States, asset
impairment costs of $8.9 million recognized during 2004 related to product line exits in Europe and the disposal of
certain assets in the United States due to excess capacity (particularly as a result of the combined capacity after the
Merger) and increased incentive compensation costs recognized during 2004 because of the Merger.

These positive factors were partially offset by higher product costs resulting from increased purchase prices for
copper and commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks, merger integration costs totaling $2.2 million
recognized in the current year, severance and other benefits costs of $1.2 million recognized in 2005 related to the
closure of a manufacturing facility in the United States and other personnel reductions, and accelerated depreciation
of $1.4 million recognized in the current year related to our decision to restructure our European manufacturing
operations.

As a percent of total revenues generated by the segment, operating income increased to 12.2% in 2005 from
7.9% in 2004 because of the previously mentioned items and increased manufacturing utilization as a result of plant
rationalization and consolidation.

Networking Segment

Revenues generated on sales to external customers increased 52.9% to $553.1 million in 2005 from
$361.8 million in 2004. The revenue increase resulted primarily from the impact of the Merger, increased sales
volume, increased selling prices, and favorable currency translation on revenues generated by the Company’s
international operations.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations in 2005 totaled approximately $154.3 million
and contributed 42.6 percentage points of revenue increase.

The impact of increased unit sales generated during 2005 contributed 6.5 percentage points of revenue
increase. The segment experienced higher unit sales of products with networking/communications, industrial,
video/sound/security, and transportation/defense applications.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 3.2 percentage points of revenue increase during 2005.
This price improvement resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the segment
during 2004 and 2005 across most product lines in response to increases in the costs of copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks. Despite significant list price increase, net price increases after discounts
were insufficient to fully recover rising material costs.

Favorable foreign currency translation on international revenues contributed 0.5 percentage points of revenue
increase.

Operating income decreased to $13.0 million in 2005 from $24.7 million in 2004 mainly because of asset
impairment charges of $10.4 million and accelerated depreciation of $2.3 million recognized in the current year
because of our decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable market, higher product costs resulting
from increased purchase prices for copper and commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks, severance and
other related benefits costs of $8.9 million recognized in the current year related to both our decision to exit the
United Kingdom communications cable market and personnel reductions in the Asia/Pacific region, and merger
integration costs totaling $1.0 million recognized in 2005.

These negative factors were partially offset by the addition of operating income generated by the CDT
operations, the impact of sales price increases implemented during 2004 and 2005, the current-year impact of
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manufacturing and SG&A cost reduction initiatives, favorable currency translation on operating income generated
by our international operations, the impact of production outsourcing in Europe during 2004, increased incentive
compensation costs recognized during 2004 because of the Merger, and severance and other related benefits costs of
$0.7 million recognized during 2004 related to personnel reductions.

Operating income as a percent of total revenues generated by the segment decreased to 2.3% in 2005 from
6.8% in 2004 because of the previously mentioned items.

Discontinued Operations

During 2005 and 2004, we reported four operations — Belden Communications Company (BCC) in Phoenix,
Arizona; Raydex/CDT Ltd. (Raydex) in Skelmersdale, United Kingdom; Montrose/CDT (Montrose) in Auburn,
Massachusetts; and Admiral/CDT (Admiral) in Wadsworth, Ohio and Barberton, Ohio — as discontinued oper-
ations. The Raydex, Montrose and Admiral operations were acquired through the Merger. As of the effective date of
the Merger, management had formulated a plan to dispose of these operations. In regard to all discontinued
operations, the remaining assets of these operations were held for sale during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004.

Loss from discontinued operations in 2005 includes:

e $2.2 million of revenues and $0.7 million of loss before income tax benefits related to the discontinued
operations of our Electronics segment; and

e $0.1 million of revenues and $2.8 million of loss before income tax benefits related to the discontinued
operations of our Networking segment.

We recognized a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations in the amount of $23.7 million before tax
($15.2 million after tax) during 2005.

Loss from discontinued operations for 2004 includes:

e $11.2 million of revenues and $0.9 million of income before income tax expense related to the discontinued
operations of our Electronics segment; and

e $108.5 million of revenues and $18.8 million of loss before income tax benefits related to the discontinued
operations of our Networking segment.

We recognized a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations in the amount of $0.4 million before tax
($0.2 million after tax) during 2004.
Operating Results — 2004 Compared With 2003
Continuing Operations
Continuing Operations Consolidated Revenues

Revenues generated in 2004 increased 54.8% to $966.2 million from revenues generated in 2003 of
$624.1 million due to the Merger, increased selling prices, increased sales volume, and favorable currency
translation on international revenues.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations during 2004 totaled $247.0 million and
contributed 39.6 percentage points of revenue increase.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 6.0 percentage points of revenue increase during 2004.
This price improvement resulted primarily from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the Company
during 2004 across most product lines in response to increases in the costs of copper and commodities derived from
petrochemical feedstocks.

Increased unit sales generated during 2004 contributed 5.1 percentage points of revenue increase. We
experienced volume increases in its sales of products with networking/communications applications and industrial
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applications. Higher unit sales of products with networking/communications, industrial and transportation/defense
applications partially offset by a volume decrease in sales of products with video/sound/security applications.

Favorable foreign currency translation on international revenues contributed 4.1 percentage points of revenue
increase during 2004.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the United States, representing 51.1% of our total
revenues generated during 2004, increased by 57.0% compared with revenues generated during 2003. Absent the
impact of both the Merger and favorable currency translation on product sold by our international operations to
customers in the United States, revenues generated for 2004 increased by 18.8% from revenues generated during
2003. This increase resulted primarily from improvement in general economic conditions in the United States,
increased project activity requiring products with video/sound/security and industrial applications, increased
distributor-restocking activity for products with industrial applications and the impact of sales price increases
implemented in 2004.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in Canada represented 8.4% of our total revenues for
2004. Canadian revenues for 2004 increased by 57.2% compared with revenues for 2003. Absent the impact of the
Merger and favorable currency translation on product sold by our international operations to customers in Canada,
revenues generated for the 2004 decreased by 3.5% compared with revenues generated for 2003. This decrease
resulted primarily from lower sales volume due to our decision not to reduce sales prices on certain of its lower-
margin product offerings to meet the prices offered by its competitors and a decrease in demand for certain products
with industrial and networking/communications applications.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the United Kingdom, representing 13.6% of the
Company’s total revenues generated during 2004, increased by 59.6% compared with revenues generated during
2003. Absent the impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation on product sold by our international
operations to customers in the United Kingdom, revenues generated for 2004 increased by 34.7% compared with
revenues generated for 2003. This increase resulted primarily from increased unit purchasing of products with
networking/communications applications by a large telecommunications customer in the United Kingdom and
increased contractual copper pass-through pricing on most products.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in Continental Europe represented 17.5% of our total
revenues for 2004. Continental European revenues generated during 2004 increased by 64.8% compared with
revenues generated during 2003. Absent the impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation on product
sold by our international operations to customers in Continental Europe, revenues generated during 2004 decreased
by 5.6% compared with revenues generated during 2003. The majority of this decrease resulted from our decision to
cease, in the second quarter of 2003, the production of certain products with industrial and video/sound/security
applications. The negative impact of this decision on revenue comparisons was partially offset by increased project
activity requiring products with video/sound/security applications.

Revenues generated on sales of product to customers in the rest of the world, representing 9.4% of the
Company’s total revenues generated during 2004, increased by 24.1% from revenues generated during 2003.
Absent the impact of the Merger and favorable currency translation on product sold by our international operations
to customers in the rest of the world, revenues generated during 2004 increased by 3.6% compared with revenues
generated during 2003. The increase represented higher demand in the Asia, Latin America and Africa/Middle East
markets partially offset by lower demand and the impact of our decision to cease, in the second quarter of 2003, the
production of certain products with networking/communications applications in the Australia market.
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Continuing Operations Costs, Expenses and Earnings

The following table sets forth information comparing the 2004 components of earnings with 2003.

Percent
Increase
2004 Compared
Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 with 2003
(In thousands, except % data)
Gross profit. .. ... $200,073  $119,307 67.7%
As a percent of revenues. . ... ... ... 20.7% 19.1%
Operating iNCOME . . . . v v e $ 42,764 $ 27,221 57.0%
As a percent of revenues. . ... ... ... 4.4% 4.4%
Income from continuing operations before taxes . ........ $ 31,244 $ 14,650 113.3%
As a percent of revenues. . .. .. ... ... 3.2% 2.3%
Income from continuing operations. . . ................ $ 15,353 $ 10,157 51.2%
As a percent of revenues. . ... ... ... 1.6% 1.6%

Gross profit increased 67.7% to $200.1 million in 2004 from $119.3 million in 2003 due primarily to the
Merger, higher sales volume, an increase in product sales prices, and the favorable impact of currency translation on
gross profit. Also contributing to the favorable gross profit comparison were the current-period impact of material,
labor and overhead cost reduction initiatives, increased unabsorbed production costs recognized during 2003
resulting from actions taken to reduce inventory levels, severance and related benefits costs of $3.6 million
recognized in 2003 related to manufacturing facility closures in Australia and Germany and other personnel
reductions. These positive factors were partially offset by higher product costs resulting from increased purchase
prices for copper and commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks. Also partially offsetting the favorable
comparisons were severance and other benefits costs of $11.4 million recognized in 2004 related to personnel
reductions in North America and Europe and the planned 2005 closure of a manufacturing facility in the
United States, the impact of the step-up in the carrying values of CDT inventories that resulted from the Merger,
the impact of production outsourcing in Europe, increased transportation costs (especially in Europe) and the
impact of production capacity rationalization in Europe initiated during 2003 that resulted in lower output, higher
scrap and increased maintenance costs in 2004. Gross profit as a percent of revenues increased 1.6 percentage points
from the prior year due to the previously mentioned items.

Operating income increased 57.0% to $42.8 million for 2004 from $27.2 million for 2003 due primarily to
higher gross profit, the current-period impact of SG&A cost reduction initiatives, severance and asset impairment
costs totaling $1.1 million recognized during 2003 related to manufacturing facility closures in Australia and
Germany, severance and other related benefits costs of $2.4 million recognized in 2003 related to personnel
reductions within the Electronics segment and bad debt expense of $0.6 million recognized in 2003 related to the
failure of a distribution customer in Asia. Partially offsetting these positive factors was an increase in SG&A
expenses to $151.4 million in 2004 from $94.7 million for 2003. This increase was due primarily to the addition of
the CDT operations, the unfavorable impact of currency translation on international expenses, severance and other
benefits costs of $1.8 million recognized in 2004 related to personnel reductions in North America, Europe and
Australia, increased incentive compensation costs related to the Merger, and increased professional services costs
related to the Merger and implementation of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Also partially
offsetting the favorable operating income comparison were asset impairment costs totaling $8.9 million recognized
in 2004 related to product line exits in Europe and the disposal of certain assets in the United States due to excess
capacity (particularly as a result of the combined capacity after the Merger). SG&A expenses as a percentage of
revenues increased to 15.7% in 2004 from 15.2% in 2003. Operating income as a percent of revenues were 4.4% in
both 2004 and 2003.

Income from continuing operations before taxes increased 113.3% to $31.2 million in 2004 from $14.7 million
in 2003 due to higher operating income, nonoperating income of $1.7 million recognized in 2004 on our sale of
certain fully impaired equipment and technology which was used for the production of deflection coils partially
offset by the minority interest in certain CDT operations and higher net interest expense. Net interest expense
increased 2.5% to $12.9 million in 2004 from $12.6 million in 2003 due to higher average debt outstanding, albeit at
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lower interest rates, partially offset by increased interest income. Average debt outstanding was $231.1 million and
$200.1 million during 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company’s average interest rate was 6.25% in 2004 and
6.48% in 2003. Interest income for 2004 and 2003 was $1.8 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Our effective tax rate on income from continuing operations was 50.9% and 30.7% in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Absent the impact of an additional deferred tax asset valuation allowance, our effective tax rate was
20.8% for 2004. The tax rate increase was due primarily to a deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $9.4 million
recorded against foreign net operating loss carryforwards in 2004 partially offset by the 2004 resolution of a
$2.4 million prior period tax contingency.

Income from continuing operations increased 51.2% to $15.4 million in 2004 from $10.2 million in 2003 due
mainly to higher income from continuing operations before taxes partially offset by higher income tax expense.

Electronics Segment

Revenues generated from sales to external customers increased 41.2% to $604.4 million for 2004 from
$428.1 million for 2003 due to the Merger, increased selling prices, higher sales volume and favorable currency
translation on international revenues.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations totaled $122.2 million and contributed
28.5 percentage points of the revenue increase.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 6.6 percentage points of revenue increase during 2004.
This price improvement resulted from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the Company across all
products lines in 2004 in response to copper cost escalation and increasing costs for commodities derived from
petrochemical feedstocks.

Increased unit sales generated during 2004 contributed 3.0 percentage points of revenue increase. The segment
experienced volume increases in its sales of products with industrial and networking/communications, and
transportation/defense applications partially offset by a volume decrease in sales of products with video/sound/
security applications.

Favorable foreign currency translation on international revenues contributed 3.1 percentage points of revenue
increase.

Operating income increased 82.4% to $54.1 million for 2004 from $30.0 million for 2003 due mainly to the
Merger, higher sales volumes, increased product sales prices, the favorable impact of currency translation on the
operating income of international operations, and the current-year impact of both manufacturing and SG&A cost
reduction initiatives. Also contributing to the favorable operating income comparison were increased unabsorbed
production costs recognized in 2003 resulting from actions taken to reduce inventory levels, severance and asset
impairment costs of $0.9 million and $0.4 million, respectively, recognized in 2003 related to a manufacturing
facility closure in Germany, severance costs of $3.6 million recognized in 2003 related to personnel reductions, and
the realignment of the Ft. Mill, South Carolina manufacturing facility (Ft. Mill) from this segment to the
Networking segment effective July 1, 2003.

These positive factors were partially offset by higher product costs resulting from increased purchase prices for
copper and commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks. Also partially offsetting the favorable operating
income comparison were asset impairment costs totaling $8.9 million recognized in 2004 related to the exit of
certain product lines in Europe and the disposal of certain assets in the United States due to excess capacity
(particularly as a result of the combined capacity after the Merger), the impact of the step-up in the carrying values
of CDT inventories that resulted from the Merger, severance and other benefits costs of $12.5 million recognized in
2004 related personnel reductions and a planned 2005 closure of a manufacturing facility in the United States,
increased transportation costs (especially in Europe), the impact of production capacity rationalization in Europe,
and increased incentive compensation costs related to the Merger.

As a percent of total revenues generated by the segment, operating income increased to 7.9% in 2004 from
6.5% in 2003 due to the previously mentioned items.
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Networking Segment

Revenues generated on sales to external customers increased 84.6% to $361.8 million for 2004 from
$196.0 million for 2003. The revenue increase was due primarily to the Merger, increased sales volume, favorable
currency translation on international revenues and increased sales prices.

Revenues generated through the addition of the CDT operations totaled $124.9 million and contributed
63.7 percentage points of the revenue increase.

Increased unit sales and increased contractual copper pass-through pricing during 2004 contributed
9.6 percentage points of revenue increase. The unit sales increase resulted primarily from increased unit sales
of products with networking/communications applications to a large telecommunications customer and by
increased unit sales of products with industrial and video/sound/security applications by our Asia/Pacific
operations.

Favorable foreign currency translation on revenues contributed 6.3 percentage points of revenue increase.

The impact of increased product pricing contributed 5.0 percentage points of revenue increase during 2004.
This price improvement resulted from the impact of sales price increases implemented by the Company across all
products lines in 2004 in response to copper cost escalation and increasing costs for commodities derived from
petrochemical feedstocks.

Operating income increased 142.0% to $24.7 million for 2004 from $10.2 million for 2003 due primarily to the
Merger, higher sales volumes, increased product sales prices, the favorable impact of currency translation on the
operating income of international operations and the current-period impact of both manufacturing and SG&A cost
reduction initiatives. Also contributing to the favorable operating income comparison were increased unabsorbed
production costs recognized in 2003 resulting from actions taken to reduce inventory levels, severance and other
related benefits costs of $2.2 million recognized in 2003 related to a manufacturing facility closure in Australia and
personnel reductions in the United Kingdom, and bad debt expense of $0.6 million recognized in 2003 related to the
failure of a distribution customer in Asia.

The positive impact that these factors had on the operating income comparison was partially offset by the
realignment of Ft. Mill from the Electronics segment to this segment effective July 1, 2003. The positive impact that
these favorable factors had on the operating income comparison was also partially offset by the impact of
production outsourcing, higher product costs resulting from increased purchase prices for copper and commodities
derived from petrochemical feedstocks. Also partially offsetting the favorable comparisons were severance and
other benefits costs of $0.7 million recognized in 2004 related to personnel reductions, the impact of the step-up in
the carrying values of CDT inventories that resulted from the Merger, and increased incentive compensation costs
related to the Merger.

Operating income as a percent of total revenues generated by the segment increased to 6.8% in 2004 from 5.2%
in 2003 due to the previously mentioned items.
Discontinued Operations

During 2004, we reported four operations — BCC, Raydex, Montrose and Admiral — as discontinued
operations. During 2003, we reported only BCC as a discontinued operation.

Loss from discontinued operations for 2004 includes:

* $11.2 million of revenues and $0.9 million of income before income tax expense related to the discontinued
operations of our Electronics segment; and

e $108.5 million of revenues and $18.8 million of loss before income tax benefits related to the discontinued
operations of our Networking segment.

We recognized a gain on the disposal of discontinued operations in the amount of $0.4 million before tax
($0.2 million after tax) during 2004.
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Loss from discontinued operations for 2003 includes $202.4 million of revenues and $112.1 million of loss
before income tax benefits related to the discontinued operations of our Networking segment.

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of cash liquidity included cash and cash equivalents, cash from operations and amounts available
under credit facilities. Generally, our primary source of cash has been from business operations. Cash sourced from
credit facilities and other borrowing arrangements has historically been used to fund business acquisitions. We
believe that these sources are sufficient to fund the current requirements of working capital, to make scheduled
pension contributions for our retirement plans, to fund scheduled debt maturity payments, to fund quarterly
dividend payments and to support its short-term and long-term operating strategies.

Our net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2005 in Australia, Germany, the Netherlands and the
United States will continue to reduce our cash tax payments in 2006 when compared to tax expense. These
carryforwards arise from lowered operating earnings during the recent economic downturns in the United States and
Europe, costs associated with divestiture or closure of manufacturing plants in the United States, Germany and
Australia, and transaction and other costs associated with the Merger.

Planned capital expenditures for 2006 are approximately $30.0 million, of which over $20.0 million relates to
capacity maintenance and enhancement. We have the ability to revise and reschedule the anticipated capital
expenditure program should our financial position require it.

Customer demand, competitive market forces, uncertainties related to the effect of competitive products and
pricing, customer acceptance of our product mix or economic conditions worldwide could affect our ability to
continue to fund our needs from business operations.

Net cash outflow during 2005 totaled $54.2 million. The disposal of discontinued operations provided
$40.0 million of cash during the year.

Net cash inflow during 2004 totaled $42.9 million. The disposal of discontinued operations provided
$78.3 million of cash during the year.

Net cash inflow during 2003 totaled $77.4 million. There were no disposals of discontinued operations during
the year.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2005 totaled $49.1 million. Changes in operating assets and
liabilities used cash of $45.0 million. This use resulted primarily from increased inventories and receivables.
Inventories increased from December 31, 2004 because of cost increases for copper and commodities derived from
petrochemical feedstocks and the Company’s need for higher inventory levels to support increased sales during
2005. Receivables increased from December 31, 2004 because of greater sales volume in 2005 and increased sales
prices in response to higher raw material costs partially offset by increases in the allowances recognized for both
unissued credits and incentive rebates.

Noncash asset impairment costs totaling $12.8 million were recognized in 2005 related to our decision to exit
the United Kingdom communications cable market.

Also in 2005, we elected to partially compensate our nonemployee directors and certain key employees with
common stock held in treasury rather than with cash. Treasury stock issued to the nonemployee directors had a
FIFO cost basis of zero and a market value of $0.2 million. Treasury stock issued to the key employees had a FIFO
cost basis of zero and a market value of $2.0 million. During 2005, we also amortized $2.0 million of unearned
deferred compensation related to nonvested restricted stock we awarded to certain key employees in lieu of cash
compensation during 2002 through 2004.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2004 totaled $41.0 million. Changes in operating assets and
liabilities used cash of $18.3 million. This use resulted primarily from increased inventories and a decrease in
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accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Inventories increased from December 31, 2003 due to our need for higher
inventory levels to support increased sales during 2004. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased from
December 31, 2003 due primarily to the liquidation of liabilities of the discontinued operations.

Noncash asset impairment costs totaling $8.9 million were recognized in 2004 related to product line exits in
Europe and the disposal of certain assets in the United States due to excess capacity (particularly as a result of the
combined capacity after the Merger).

In 2004, we elected to fund certain contributions to one of our retirement savings plans with common stock
held in treasury rather than with cash. Treasury stock issued had a FIFO cost basis of $1.8 million and a market value
of $2.3 million.

Also in 2004, we elected to partially compensate our nonemployee directors and certain key employees with
common stock held in treasury rather than with cash. Treasury stock issued to the nonemployee directors had a
FIFO cost basis of zero and a market value of $0.3 million. Treasury stock issued to the key employees had a FIFO
cost basis of zero and a market value of $0.6 million. During 2004, we also amortized $2.9 million of unearned
deferred compensation related to nonvested restricted stock we awarded to certain key employees in lieu of cash
compensation during 2001 through 2004.

We issued common stock held in treasury rather than paying cash for compensation on the settlement of
employee stock purchase plan rights granted under our various share-based payment plans during 2004. Treasury
stock issued had a FIFO cost basis of $0.1 million and a market value of $0.1 million.

We recognized a gain of $1.7 million during 2004 on the sale of fully-impaired equipment and technology used
for the production of deflection coils.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2003 totaled $96.4 million. Changes in operating assets and
liabilities provided cash of $56.2 million. This contribution resulted from decreases in both inventories and
receivables partially offset by decreased accounts payable and accrued liabilities. In 2003, we focused on reducing
inventory levels in an effort to accumulate cash for pension contribution payments estimated at $10.3 million and
debt maturity payments estimated at $64.0 million to be made in 2004. We accumulated cash rather than prepaying
debt due to the onerous penalties that would apply on a debt prepayment. Receivables decreased primarily due to
lower revenues. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased from December 31, 2002 due primarily to the
payout of severance and other related benefits throughout 2003.

Asset impairment costs of $92.8 million were recognized in 2003 related to the manufacturing facility closure
in Germany and our inability to recover our investment in both the tangible and intangible assets of BCC’s
discontinued operation in Phoenix, Arizona.

In 2003, we elected to fund certain contributions to one of our retirement savings plans with common stock
held in treasury rather than with cash. Treasury stock had a FIFO cost basis of $4.5 million and a market value of
$3.7 million.

Also in 2003, we elected to partially compensate our nonemployee Directors with common stock held in
treasury rather than with cash. Treasury stock had a FIFO cost basis of $0.2 million and a market value of
$0.1 million. During 2003, we also amortized $1.6 million of unearned deferred compensation related to nonvested
common stock we awarded to certain key employees in lieu of cash compensation during 2001 through 2003.

We issued common stock held in treasury rather than paying cash for compensation on the settlement of
employee stock purchase plan rights granted under our various share-based payment plans during 2003. Treasury
stock had a FIFO cost basis of $2.8 million and a market value of $2.1 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

In 2005, we received $51.5 million related to the sale of real estate and certain tangible assets of BCC’s
discontinued Phoenix operations, Raydex’s discontinued Skelmersdale, United Kingdom operation, the discon-
tinued Montrose operation, Admiral’s discontinued Barberton, Ohio operation, the Fort Lauderdale, Florida
operation, the Villingen, Germany operation, and the Kingston, Canada operation.
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In 2004, we received $82.1 million related to the sale of certain assets of BCC’s discontinued Phoenix
operations to Superior Essex Communications LLC.

Also in 2004, we incurred $6.2 million in transaction costs associated with the Merger.

Capital Expenditures

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Continuing operations:

Capacity maintenance and enhancement . . ................. $11,396 $ 7,574 $ 7,591
Capacity exXpansion . . .. ... ...uuuine et 5,071 1,457 419
Other. . ..o 7,322 2,264 1,972
Discontinued Operations. . . . ... — 4,594 6,756

$23,789  $15,889  $16,738

Capital expenditures for continuing operations during 2005, 2004 and 2003 represented approximately 1.8%,
1.2%, and 1.6% of total revenues, respectively. Approximately 48%, 67%, and 76% of capital expenditures for
continuing operations were utilized for maintaining and enhancing existing production capabilities in 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

On May 23, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $125.0 million of
common stock in the open market. From that date through December 31, 2005, we repurchased approximately
5.2 million shares of our common stock at an aggregate cost of $109.4 million.

We repaid approximately $17.5 million and $66.7 million of debt during 2005 and 2004, respectively. There
were no repayments of debt during 2003. These repayments were funded primarily by cash flow from operating
activities.

Dividends of $0.20 per share per annum were paid to stockholders during 2005, 2004, and 2003, resulting in
cash outflows of $9.1 million, $7.3 million, and $5.1 million, respectively.

We received approximately $6.9 million, $4.4 million, and $0.2 million in proceeds during 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively, on the exercise of stock options granted under our various share-based payment plans.

Borrowings and Contractual Obligations

Borrowings and other contractual obligations have the following scheduled maturities:

Payments Due by Period

1-3 3-5 After
December 31, 2005 Total Less Than 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

(In thousands)

Long-term debt, including

current maturities. . . ....... $231,051 $ 59,000 $30,051  $32,000  $110,000
Interest payable. . ........... 88,811 11,193 15,828 11,190 50,600
Operating leases . ........... 14,625 6,224 6,365 2,006 30
Capital equipment purchase

obligation ............... 2,425 2,425 — — —
Pension and other postretirement

obligations. . . ............ 89,788 36,454 17,799 17,508 18,027

Total contractual cash

obligations ................ $426,700 $115,296 $70,043  $62,704  $178,657
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We anticipate making increased contributions to our pension plans during 2006. Our contributions to these
plans during 2005 were $26.1 million. The anticipated increase results primarily from funding required for the
United Kingdom and terminated Netherlands plans. We anticipate contributing $33.7 million to our pension plans
during 2006, $10.4 million and $6.0 million of which is attributable to the United Kingdom and Netherlands
pension plans, respectively. While the amount of contributions to our pension plans for the years after 2006 is
affected by the investment results from the plans’ assets, we currently anticipate contributions to our pension plans
for 2007 and 2008 of $6.1 million and $6.0 million, respectively.

Other Commercial Commitments

Other commercial commitments have the following scheduled maturities:

Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period\

1-3 3-5 After

December 31, 2005 Total Less Than 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Lines of credit(1) .. ................... $18,864 $18,864 $— $— $ —
Standby letters of credit ................ 10,626 10,626 — — —
Bank guarantees . ..................... 5,155 5,155 — — —
Surety bonds. . ......... ... ... L. 4,535 4,535 = = —
Total commercial commitments. . ......... $39,180 $39,180 $— $— $—

(1) We entered into a credit agreement with a group of 6 banks on October 9, 2003 (Credit Agreement). The Credit
Agreement provides for a secured, variable-rate and revolving credit facility not to exceed $75.0 million
expiring in June 2006. The amount of any borrowing under the Credit Agreement is subject to a borrowing base
comprised of a portion of our receivables and inventories located in the United States. Our borrowing capacity
under the Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2005 was $18.9 million. There were no outstanding borrowings
under the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2005.

Working Capital

Current assets decreased $7.0 million, or 1.1%, from $637.8 million at December 31, 2004 to $630.8 million at
December 31, 2005. This decrease resulted primarily from a reduction in cash and cash equivalents and current
assets of discontinued operations partially offset by increases in receivables, inventories, and current deferred
income tax assets.

* Cash and cash equivalents decreased $54.2 million from December 31, 2004. Principal contributors to this
decrease were our share repurchase program which used $109.4 million of cash during 2005, capital
expenditures totaling $23.8 million, severance payments totaling $18.9 million, payments on medium-term
notes and other borrowing arrangements totaling $17.5 million, and $9.1 million in dividend payments
during the year. These uses of cash were partially offset by $51.5 million in proceeds received on the disposal
of tangible property, $6.9 million in proceeds received on the exercise of stock options, and cash flow from
operations.

* Inventories increased by $34.9 million from December 31, 2004. This increase represents higher commodity
costs reflected in the raw materials, work in process and finished goods balances and a $7.2 million decrease
in allowances for obsolete and slow-moving inventory primarily because of the disposal of slow-moving
coaxial cable inventory balances.

» Receivables increased by $23.6 million from December 31, 2004 because of greater sales volume in 2005
and increased sales prices in response to higher raw material costs. This increase was partially offset by a
$6.4 million increase in the allowances for unissued credits (primarily because of “meet competition”
pricing credits given to distributors) and a $7.6 million increase in the allowance for incentive rebates during
2005.
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* Current assets of discontinued operations decreased $19.6 million from December 31, 2004 primarily as the
result of the liquidation of receivables and inventories at our discontinued Montrose and Raydex —
Skelmersdale operations after those facilities ceased production early in 2005.

¢ Current deferred income tax assets increased by $11.9 million from December 31, 2004 primarily because of
the classification of $13.0 million in net operating loss carryforwards from long-term to current based upon
the expected timing of their utilization.

Current liabilities increased $50.1 million, or 23.0%, from $218.3 million at December 31, 2004 to
$268.4 million at December 31, 2005. This increase in current liabilities was primarily the result of increases
in both current maturities of long-term debt and accounts payable and accrued liabilities partially offset by a
decrease in current liabilities of discontinued operations.

* Current maturities of long-term debt increased by $43.3 million from December 31, 2004 primarily because
we reclassified from long-term debt the 7.74% medium-term notes in the amount of $44.0 million and the
second tranche of the 6.92% medium-term notes in the amount of $15.0 million in 2005. Both are payable in
the third quarter of 2006. This reclassification was partially offset by payment of the first tranche of 6.92%
medium-term notes in the amount of $15.0 million in 2005.

* Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $24.0 million from December 31, 2004. This increase
resulted primarily from increased purchases necessary to support higher levels of production within our
facilities, higher raw material costs (particularly for copper, and commodities derived from petrochemical
feedstocks), executive succession costs of $7.0 million accrued in 2005, and severance and other related
benefits costs of $13.8 million accrued during the year. These negative factors were partially offset by
severance payments totaling $18.9 million during 2005, purchase accounting adjustments to accrued
severance totaling $2.1 million resulting from our decision to terminate our restructuring plans for certain
legacy CDT operations in North America and Europe, and executive succession payments totaling
$6.0 million during the year.

¢ Current liabilities of discontinued operations decreased by $17.2 million from December 31, 2004 primarily
because of severance payments of $6.0 million applied against the severance reserves for our discontinued
BCC — Phoenix, Montrose and Raydex — Skelmersdale operations during 2005 and the liquidation of
trade accounts payable at our discontinued Montrose and Raydex — Skelmersdale operations after those
facilities ceased production early in 2005.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets decreased $78.2 million, or 10.7%, from $733.5 million at December 31, 2004 to
$655.3 million at December 31, 2005 primarily because of decreases in property, plant and equipment, long-
lived assets of discontinued operations, and goodwill.

* Property, plant and equipment (PP&E), as reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, includes the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation of our land and land
improvements, buildings and leasehold improvements and machinery and equipment. PP&E decreased by
$33.9 million. This decrease resulted primarily from 2005 depreciation totaling $37.1 million, disposal of
real estate in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida, Villingen, Germany and Kingston, Canada with an aggregate carrying
value of $7.0 million and equipment impairment in Manchester, United Kingdom and Decin, Czech
Republic totaling $3.3 million. These negative factors were partially offset by 2005 capital expenditures
totaling $23.8 million.

» Long-lived assets of discontinued operations decreased $24.2 million in 2005 primarily because of the
disposal of real estate in Phoenix, Arizona, Skelmersdale, United Kingdom, Auburn, Massachusetts, and
Barberton, Ohio during 2005.

* Goodwill is defined as the unamortized difference between the aggregate purchase price of acquired
businesses taken as a whole and the fair market value of the identifiable net assets of those acquired
businesses. Goodwill decreased by $13.9 million during 2005 primarily because of impairment charges
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totaling $9.5 million recognized during the year related to our decision to exit the United Kingdom
communications cable market.

Capital Structure

2005 2004
December 31, Amount Percent Amount Percent
(In thousands)
Current maturities of long-term debt . . ............ $ 59,000 $ 15,702
Long-termdebt. .. ........... .. ... ... ..... 172,051 232,823
Total debt. . ........ ... ... . . . . . 231,051 24.5% 248,525 23.5%
Stockholders” equity . .. ...t 713,508 75.5% 810,000 76.5%

$944,559  100.0% $1,058,525  100.0%

Our capital structure consists primarily of long-term debt and stockholders’ equity. The capital structure
decreased $114.0 million primarily because of a decrease in stockholders’ equity that resulted mainly from the
impact of shares purchased during the year under our share repurchase program. Also contributing to the decrease in
our capital structure were the negative effect of currency exchange rates on financial statement translation and
payment of the first tranche of 6.92% medium-term notes in the amount of $15.0 million in 2005.

In 1997, we completed a private placement of $75.0 million of unsecured medium-term notes. The notes bear
interest at 6.92% and mature in $15.0 million annual increments in August 2005 through August 2009. We repaid a
$15.0 million tranche of the 1997 placement in August 2005. In 1999, we completed a private placement of $64.0,
$44.0 and $17.0 million in unsecured debt. The notes bear interest at the contractual rates of 7.60%, 7.74%, and
7.95%, respectively, and mature in September 2004, September 2006, and September 2009, respectively. The
agreements for these notes contain various customary affirmative and negative covenants and other provisions,
including restrictions on the incurrence of debt, maintenance of a maximum leverage ratio and minimum net worth.
We were in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2005. We repaid the $64.0 million tranche of the 1999
placement in September 2004.

At December 31, 2005, we had outstanding $110.0 million of unsecured subordinated debentures. The
debentures are convertible into shares of common stock, at a conversion price of $17.859 per share, upon the
occurrence of certain events. The conversion price is subject to adjustment for dividends and other equity
transactions. Holders may surrender their debentures for conversion upon satisfaction of any of the following
conditions: (1) the closing sale price of our common stock is at least 110% of the conversion price for a minimum of
20 days in the 30 trading-day period ending on the trading day prior to surrender; (2) the senior implied rating
assigned to the Company by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. is downgraded to B2 or below and the corporate credit
rating assigned to the Company by Standard & Poor’s is downgraded to B or below; (3) we have called the
debentures for redemption; or (4) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions as specified in the indenture.
As of December 31, 2005, condition (1) had been met, but condition (2) had not been met as the senior implied
rating was Ba2 and the corporate credit rating was BB-. Interest of 4.0% is payable semiannually in arrears, on
January 15 and July 15. The debentures mature on July 15, 2023, if not previously redeemed. We may redeem some
or all of the debentures on or after July 21, 2008, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debentures
plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date. Holders may require us to purchase all or part of their
debentures on July 15, 2008, July 15, 2013, or July 15, 2018, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, in which case the purchase price may be paid
in cash, shares of our common stock or a combination of cash and our common stock, at our option.

We entered into a credit agreement with a group of six banks on October 9, 2003 (Credit Agreement). The
Credit Agreement provided for a secured, variable-rate and revolving credit facility not to exceed $75.0 million
expiring in June 2006. In general, a portion of our assets in the United States, other than real property, secured any
borrowing under the Credit Agreement. The amount of any such borrowing was subject to a borrowing base
comprised of a portion of our receivables and inventories located in the United States. A fixed charge coverage ratio
covenant became applicable if the sum of our excess borrowing availability and unrestricted cash fell below
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$25.0 million. There were no outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2005 under the Credit Agreement. We had
$18.9 million in borrowing capacity available at December 31, 2005.

On January 24, 2006, we entered into a new $165.0 million credit facility with a group of eight banks,
expandable to $200.0 million and secured by our overall cash flow and our assets in the United States. The new
facility replaces the $75.0 million facility discussed above.

We also had unsecured, uncommitted arrangements with nine banks under which we may borrow up to
$4.4 million at prevailing interest rates. At December 31, 2005, we had no outstanding borrowings under these
arrangements.

We will sometimes manage our debt portfolio by using interest rate swap agreements to achieve an overall
desired position of fixed and floating rates. During 2004, we were party to interest rate swap agreements relating to
our 7.60% medium-term notes that matured in September 2004. The swaps converted a notional amount of
$64.0 million from fixed rates to floating rates and also matured in September 2004. These agreements were
designated and qualified as fair value hedges of the associated medium-term notes. Credit and market risk
exposures on these agreements were limited to the net interest differentials. Net interest differentials earned from
the interest rate swaps of $1.3 million pretax, or $.02 per diluted share, were recorded as a reduction to interest
expense for 2004. Net interest differentials earned from the interest rate swaps reduced our average interest rate on
long-term debt by 0.57 percentage points for 2004. We had no interest rate swap agreements outstanding at
December 31, 2005 or during the year then ended.

Stockholders’ equity decreased by $96.4 million, or 11.9%, from 2004 to 2005 because of an increase in
treasury stock as well as deterioration in accumulated other comprehensive income. These decreases were partially
offset by increases in retained earnings and additional paid in capital as well as a decrease in unearned deferred
compensation.

Treasury stock increased by $111.1 million because of shares purchased during the year under our share
repurchase program and the forfeiture of stock by our incentive plan participants in lieu of cash payment of
individual tax liabilities related to share-based compensation. Accumulated other comprehensive income decreased
by $34.7 million primarily because of the negative effect of currency exchange rates on financial statement
translation. Retained earnings increased $38.8 million primarily because of net income of $47.6 million partially
offset by dividends of $9.1 million. Additional paid-in capital increased by $8.4 million primarily as the result of
stock option exercises. Unearned deferred compensation decreased $2.1 million primarily because of current-year
amortization of compensation related to restricted stock awards.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We were not a party to any of the following types of off-balance sheet arrangements at December 31, 2005:

* Guarantee contracts or indemnification agreements that contingently require us to make payments to the
guaranteed or indemnified party based on changes in an underlying asset, liability or equity security of the
guaranteed or indemnified party;

» Guarantee contracts that contingently require us to make payments to the guaranteed party based on another
entity’s failure to perform under an obligating agreement;

* Indirect guarantees under agreements that contingently require us to transfer funds to the guaranteed party
upon the occurrence of specified events under conditions whereby the funds become legally available to
creditors of the guaranteed party and those creditors may enforce the guaranteed party’s claims against us
under the agreement;

» Retained or contingent interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar arrangements that
serve as credit, liquidity or market risk support to that entity for such assets;

* Derivative instruments that are indexed to our common or preferred stock and classified as stockholders’
equity under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; or
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» Material variable interests held by us in unconsolidated entities that provide financing, liquidity, market risk
or credit risk support to us, or engage in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us.

Environmental Remediation

We are subject to numerous federal, state, provincial, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to the
storage, handling, emission and discharge of materials into the environment, including the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Clean Water Act, the Clean Air
Act, the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act and the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act. We believe our existing environmental control procedures are adequate and we have no current plans for
substantial capital expenditures in this area.

A former Belden CDT facility in Shrewsbury, Massachusetts was sold to a third party in 1992, subject to an
indemnification in favor of the buyer for certain preexisting environmental liabilities, principally caused by a
former owner. Contaminated soil has been removed, and groundwater remediation has been suspended. Site closure
documents have been submitted to the state environmental agency for review and approval. We will close the
groundwater system upon approval of the closure application by the state agency.

Our facility in Venlo, The Netherlands was acquired in 1995 from Philips Electronics N.V. Soil and
groundwater contamination was identified on the site as a result of material handling and past storage practices.
Various soil and groundwater assessments are being performed, and the government authorities have advised that
some form of remediation will be necessary. We have recorded a liability for the estimated costs. In addition, we
may need to make capital expenditures to install groundwater treatment equipment; however, we do not expect such
capital expenditures to materially affect our financial position, operating results or cash flows.

We are named as a defendant in the City of Lodi, California’s federal lawsuit along with over 100 other
defendants. The complaint, brought under federal, state and local statutory provisions, alleges that property
previously owned by our predecessor contributed to groundwater pollution in Lodi. There has been no validation or
investigation to demonstrate or deny the City’s claim that the property allegedly owned by our predecessor is a
potential pollution site. An investigation in the area is currently being planned, with a trial date tentatively
scheduled to begin in January 2007. We have recorded a liability for the estimated costs related to resolution of the
matter.

We have been identified as a potentially responsible party (PRP) with respect to two sites designated for
cleanup under CERCLA or similar state laws, which impose liability for cleanup of certain waste sites and for
related natural resource damages without regard to fault or the legality of waste generation or disposal. Persons
liable for such costs and damages generally include the site owner or operator and persons that disposed or arranged
for the disposal of hazardous substances found at those sites. Although CERCLA imposes joint and several liability
on all PRPs, in application, the PRPs typically allocate the investigation and cleanup costs based upon the volume of
waste contributed by each PRP. Settlements can often be achieved through negotiations with the appropriate
environmental agency or the other PRPs. PRPs that contributed less than 1% of the waste are often given the
opportunity to settle as “de minimis” parties, resolving their liability for a particular site. The number of sites with
respect to which we have been identified as a PRP has decreased in part as a result of “de minimis” settlements.

Belden CDT does not own or operate either waste site with respect to which it has been identified as a PRP. In
each case, we are identified as a party that disposed of waste at the site. With respect to one of the sites, our share of
the waste volume is estimated to be less than 1%. At the other site, we contributed less than 10% of the waste.
Although no estimates of cleanup costs have yet been completed for these sites, we believe, based on our
preliminary review and other factors, including our estimated share of the waste volume at the sites, that the costs
relating to these sites will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition or cash
flow. We have recorded a liability to the extent such costs are known and estimable for such sites.

We do not currently anticipate any material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition,
cash flows or competitive position as a result of compliance with federal, state, provincial, local or foreign
environmental laws or regulations, or cleanup costs at the facilities and sites discussed above. However, some risk of
environmental liability and other costs is inherent in the nature of our business, and there can be no assurance that
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material environmental costs will not arise. Moreover, it is possible that future developments, such as increasingly
strict requirements of environmental laws and enforcement policies thereunder, could lead to material costs of
environmental compliance and cleanup by the Company.

Impact of Newly Issued Accounting Standards

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, becomes effective for the
Company on January 1, 2006. Based on the unvested stock option awards outstanding as of December 31, 2005, the
Company expects to record incremental stock-based compensation pretax expense of approximately $1.9 million in
2006 as a result of adopting this standard.

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations, for the year ended December 31, 2005. This Interpretation did not have a materially
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position in 2005; however, there can be no assurance that
application of this Interpretation to future conditional asset retirement obligations would not have a materially
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

The potential effect of these newly issued standards on our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows is discussed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statement and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires us to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the
amounts reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Note 2, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
describes the significant accounting policies and methods used in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.
We consider the accounting policies described below to be our most critical accounting policies. An accounting
policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters
that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably could have been
used, or changes in the accounting estimates that are reasonably likely to occur periodically, could materially
impact the Consolidated Financial Statements. We base our estimates on historical experience or various
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, and the results form the basis for making
judgments about the reported values of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We believe these judgments have
been materially accurate in the past and the basis for these judgments should not change significantly in the future.
Our senior management has discussed the development, selection and disclosure of these estimates with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in the period title to product passes to customers and collectibility of the resulting
accounts receivable is reasonably assured. As part of the revenue recognition process, we determine whether the
resulting accounts receivable are reasonably assured of collection based on a variety of factors, including an
evaluation of whether there has been deterioration in the credit quality of our customers, which could result in us
being unable to collect the accounts receivable. In situations where it is unclear as to whether we will be able to sell
or collect the accounts receivable, we will request alternative financing arrangements, such as prepayment or
commercial letters of credit, from the customer.

Sales Incentive, Product Price Protection and Returned Material Allowances

We grant incentive allowances to selected customers as part of our sales programs. The incentives are
determined based on certain targeted sales volumes. In certain instances, we also grant selected product price
protection allowances. Certain distribution customers are also allowed to return inventory at the customer’s original
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cost, in an amount not to exceed three percent of the prior year’s purchases, in exchange for an order of equal or
greater value.

Sales revenues are reduced when incentives, allowances or returns are anticipated or projected. We reduce
revenues by recording a separate deduction to gross revenues. Future market conditions and product transitions
might require us to take actions to increase customer incentive and product price protection offerings, possibly
resulting in an incremental reduction of revenue at the time the incentive or allowance is offered. Additionally,
certain incentive programs require us to estimate, based on historical experience, the number of customers who will
actually redeem the incentive.

We recognized incentive, price, and returned material allowances totaling $87.4 million, $70.2 million and
$34.6 million as deductions to gross revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The allowances for incentive rebates, price adjustments and returned material at December 31, 2005 and 2004
totaled $37.2 million and $23.2 million, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We evaluate the collectibility of accounts receivable based on the specific identification method. A consid-
erable amount of judgment is required in assessing the realization of accounts receivable, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer and related aging of the past due balances. In order to assess the collectibility of
the accounts receivable, we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition. Through
these evaluations, we may become aware of a situation where a customer may not be able to meet its financial
obligations due to deterioration of its financial viability, credit ratings or bankruptcy. In circumstances where we are
aware of a customer’s inability or unwillingness to pay outstanding amounts, we record a specific reserve for bad
debts against amounts due to reduce the receivable to its estimated collectible balance. There have been occasions
over the past decade where we recognized an expense associated with the rapid collapse of a distributor for which no
specific reserve had been previously established. The reserve requirements are based on the best facts available to us
and are reevaluated and adjusted as additional information is received.

We recognized bad debt expense of $0.7 million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million as a component of SG&A
expenses in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $3.9 million and $5.6 million,
respectively.

Inventory Allowances

We evaluate the realizability of our inventory on a product-by-product basis in light of anticipated sales
demand, technological changes, product life cycle, component cost trends, product pricing and inventory condition.
In circumstances where inventory levels are in excess of anticipated market demand, where inventory is deemed
technologically obsolete or not saleable due to condition or where inventory cost exceeds net realizable value, we
record a charge to cost of goods sold and reduce the inventory to its net realizable value. Revisions to these inventory
adjustments would be required if any of the factors mentioned above differed from our estimates.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had inventory allowances of $16.4 million and $22.7 million,
respectively.

Deferred Tax Assets

We recognize deferred tax assets resulting from tax credit carryforwards, net operating loss carryforwards and
deductible temporary differences between taxable income on our income tax returns and income before taxes under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Deferred tax assets generally represent future tax
benefits to be received when these carryforwards can be applied against future taxable income or when expenses
previously reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements become deductible for income tax purposes. A
deferred tax asset valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. We are required to estimate taxable income in future years or develop tax
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strategies that would enable tax asset realization in each taxing jurisdiction and use judgment to determine whether
or not to record a deferred tax asset valuation allowance for part or all of a deferred tax asset.

We recorded an additional $5.0 million deferred tax asset valuation allowance during 2005 with respect to net
operating losses generated primarily in the Netherlands. As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately
$20.0 million of deferred tax assets related in part to domestic and foreign loss carryforwards, net of valuation
allowances totaling $27.8 million. The realization of these assets is partially based upon estimates of future taxable
income. Based on these estimates, we believe the deferred tax assets net of valuation allowances will be realized.
This determination was based on current projections of future taxable income when taking into consideration the
potential limitations on the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards imposed by Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code (Section 382). Section 382 imposed limitations on a corporation’s ability to utilize its net operating
loss carryforwards if it experiences an ownership change. In general terms, an ownership change results from
transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in the stock of a corporation by more than 50 per-
centage points over a three-year period. We believe the ownership change in connection with the July 15, 2004
Belden CDT merger will have little, if any, impact upon the utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2005, we had $300.7 million of net operating loss carryforwards (as adjusted by the Tax
Agreement between us and our former parent, Cooper Industries Ltd.). Unless otherwise utilized, net operating loss
carryforwards will expire as follows: $11.7 million in 2006, $13.8 million in 2007, $27.4 million between 2008 and
2010, and $155.8 million between 2011 and 2025. Net operating loss carryforwards with an indefinite carryforward
period total $92.0 million. The net operating loss carryforwards expiring in 2006 through 2008 will have an
immaterial impact on the effective tax rate because of deferred tax asset valuation allowances attached to those
losses.

Income Tax Contingencies

Our effective tax rate is based on expected income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available
to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining our effective
tax rate and in evaluating our tax positions. We establish accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the
belief that our tax return positions are fully supported, we believe that certain positions are likely to be challenged
and that our position may not be fully sustained. To the extent we were to prevail in matters for which accruals have
been established or be required to pay amounts in excess of reserves, there could be a material effect on our income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Valuation of Long-Lived Tangible Assets and Amortizable Intangible Assets

We review long-lived tangible assets and amortizable intangible assets to determine whether an event or
change in circumstances indicates the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. We base our evaluation on
such impairment indicators as the nature of the assets, the future economic benefit of the assets and any historical or
future profitability measurements, as well as other external market conditions or factors that may be present. If such
impairment indicators are present or other factors exist that indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable, we determine whether impairment has occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash flows analysis
at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows exist. If impairment has occurred, we recognize a loss for the
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. Fair value is the amount at which the asset
could be bought or sold in a current transaction between a willing buyer and seller other than in a forced or
liquidation sale and can be measured as the asset’s quoted market price in an active market or, where an active
market for the asset does not exist, our best estimate of fair value based on either discounted cash flow analysis or
present value analysis.

The discounted cash flow analyses and present value analyses that we use to estimate the fair value of our long-
lived tangible assets and amortizable intangible assets are dependent on a number of factors including long-term
forecasts of the amounts and timing of overall market growth and our percentage of that market, groupings of assets,
discount rates, terminal growth rates and other variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we
believe to be reasonable, but which are not predictable with precision and therefore are inherently uncertain. Actual
future results could differ from these estimates.
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During 2005, we determined that certain asset groups within the European operations of our Networking
segment were impaired. The applicable assets of the segment’s European operations were impaired due to our
decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable market. We estimated the fair value of the equipment
based on anticipated net proceeds from its sale and recognized an impairment loss of $3.3 million based on the
difference between the carrying value of the equipment and its fair value. This loss was reflected as a component of
operating income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2005.

During 2004, we determined that certain asset groups within both the European operations and the
United States operations of our Electronics segment were impaired. The applicable assets of the segment’s
European operations were impaired due to the exit from certain product lines within those operations. The
applicable assets of the segment’s United States operations were impaired due to excess capacity (primarily as a
result of the combined capacity after the Merger). We estimated the fair value of the equipment based upon
anticipated net proceeds from its sale and recognized an impairment loss of $8.9 million based on the difference
between the carrying value of the equipment and its fair value. This loss was reflected as a component of operating
income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2004.

During 2003, we determined that asset groups within the North American operations of our former Com-
munications segment were impaired. We then estimated fair values using a variety of techniques including
discounted cash flows and comparable market data. Assumptions utilized in estimating fair values under continued
asset use included long-term forecasts of revenue growth, gross margins and capital expenditures. Comparable
market data was obtained from appraisals and other third party valuation estimates. We determined that fair values
of asset groups within the North American operations of our former Communications segment were less than
carrying amounts by $92.4 million. We included this impairment charge in loss from discontinued operations in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2003.

During 2003, we identified certain equipment in a German manufacturing facility within our Electronics
segment that would not be transferred to our other manufacturing facilities after the closure of that facility late in
2003. We estimated the fair value of the equipment based upon anticipated net proceeds from its sale and recognized
an impairment loss of $0.4 million based on the difference between the carrying value of the equipment and its fair
value. This loss was reflected as a component of operating income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for
2003.

Valuation of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets Not Subject to Amortization

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets not subject to
amortization for impairment annually or at other times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate
the carrying values of these assets may no longer be recoverable.

SFAS No. 142 requires that a two-step impairment test be performed on goodwill. In the first step, we compare
the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. We determine the fair value using the income approach.
Under the income approach, we calculate the fair value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated
future cash flows. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that
unit, goodwill is not impaired and we are not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the
reporting unit’s net assets exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then we must perform the second step in order
to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit’s
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment of goodwill has occurred and we recognize an
impairment loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the implied fair value of goodwill as a
component of operating expenses.

The income approach, which we use to estimate the fair value of our reporting units, is dependent on a number
of factors including estimates of future market growth and trends, forecasted revenue and costs, expected periods
the assets will be utilized, appropriate discount rates and other variables. We base our fair value estimates on
assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results
could differ from these estimates.
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SFAS No. 142 requires that an impairment test for an indefinite-lived intangible asset not subject to
amortization consist of a comparison of the fair value of the asset with its carrying amount. If the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss should be recognized in an amount equal to that
excess.

During 2005, we determined that the carrying value of goodwill related to the European reporting unit within
our Networking segment was impaired due to our decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable
market. We estimated the implied fair value of the goodwill and recognized an impairment loss of $9.5 million
based on the difference between the carrying value of the goodwill and its implied fair value. This loss was reflected
as a component of operating income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2005.

During 2005 and 2004, we evaluated the recoverability of the carrying value of our goodwill using discounted
cash flow projections. Based on the discounted cash flow projections, we determined that the carrying value of our
goodwill was recoverable at both December 31, 2005 and 2004.

We believe that if there is little to no improvement during 2006 and beyond from the revenues and profitability
achieved by the European reporting unit within our Electronics segment, future operating results would adversely
affect the discounted future cash flows of those operations and, accordingly, could negatively affect the assessment
of the reporting unit’s goodwill. The carrying value of goodwill, net of accumulated amortization, for the European
reporting unit within our Electronics segment totaled $30.3 million at December 31, 2005.

During 2005 and 2004, we also evaluated the recoverability of the carrying values of our indefinite-lived
intangible assets not subject to amortization. Based on a comparison of the fair values of these assets with their
respective carrying values, we determined that the carrying values of our indefinite-lived intangible assets not
subject to amortization were recoverable at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Our pension and other postretirement benefit costs and obligations are dependent on the various actuarial
assumptions used in calculating such amounts. These assumptions relate to discount rates, salary growth, long-term
return on plan assets, health care cost trend rates and other factors. We base the discount rate assumptions on current
investment yields on high-quality corporate long-term bonds. The salary growth assumptions reflect our long-term
actual experience and future or near-term outlook. Long-term return on plan assets is determined based on historical
portfolio results and management’s expectation of the future economic environment. Our health care cost trend
assumptions are developed based on historical cost data, the near-term outlook and an assessment of likely long-
term trends. Our key assumptions are described in further detail in Note 15, Pension and Other Postretirement
Benefits, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Actual results that differ
from our assumptions are accumulated and, if in excess of the lesser of 10% of the project benefit obligation or the
fair market value of plan assets, amortized over the estimated future working life of the plan participants. While the
actual rate of return on plan assets over the past five years has been less than the assumed rate of return on plan
assets, we believe the assumed rate is a reasonable assumption for the long-term performance of our plan assets.

Business Combination Accounting

The Merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method requires
management to make significant estimates. First, management must determine the cost of the acquired entity based
on the fair value of the consideration paid or the fair value of the net assets acquired, whichever is more clearly
evident. This cost is then allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values
at the Merger consummation date. In addition, management must identify and estimate the fair values of intangible
assets that should be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. Management utilized third party appraisals to assist
in estimating the fair value of tangible PP&E and intangible assets acquired. Our estimations are described in
further detail in Note 3, Belden CDT Merger, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Outlook

We announced in 2005 our decision to exit the United Kingdom communications market when our contract
with British Telecom plc expires in October 2006 or sooner if the customer can arrange another source. We are
actively exploring alternatives for disposition of our Manchester, United Kingdom operation. If unable to arrange a
sale of the operation at an acceptable price, we plan to liquidate the assets and liabilities of the operation. In 2005,
the Manchester, United Kingdom operation generated revenues of $106.5 million and operating income of
$7.4 million. Our 2006 outlook excludes the projected operating results for the Manchester, United Kingdom
operation and, therefore, takes as its baseline 2005 revenues of $1,245.6 million, 2005 operating income of
$97.3 million, and 2005 net income of $53.0 million.

We anticipate relatively strong end markets in both North America and Asia in 2006; however, we expect
somewhat slower growth in Europe. We estimate that our 2006 revenues will increase between 5% and 10%
compared with 2005 baseline revenues due primarily to both sales price increases implemented to offset rising raw
material costs and improved volume.

Management expects improvement in operating income from all parts of the Company — particularly, from
Europe and the North American operations within our Networking segment. Restructuring in Europe is well under
way, and management believes its recent reorganization in North America will help leverage the Company’s
strengths and improve the contribution made to operating income by the North American operations within our
Networking segment. We anticipate operating margins will reflect continued product mix enrichment in the
networking market and will include further migration to higher bandwidth cables, more 10-gigabit projects, and an
increasing proportion of connectivity sales. We will also benefit from the full-year realization of the merger
synergies in 2006. Management expects operating income as a percent of revenues will be between 9.0% and 9.5%
in 2006. This outlook, along with the outlook for diluted income per share, excludes the impact of our adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) effective January 1, 2006.

Management anticipates the Company will generate diluted income from continuing operations per share,
excluding any further restructuring charges, between $1.50 and $1.60 in 2006.

We anticipate funding $33.7 million in pension contributions and $2.7 million in contributions for other
postretirement benefit plans in the upcoming year. We also plan to pay off tranches of both our 1997 and 1999
medium-term notes totaling $59.0 million during 2006. We anticipate we will have sufficient funds to satisfy these
cash requirements.

Management expects that the Company’s effective tax rate for continuing operations in 2006 will be 37.0%.
Because of net operating loss carryforwards and deductible temporary differences, we anticipate that cash payments
of United States income taxes during 2006 will be significantly less than tax expense. Cash payments of income
taxes for foreign jurisdictions will approximate tax expense.

Depreciation and amortization for 2006 are expected to total approximately $37.0 million. Capital expen-
ditures for Belden CDT during 2006 are expected to be approximately $30.0 million.

We have incurred severance charges related to the discontinuation of certain operations and with other actions
intended to reduce costs. The amount of the charges recognized but not funded as of December 31, 2005 is
$12.0 million. Management expects that that all of these charges will be funded in 2006. This will have a negative
effect on cash flow. Management expects that there may be additional restructuring charges (severance and asset
impairment) in future periods that would have a negative effect on both operating results and cash flow.

We anticipate that annual dividends in the aggregate of $.20 per common share ($.05 per common share each
quarter) will be paid to all common stockholders.

On February 7, 2006, we announced organizational changes that we expect will change the segmentation of the
business. We announced that our North American operations will be organized in two groups, Belden Americas
Division and the Specialty Products Division. The heads of these two divisions will report to the Chief Executive
Officer, as will the President of European Operations and the General Manager, Asia/Pacific.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from foreign currency exchange rates, certain
commodity prices, interest rates and credit extended to customers. To manage the volatility relating to exposures,
we net the exposures on a consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For residual exposures, we
sometimes enter into various derivative transactions pursuant to our policies in areas such as counterparty exposure
and hedging practices. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. The terms of such
instruments and the transactions to which they relate generally do not exceed twelve months. Each of these risks is
discussed below.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We manufacture and sell our products in a number of countries throughout the world, and, as a result, are
exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates. The primary purpose of our foreign currency exchange
rate management activities is to manage the volatility associated with foreign currency purchases of materials or
sales of finished product and other assets and liabilities created in the normal course of business. Our foreign
currency exchange rate management strategy involves the use of natural techniques, where possible, such as the
offsetting or netting of like-currency cash flows. Where natural techniques are not possible, we will sometimes use
foreign currency derivatives, typically foreign currency forward contracts, with durations of generally 12 months or
less.

CDT executed a foreign currency swap derivative contract that was assumed by us on the effective date of the
Merger. The contract converted a notional amount of 2.6 million euros into 82.4 million Czech koruny in April
2005. We did not consider the contract to be an effective hedge of its cash flow exposure and, therefore, recorded all
currency gains or losses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as they occurred. We had no other foreign
currency derivatives outstanding at December 31, 2005 and did not employ any other foreign currency derivatives
during the year then ended.

We generally view as long-term our investments in international subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than the United States dollar. As a result, we do not generally use derivatives to manage these net investments. In
terms of foreign currency translation risk, we are exposed primarily to the euro, the British pound and the Canadian
dollar.

Our net foreign currency investment in foreign subsidiaries and affiliates translated into United States dollars
using year-end exchange rates was $294.0 million and $308.8 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Commodity Price Risk

Certain raw materials used by us are subject to price volatility caused by supply conditions, political and
economic variables and other unpredictable factors. The primary purpose of our commodity price management
activities is to manage the volatility associated with purchases of commodities in the normal course of business. We
do not speculate on commodity prices.

We are exposed to price risk related to our purchase of copper used in the manufacture of our products. Our
copper price management strategy involves the use of natural techniques, where possible, such as purchasing copper
for future delivery at fixed prices. Where natural techniques are not possible, we will sometimes use commodity
price derivatives, typically exchange-traded forward contracts, with durations of generally twelve months or less.
We did not have any commodity price derivatives outstanding at December 31, 2005 and did not employ any
commodity price derivatives during the year then ended. The following table presents the physical inventory of
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copper at December 31, 2005 by the amount of pounds held at average cost. The fair value of this inventory as of
December 31, 2005 is also presented.

(In thousands, except
average price)

Pounds on hand. . . . ... ... ... 2,483.2
Weighted average price (perpound). . . ...t $2.3247
Value using weighted average price . ... ... ... $5,772.7
Fair value . . . . . $5,367.4

We are also exposed to price risk related to our purchase of selected commodities derived from petrochemical
feedstocks used in the manufacture of our products. We generally purchase these commodities based upon market
prices established with the vendors as part of the purchase process. Recent trends indicate that pricing of these
commodities may become more volatile due to the increased prices of petrochemical feedstocks as well as the
current threat of terrorist activities. Historically, we have not used commodity financial instruments to hedge prices
for commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks. There is a modest correlation, primarily in our Networking
segment, between costs for commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks and the ultimate selling price of the
product. Exposures to most changes in costs for commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks remain
unprotected.

Interest Rate Risk

We have occasionally managed our debt portfolio by using interest rate swap agreements to achieve an overall
desired position of fixed and floating rates; however we were not a party to any interest rate swap agreements at
December 31, 2005 or during the year then ended. The following table provides information about our financial
instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. The table presents principal cash flows and average
interest rates by expected maturity dates. The table also presents fair values as of December 31, 2005.

Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total Fair Value
(In millions, except rates)

Fixed-rate debt . ............ $15.0 $150 $150 $150 — — $ 60.0 $ 59.3
Average interest rate . . . ... ... 6.92% 692% 692% 692% — —

Fixed-rate debt . . ........... $44.0 — — —  — — $ 440 $ 443
Average interest rate . ........ 7.85% — — —_ - —

Fixed-rate debt . ............ — — —  $170 — — $ 17.0 $ 174
Average interest rate . .. ...... — — — 8.06% — —

Fixed-rate convertible debt . . .. — — — R — $110.0 $110.0 $110.0(1)
Average interest rate . . ....... — — — —  — 4.00%

(1) Our contingently convertible notes traded at an average market price of 146.03 on December 31, 2005. We
believe the premium associated with these notes is attributable to factors other than changes in interest rate.

The fair value of our fixed-rate financial instruments at December 31, 2005 represented 100.0% of the carrying
value of our fixed-rate financial instruments. The aggregate fair value of these same financial instruments was
$135.9 million, or 99.9% of their aggregate carrying value, at December 31, 2004.

Credit Risk
We sell our products to many customers in several markets across multiple geographic areas. The ten largest
customers, primarily the larger distributors and communications companies, constitute in aggregate approximately

42%, 52% and 50% of revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The following table reflects the receivables that represent the only significant concentrations of credit to which
we were exposed at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Historically, these customers generally pay all outstanding
receivables within thirty to sixty days of invoice receipt.

2005 2004
Percent of Net Percent of Net
December 31, Amount Receivables Amount Receivables
(In thousands, except % data)
Anixter International, Inc. . ............... $29,300 15% $23,006 13%
British Telecom plc . .. .................. 21,064 11% 11,746 7%
Graybar Electric Company, Inc. . ........... 13,183 1% 12,971 1%
Total . .o oot $63,502 36% $47,723 27%
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Belden CDT Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Belden CDT Inc. as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Belden CDT Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects
the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Belden CDT Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 8, 2006 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 8, 2006

50



Belden CDT Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... ...

Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,866 and $5,618 at 2005 and 2004,

TESPECHIVELY . . . o o
Inventories, Net . . . . . . . ..o
Deferred inCOME taXeS . . . . o v vt it e
Other CUITENE @SSELS . .« . v v v ot e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Current assets of discontinued Operations . . ... ... ... ...t et e,

Total CUITENt ASSELS. . . . . o ot e e e e e e e e
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation . ............... ... ........
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $12,146 and $12,640 at 2005 and 2004, respectively . . . .

Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $6,634 and $3,434 at 2005 and 2004,

TESPECHIVELY . o o o
Other long-lived assets . . ... ... ..

Long-lived assets of discontinued Operations. . . . ... ... ... uut et

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . .. ... ... L
Current maturities of long-term debt. . . ... ... ... . L
Current liabilities of discontinued operations . . .. .......... ...

Total current liabilities . . . . . . ... oo
Long-term debt . . .. ...
Postretirement benefits other than pensions. . .. ........ ... ...
Deferred inCOMe taXeS. . . . . .. ..ottt
Other long-term liabilities . ... .. ... .. e

MINOTIEY TNEETESE. « . .« v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share — 2,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding . . . .

Common stock, par value $.01 per share — 200,000,000 shares authorized, 50,345,852 and
50,210,576 shares issued at 2005 and 2004, respectively, 42,336,178 and 47,201,404 shares

outstanding at 2005 and 2004, respectively. . . . . . ...
Additional paid-in capital . . . . .. ...
Retained earnings . . . . ... ...t
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss) . .. ............ . .
Unearned deferred compensation . . . ...ttt
Treasury stock, at cost — 8,009,674 and 3,009,172 shares at 2005 and 2004, respectively . . . . . ..

Total stockholders’ equity . . ... ...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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2005

2004

(In thousands, except par
value and number of

shares)
$ 134,640 $ 188,798
198,106 174,554
261,963 227,034
27,845 15911
8,223 11,885
— 19,573
630,777 637,755
304,337 338,247
272,290 286,163
72,459 78,266
6,084 6,460
129 24,330
$1,286,076  $1,371,221
$ 209,031 $ 185,035
59,000 15,702
388 17,541
268,419 218,278
172,051 232,823
33,167 30,089
73,851 45,450
17,166 25,340
7914 9,241
503 502
540,430 531,984
290,870 252,114
(6,881) 27,862
(336) (2,462)
(111,078) —
713,508 810,000
$1,286,076  $1,371,221




Belden CDT Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

REVENUES . . . o o oot e e e $ 1,352,131  $966,174 $ 624,106
Costof sales . ........iiii (1,067,007)  (766,101)  (504,799)

Gross profit . . ... ... 285,124 200,073 119,307
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses . . . ................ (207,124) (151,438) 94,717)
Asset IMpairment . . .. ... .. (12,849) (8,871) (352)
Minimum requirements contract income . .. ................... 3,000 3,000 2,983

Operating inCome . . . . . .o v vttt e 68,151 42,764 27,221
Interest Xpense . . . . ..o vttt (15,032) (14,709) (13,118)
Interest INCOME. . . . . . . oot e 4,941 1,828 547
Minority interest in €arnings. . . ... ... ...ttt (699) (371) —
Gain on disposal of assets. . . .......... ... — 1,732 —

Income from continuing operations before taxes .............. 57,361 31,244 14,650
Income tax eXPense . . . .. ...ttt (24,719) (15,891) (4,493)

Income from continuing operations . . .. .................... 32,642 15,353 10,157
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of $3,261,

$17,536 and $40,371, respectively . . .. ............ ... (247) (417) (71,768)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax expense of

$8,529 and $142, respectively . .. ....... ... ... 15,163 253 —

Net income (10SS) . . . oottt e $ 47558 $ 15,189 $ (61,611)
Weighted average number of common shares and equivalents:

Basic . ... 45,655 35,404 25,158

Diluted. . . ... 52,122 38,724 25,387
Basic income (loss) per share:

Continuing OPErationS . . . . ..ottt $ 72 $ 43 8 40

Discontinued operations . .. ............. ... 01 (.01) (2.85)

Disposal of discontinued operations. . . ..................... 33 .01 —

Net income (10SS) . . ... oottt 1.04 43 (2.45)
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Continuing Operations . . . . . ...v vttt ni e $ .68 $ 43 3 40

Discontinued operations . ................iiiii. .. 01 (.01) (2.83)

Disposal of discontinued operations. . .. .................... 29 .01 —

Net income (I0SS) . . . ..o vttt .96 43 (2.43)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Belden CDT Inc.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

Years Ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome (I0SS) . . . . oottt

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . . . ............ .. ...
Asset impairment charges . . ... ........ ... ... . ...
Deferred income tax expense (benefit). ... ...................
Pension funding in excess of pension expense . ................
Stock-based compensation eXpense . .. ...
Retirement savings plan contributions paid in stock . ... .........
Gain on disposal of tangible assets . ........................

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of
currency exchange rate changes and acquired businesses:

Receivables. . . ... ... .. . . .. e
Inventories . .. ... ... .. .. ...
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ..................
Current income taxes, Net . . . .. ..ot v ittt
Other assets and liabilities, net. . .. .......... .. .. .. .......

Net cash provided by operating activities . . ...............

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets . .....................
Capital expenditures . . . . ...
Cash used to acquire a business . ............................

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities .........

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments under share repurchase program......................
Payments under borrowing arrangements. . . .. ..................
Cash dividends paid . .. ... ...
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ......................

Net cash used for financing activities . . .. ................

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash
qUIVAIENES . . . .
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. ................

Cash received from merger with Cable Design Technologies
COrporation . . .. ..ottt

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .. ...................
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . . . .......................

Supplemental cash flow information:
Income tax refunds received . . . ....... ... ... .. .. ...
Income taxes paid . .......... ...
Interest paid, net of amount capitalized . . ......................

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
$ 47,558 $ 15,189  $(61,611)
40,470 30,714 35,765
12,849 8,871 92,752
14,127 1,694 (34,206)
(8,157) (4,876) (1,432)
3,009 3,824 3,799
— 2,279 3,739
(15,666) (3,348) —
(20,683) 11,665 20,609
(41,822)  (13,876) 42,031
27,084 (22,411)  (27,303)
4,012 397 4,403
(13,632) 10,840 17,842
49,149 40,962 96,388
51,541 89,007 246
(23,789)  (15,889)  (16,738)
— (6,196) —
27,752 66,922 (16,492)
(109,429) — —
(17,474)  (66,660) —
9,116) (7,292) (5,083)
6,897 4,375 170
(129,122)  (69,577) (4,913)
(1,937) 4,630 2,377
(54,158) 42,937 717,360
— 50,906 —
188,798 94,955 17,595
$ 134,640 $188,798  $ 94,955
$ 8924 $ 3595 $18,614
(11,071) (5,773) (13,630)
(14,857) (15,383) (14,543)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Belden CDT Inc.

Consolidated Stockholders’ Equity Statements

Accumulated
Unearned Other
Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Deferred Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Stock Compensation Income (Loss) Total
(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2002 . .. ... $262 $ 40,917  $310910 $ (17,011) $(2,014) $(17,859) $ 315,205
Netloss ... ... . (61,611) (61,611)
Foreign currency translation . ....... 24,650 24,650
Minimum pension liability, net of

$0.8 million deferred tax benefit . . . . 670 670

Comprehensive loss . .. ......... (36,291)
Exercise of stock options . . ........ 1 169 170
Stock compensation. . .. .. ........ (560) 1,896 (1,188) 148
Retirement savings plan contributions . . (713) 4,452 3,739
Stock purchase plan settlements . . . . . . (623) 2,772 2,149
Amortization of unearned deferred

compensation . . .............. 1,502 1,502
Cash dividends (8$.20 per common

share) . .. ... ... .. ... . (5,082) (5,082)
Balance at December 31, 2003 . ... .. 262 39,022 244217 (7,722) (1,700) 7,461 281,540
Netincome . .................. 15,189 15,189
Foreign currency translation . . ...... 24,233 24,233
Minimum pension liability, net of

$1.7 million deferred tax benefit . . . . (3,832) (3,832)

Comprehensive income . . . .. ... .. 35,590
Exercise of stock options . . ........ 2 4,384 121 4,507
Stock compensation. . .. .......... 1,811 1,430 (3,881) (640)
Retirement savings plan contributions . . 477 1,802 2,279
Stock purchase plan settlements . . . . . . 184 54 238
Forfeiture of stock by incentive plan

participants in lieu of cash payment

of individual tax liabilities related to

share-based compensation . . . .. ... (270) (270)
Amortization of unearned deferred

compensation . . .............. 3,645 3,645
Cash dividends ($.20 per common

share) .. ................... (7,292) (7,292)
Merger between Belden and CDT. . .. . 238 486,106 4,585 (526) 490,403
Balance at December 31, 2004 . ... .. 502 531,984 252,114 — (2,462) 27,862 810,000
Netincome . ... ............... 47,558 47,558
Foreign currency translation . ....... (34,144) (34,144)
Minimum pension liability, net of

$1.0 million deferred tax benefit . . . . (599) (599

Comprehensive income . . . .. ... .. 12,815
Exercise of stock options . . ........ 1 6,991 (95) 6,897
Stock compensation. . .. .......... 1,069 (186) 78 961
Forfeiture of stock by incentive plan

participants in lieu of cash payment

of individual tax liabilities related to

share-based compensation . . ... ... (1,368) (1,368)
Share repurchase program. . ........ (109,429) (109,429)
Amortization of unearned deferred

compensation . . .. ............ 2,048 2,048
Cash dividends ($.20 per common

share) ... ........ ... ... ..., 9,116) 9,116)
Other . ...... ... ... ... ....... 386 314 700
Balance at December 31, 2005 . ... .. $503 $540,430  $290,870  $(111,078) $ (336) $ (6,881) $ 713,508

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

54



Belden CDT Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Basis of Presentation
Business Description

Belden CDT Inc. (the Company) designs, manufactures and markets high-speed electronic cables and
connectivity products for the specialty electronics and data networking markets. The Company focuses on segments
of the worldwide cable and connectivity market that require highly differentiated, high-performance products and
adds value through design, engineering, manufacturing excellence, product quality, and customer service. The
Company has manufacturing facilities in North America and Europe.

Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include Belden CDT Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. The
Company, formerly called Cable Design Technologies Corporation (CDT), merged with Belden Inc. (Belden) and
changed its name to Belden CDT Inc. on July 15, 2004. The merger was treated as a reverse acquisition under the
purchase method of accounting. Belden was considered the acquiring enterprise for financial reporting purposes.
The results of operations of CDT are included in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations from July 16,
2004.

All affiliate accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Translation

For international operations with functional currencies other than the United States dollar, assets and liabilities
are translated at current exchange rates; income and expenses are translated using average exchange rates. Resulting
translation adjustments, as well as gains and losses from certain affiliate transactions, are reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Exchange gains and losses on
transactions are included in operating income.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant estimates are made in regard to receivables collectibility, inventory valuation, realization of deferred tax
assets, valuation of long-lived tangible assets, valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, calculation of pension
and other postretirement benefits expense, and valuation of acquired businesses.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2004 and 2003 Consolidated Financial Statements in order to
conform to the 2005 presentation.
Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies cash on hand and deposits in banks, including commercial paper, money market
accounts and other investments with an original maturity of three months or less, that the Company may hold from
time to time, as cash and cash equivalents.
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Receivables and Related Allowances

The Company classifies amounts owed to the Company and due within twelve months, arising from the sale of
goods or services in the normal course of business, as current receivables. Receivables due after twelve months are
classified as other long-lived assets.

The Company evaluates the collectibility of receivables based on the specific identification method. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the realization of receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer and related aging of the past due balances. In order to assess the collectibility of
the receivables, the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition. Through
these evaluations, the Company may become aware of a situation where a customer may not be able to meet its
financial obligations due to deterioration of its financial viability, credit ratings or bankruptcy. In circumstances
where the Company is aware of a customer’s inability or unwillingness to pay outstanding amounts, the Company
records a specific reserve for bad debts to reduce the receivable to its estimated collectible balance.

The Company recognized bad debt expense of $0.7 million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $3.9 million and
$5.6 million, respectively.

The Company grants incentive allowances to selected customers as part of its sales programs. The incentives
are determined based on certain targeted sales volumes. In certain instances, the Company also grants selected
product price protection allowances. Certain distribution customers are also allowed to return inventory at the
customer’s original cost, in an amount not to exceed three percent of the prior year’s purchases, in exchange for an
order of equal or greater value. Sales revenues are reduced when incentives, allowances or returns are anticipated or
projected. The Company reduces revenues by recording a separate deduction to gross revenues. Future market
conditions and product transitions might require the Company to take actions to increase customer incentive and
product price protection offerings, possibly resulting in an incremental reduction of revenue at the time the
incentive or allowance is offered. Additionally, certain incentive programs require the Company to estimate, based
on historical experience, the number of customers who will actually redeem the incentive.

The Company recognized incentive, price, and returned material allowances totaling $87.4 million, $70.2 mil-
lion and $34.6 million as deductions to gross revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The allowances for incentive rebates, price adjustments and returned material at December 31, 2005 and 2004
totaled $37.2 million and $23.2 million, respectively.

Inventories and Related Reserves

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company determines the cost of all raw materials,
work-in-process and finished goods inventories by the first in, first out method. Cost components of inventories
include direct labor, applicable production overhead and amounts paid to suppliers of materials and products as well
as freight costs and, when applicable, duty costs to import the materials and products.

The Company evaluates the realizability of its inventory on a product-by-product basis in light of anticipated
sales demand, technological changes, product life cycle, component cost trends, product pricing and inventory
condition. In circumstances where inventory levels are in excess of anticipated market demand, inventory is deemed
technologically obsolete or not saleable due to condition or inventory cost exceeds net realizable value, the
Company records a charge to cost of goods sold and reduces the inventory to its net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from ten to forty years for buildings, five to twelve years for
machinery and equipment and five years for business information systems. Construction in process reflects amounts
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incurred for the configuration and build-out of property, plant and equipment and for property, plant and equipment
not yet placed into service. Maintenance and repairs — both planned major activities and less-costly, ongoing
activities — are charged to expense as incurred. The Company capitalizes interest costs associated with the
construction of capital assets for business operations and amortizes the costs over the assets’ useful lives.

The Company reviews property, plant and equipment to determine whether an event or change in circum-
stances indicates the carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company bases its evaluation on
such impairment indicators as the nature of the assets, the future economic benefit of the assets and any historical or
future profitability measurements, as well as other external market conditions or factors that may be present. If such
impairment indicators are present or other factors exist that indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, the Company determines whether impairment has occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash
flow analysis at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows exist. If impairment has occurred, the Company
recognizes a loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. Fair value is the
amount at which the asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between a willing buyer and seller other
than in a forced or liquidation sale and can be measured as the asset’s quoted market price in an active market or,
where an active market for the asset does not exist, the Company’s best estimate of fair value based on either
discounted cash flow analysis or present value analysis.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets consist of (a) definite-lived assets subject to amortization such as patents,
favorable customer contracts, customer relationships and backlog, and (b) indefinite-lived assets not subject to
amortization such as goodwill and trademarks. Amortization of the definite-lived intangible assets is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from less than one year for backlog to
in excess of twenty-five years for customer relationships.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment annually or at other times if events have occurred or
circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States require that a two-step impairment test be performed on goodwill.
In the first step, the Company compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. The Company
determines the fair value using the income approach. Under the income approach, the Company calculates the fair
value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. If the fair value of the reporting
unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets including goodwill assigned to that unit, goodwill is not impaired
and the Company is not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the reporting unit’s net assets
including goodwill exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then the Company must perform the second step in
order to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit’s
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment of goodwill has occurred and the Company recognizes
an impairment loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the implied fair value of goodwill as a
component of operating income.

The Company also evaluates intangible assets not subject to amortization for impairment annually or at other
times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying values of those assets may no longer
be recoverable. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States require that an impairment test for an
intangible asset not subject to amortization consist of a comparison of the fair value of the asset with its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss should be recognized in an
amount equal to that excess.

The Company reviews intangible assets subject to amortization whenever an event or change in circumstances
indicates the carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company tests intangible assets subject to
amortization for impairment and estimates their fair values using the same assumptions and techniques that were
employed for property, plant and equipment.
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Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company’s pension and other postretirement benefit costs and obligations are dependent on the various
actuarial assumptions used in calculating such amounts. These assumptions relate to discount rates, salary growth,
long-term return on plan assets, health care cost trend rates and other factors. The Company bases the discount rate
assumptions on current investment yields on high-quality corporate long-term bonds. The salary growth assump-
tions reflect the Company’s long-term actual experience and future or near-term outlook. Long-term return on plan
assets is determined based on historical portfolio results and management’s expectation of the future economic
environment. The Company’s health care cost trend assumptions are developed based on historical cost data, the
near-term outlook and an assessment of likely long-term trends. Actual results that differ from the Company’s
assumptions are accumulated and, if in excess of the lesser of 10% of the project benefit obligation or the fair market
value of plan assets, amortized over the estimated future working life of the plan participants.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss), foreign currency translation adjustments and
minimum pension liability adjustments, and is presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity.

Business Combination Accounting

The merger of Belden and CDT on July 15, 2004 was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The purchase method requires management to make significant estimates. First, management must determine the
cost of the acquired entity based on the fair value of the consideration paid or the fair value of the net assets acquired,
whichever is more clearly evident. This cost is then allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their estimated fair values at the business combination date. In addition, management must identify and estimate the
fair values of intangible assets that are recognized as assets apart from goodwill. Management utilized third party
appraisals to assist in estimating the fair value of CDT tangible property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
acquired in the 2004 merger of Belden and CDT.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in the period title to product passes to customers and collectibility of the resulting
accounts receivable is reasonably assured. As part of the revenue recognition process, the Company determines
whether the resulting accounts receivable are reasonably assured of collection based on a variety of factors,
including an evaluation of whether there has been deterioration in the credit quality of its customers, which could
result in the Company being unable to collect the accounts receivable. In situations where it is unclear as to whether
the Company will be able to sell or collect the accounts receivable, the Company will request alternative financing
arrangements, such as prepayment or commercial letters of credit, from the customer.

The Company grants incentive allowances to selected customers as part of its sales programs. The incentives
are determined based on certain targeted sales volumes. In certain instances, the Company also grants selected
product price protection allowances. Certain distribution customers are also allowed to return inventory at the
customer’s original cost, in an amount not to exceed three percent of the prior year’s purchases, in exchange for an
order of equal or greater value. Sales revenues are reduced when incentives, allowances or returns are anticipated or
projected. The Company reduces revenues by recording a separate deduction to gross revenues.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company includes fees earned on the shipment of product to customers in revenues and includes costs
incurred on the shipment of product to customers as cost of sales. Certain handling costs primarily incurred at the

58



Belden CDT Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Company’s distribution centers totaling $7.1 million, $8.3 million and $6.5 million were included in selling, general
and administrative (SG&A) expenses for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are charged to SG&A expenses as incurred. Expenditures for research
and development were $9.6 million, $8.5 million and $7.9 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Environmental Remediation and Compliance

Environmental remediation costs are accrued, on an undiscounted basis, based on estimates of known
environmental remediation exposures developed in consultation with the Company’s environmental consultants
and legal counsel. Environmental compliance costs include maintenance and operating costs with respect to
ongoing monitoring programs. Such costs are expensed as incurred. Capitalized environmental costs are generally
depreciated over a 15-year life.

The Company evaluates the range of potential costs to remediate environmental sites, which can vary
significantly depending on the final determination of the extent of environmental remediation required, the method
of remediation required, the Company’s share of costs if other parties are involved, and other factors. The Company
records a liability for environmental remediation costs when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the cost can
be reasonably estimated.

Share-Based Payments

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company sponsored six stock compensation plans — the Belden 2003 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, the Belden 1994 Incentive Plan, the CDT 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan, the
CDT 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan, the CDT Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan and the CDT
Supplemental Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (together, the Incentive Plans) as well as two employee
stock purchase plans — the Belden 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the Belden 1994 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (together, the Stock Purchase Plans).

The Belden 1994 Incentive Plan expired by its own terms in October 2003 and no future awards are available
under this plan. Although neither plan has been terminated, there are also no future awards available under either the
CDT 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan or the CDT Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan. The Belden
1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan expired by its own terms in September 2003 and no future purchase rights are
available under this plan. The Belden Inc. 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan was terminated on July 15, 2004.
Options and stock purchase rights granted under these plans affected pro forma operating results for 2004 and 2003.

Under the Incentive Plans, certain employees of the Company are eligible to receive awards in the form of
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock grants and performance shares. Through December 31,
2005, the Company accounted for stock options using the intrinsic value method. The Company accounts for
restricted stock grants as fixed-plan awards since both the aggregate number of awards issued and the aggregate
amount to be paid by the participants for the common stock is known. Compensation related to the grants is
measured as the difference between the market price of the Company’s common stock at the grant date and the
amount to be paid by the participants for the common stock. Compensation costs associated with each restricted
stock grant are amortized to expense over the grant’s vesting period.

Under the Stock Purchase Plans, eligible employees received the right to purchase a specified amount of the
Company’s common stock. Under the Belden 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, participants purchased
common stock at the lesser of 85% of the fair market value on the offering date or 85% of the fair market value
on the exercise date. Under the Belden 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, participants purchased common stock
at the lesser of 85% of the fair market value on the offering date or 100% of the fair market value on the exercise
date. The Company accounted for these purchase rights using the intrinsic value method.
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The pro forma effect on operating results of calculating the Company’s stock compensation using the fair value
method is as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003

(In thousands, except,
per share amounts)

As reported

Stock-based employee compensation cost, net of tax ......... $ 1,889 $ 2,128 $ 926
Netincome (I0SS) . . oo vttt e e 47,558 15,189 (61,611)
Basic net income (loss) per share ....................... 1.04 43 (2.45)
Diluted net income (loss) per share . . .................... .96 43 (2.43)
Pro forma
Stock-based employee compensation cost, net of tax . ........ $ 2357 $ 4515 $ 2,099
Netincome (10SS) . . .. ...t 47,090 12,802 (62,784)
Basic net income (loss) per share ....................... 1.03 .36 (2.50)
Diluted net income (loss) per share . . .................... .96 .36 (2.47)

The fair value of common stock options issued under the Incentive Plans and the fair value of stock purchase
rights issued under the Stock Purchase Plans were estimated at their respective date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model.

The Company did not grant stock purchase rights in 2005 or 2004. The weighted average per share fair value of
stock options and stock purchase rights granted by the Company and the weighted average assumptions used to
determine the fair values of the stock options and stock purchase rights granted are presented in the following table.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Fair value of stock options granted, per share. . .................. $ 620 $474 $ 158
Fair value of stock purchase rights granted, per share.............. — — 5.98
Dividend yield ... ....... .. .. 410%  631%  6.35%
Expected volatility . .......... . . . .. 37.76% 39.53% 41.02%
Expected option life (inyears). . ......... ... ... ... ... . . . ... 6.78 6.31 4.31
Risk free interest rate .. ......... ... .. ... ... 436%  3.779%  2.46%

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed to estimate the fair value of market-traded options.
Incentive stock options and stock purchase rights have certain characteristics, including vesting periods and non-
transferability, which market-traded options do not possess. Due to the significant effect that changes in assump-
tions and differences in option and purchase right characteristics might have on the fair values of stock options and
stock purchase rights, the models may not accurately reflect the fair values of the stock options and stock purchase
rights.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided based on earnings reported for financial statement purposes. The provision for
income taxes differs from the amounts currently payable to taxing authorities because of the recognition of revenues
and expenses in different periods for income tax purposes than for financial statement purposes. Income taxes are
provided as if operations in all countries, including the United States, were stand-alone businesses filing separate
tax returns. The Company has determined that undistributed earnings from its international subsidiaries will not be
remitted to the United States in the foreseeable future and, therefore, no additional provision for United States taxes
has been made on foreign earnings.
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The Company recognizes deferred tax assets resulting from tax credit carryforwards, net operating loss
carryforwards and deductible temporary differences between taxable income on its income tax returns and pretax
income under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Deferred tax assets generally represent
future tax benefits to be received when these carryforwards can be applied against future taxable income or when
expenses previously reported in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements become deductible for income
tax purposes.

The Company’s effective tax rate is based on expected income, statutory tax rates and tax planning
opportunities available to the Company in the various jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Significant
judgment is required in determining the Company’s effective tax rate and in evaluating its tax positions. The
Company establishes accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the belief that the Company’s tax return
positions are fully supported, the Company believes that certain positions are likely to be challenged and that the
Company’s position may not be fully sustained. To the extent the Company was to prevail in matters for which
accruals have been established or be required to pay amounts in excess of reserves, there could be a material effect
on the Company’s income tax provisions or benefits in the period in which such determination is made.

Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various market risks such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
commodity pricing and interest rates. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, the Company nets the
exposures on a consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets. For residual exposures, the Company
sometimes enters into various derivative transactions pursuant to the Company’s policies in areas such as
counterparty exposure and hedging practices. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for
trading purposes. The terms of such instruments and the transactions to which they relate generally do not exceed
twelve months.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Management

The Company manufactures and sells its products in a number of countries throughout the world, and, as a
result, is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates. The primary purpose of the Company’s foreign
currency exchange rate management activities is to manage the volatility associated with foreign currency
purchases of materials or sales of finished product and other assets and liabilities created in the normal course
of business. The Company’s foreign currency exchange rate management strategy involves the use of natural
techniques, where possible, such as the offsetting or netting of like-currency cash flows. Where natural techniques
are not possible, the Company will sometimes use foreign currency derivatives, typically foreign currency forward
contracts, with durations of generally 12 months or less.

CDT executed a foreign currency swap derivative contract that was assumed by the Company on the effective
date of the Merger. The contract converted a notional amount of 2.6 million euros into 82.4 million Czech koruny in
April 2005. The Company did not consider the contract to be an effective hedge of its cash flow exposure and
therefore, reported the resulting net currency translation loss of less than $0.1 million in cost of sales. The Company
had no foreign currency derivatives outstanding at December 31, 2005 and did not employ any other foreign
currency derivatives during the year then ended.

The Company generally views as long-term its investments in international subsidiaries with functional
currencies other than the United States dollar. As a result, the Company does not generally use derivatives to
manage these net investments. In terms of foreign currency translation risk, the Company is exposed primarily to the
euro, the British pound and the Canadian dollar.
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Commodity Price Management

Certain raw materials used by the Company are subject to price volatility caused by supply conditions, political
and economic variables and other unpredictable factors. The primary purpose of the Company’s commodity price
management activities is to manage the volatility associated with purchases of commodities in the normal course of
business.

The Company is exposed to price risk related to its purchase of copper used in the manufacture of its products.
The Company’s copper price management strategy involves the use of natural techniques, where possible, such as
purchasing copper for future delivery at fixed prices. Where natural techniques are not possible, the Company will
sometimes use commodity price derivatives, typically exchange-traded forward contracts, with durations of
generally twelve months or less.

The Company did not have any commodity price derivatives outstanding at December 31, 2005 and did not
employ commodity price derivatives during the year then ended.

The Company is also exposed to price risk related to its purchase of selected commodities derived from
petrochemical feedstocks used in the manufacture of its products. The Company generally purchases these
commodities based upon market prices established with the vendors as part of the purchase process. Pricing of
these commodities has become more volatile due to the increased prices of petrochemical feedstocks as well as the
current threat of terrorist activities. Historically, the Company has not used commodity financial instruments to
hedge prices for these commodities. There is a modest correlation, primarily in portions of the Networking segment,
between costs for commodities derived from petrochemical feedstocks and the ultimate selling price of the product.
Exposures to most changes in costs for these commodities remain unprotected.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company has occasionally managed its debt portfolio by using interest rate swap agreements to achieve an
overall desired position of fixed and floating rates. The Company did not have any interest rate derivatives
outstanding at December 31, 2005 and did not employ interest rate derivatives during the year then ended.

Impact of Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123(R), Shared-
Based Payments, which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation costs relating
to share-based payment transactions to be calculated using the fair value method presented in SFAS No. 123 and
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The pro forma disclosure previously permitted under
SFAS No. 123 will no longer be an acceptable alternative to recognition of expenses in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective January 1, 2006 for the Company. The Company measured compensation
costs related to share-based payments using the intrinsic value method under APB No. 25, as allowed by
SFAS No. 123, and provides disclosure in the section entitled “Share-Based Payments” of Note 2, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements as to the effect on operating results of
calculating its stock compensation using the fair value method presented in SFAS No. 123. The Company is
required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 123(R)
prospectively for awards of stock based compensation granted after that date and for the unvested portion of
outstanding awards at that date. Based on the unvested stock option awards outstanding as of December 31, 2005,
the Company expects to record incremental stock-based compensation pretax expense of approximately $1.9 mil-
lion in 2006 as a result of adopting this standard.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations, which clarifies that the term “conditional asset retirement obligation” as used in SFAS No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in

62



Belden CDT Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

which the timing or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control
of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists
about the timing or method of settlement. An entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a
conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The fair value of
a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized when incurred — generally upon
acquisition, construction, or development, or through the normal operation of the asset. Uncertainty about the
timing or method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be factored into the measurement
of the liability when sufficient information exists. The Company adopted FIN No. 47 for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This Interpretation did not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position in 2005.

Note 3: Belden CDT Merger

Belden and CDT entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 4, 2004 (the Merger
Agreement), pursuant to which Belden merged with and became a wholly owned subsidiary of CDT (the Merger)
on July 15, 2004. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, 25.6 million shares of Belden common stock, par value $.01
per share, were exchanged for 25.6 million shares of CDT common stock, par value $.01 per share, and CDT
changed its name to Belden CDT Inc.

Belden and CDT each believed the Merger was in the best interests of its respective stockholders because, as a
result of the Merger, the long-term value of an investment in the combined company would likely be superior to the
long-term value of an investment in either stand-alone company. In deciding to consummate the Merger, Belden and
CDT considered various factors, including the following:

» The anticipated cost savings and synergies to be available to Belden CDT resulting from its ability to identify
low-cost sources for materials, eliminate duplicative costs of being separate public companies, consolidate
manufacturing facilities and access each legacy company’s technology;

* The opportunity to create an electronic cable company with strong earnings before income taxes, depre-
ciation and amortization;

* The potential to market Belden CDT’s products and businesses across a larger customer base;

* The anticipated increase in market liquidity and capital markets access resulting from a larger equity base;
* The increased visibility of Belden CDT to analysts and investors;

* Belden CDT’s anticipated better access to lower cost manufacturing facilities; and

* The attractive degree of financial leverage of Belden CDT.

The Merger included the following significant related transactions:

* CDT effected a one-for-two reverse split of its common stock immediately prior to the Merger;

* Belden cancelled approximately 0.3 million shares of its common stock held in treasury on July 15, 2004;

e The Company granted retention and integration awards to certain of its executive officers and other key
employees totaling $7.9 million. Awards paid in cash and restricted stock will be distributed in three
installments — one-third on the effective date of the Merger and one third each on the first and second
anniversaries of the effective date of the Merger. The Company recognized approximately $1.6 million and
$3.8 million of compensation expense during 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to these awards; and

e The Company recognized $2.9 million and $26.8 million of restructuring and backlog amortization expenses
in 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the Merger.
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After the Merger consummation on July 15, 2004, the Company had approximately 46.6 million shares of
common stock outstanding. On that date, the former CDT stockholders and former Belden stockholders respec-
tively owned approximately 45% and 55% of the Company.

The Merger was treated as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of accounting. Belden was
considered the acquiring enterprise for financial reporting purposes because Belden’s owners as a group retained or
received the larger portion of the voting rights in the Company and Belden’s senior management represented a
majority of the senior management of the Company.

The cost to acquire CDT was $490.7 million and consisted of the exchange of common stock discussed above,
change of control costs for legacy CDT management and costs incurred by Belden related directly to the
acquisition. The purchase price was established primarily through the negotiation of the share exchange ratio.
The share exchange ratio was intended to value both Belden and CDT so that neither company paid a premium over
equity market value for the other. The Company established a new accounting basis for the assets and liabilities of
CDT based upon the fair values thereof as of the Merger date.

The Company initially recognized goodwill of $203.0 million related to the Merger at December 31, 2004. The
Company increased goodwill related to the Merger by $0.6 million during 2005 to $203.6 million at the same time
the carrying costs of certain tangible assets held for sale decreased to the amount of proceeds received upon their
disposition and accrued severance and other merger-related liabilities increased based on finalization of the costs
necessary to complete restructuring, facility rationalization, and other merger-related activities.

For financial reporting purposes, the results of operations of CDT are included in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations from July 16, 2004.

The Company assigned the following fair values to each major asset and liability caption of CDT as of the
July 15, 2004 effective date of the Merger.

As of
July 15, 2004

(In millions)

Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ... ... e $ 50.4
Receivables. . . ... e 79.5
INVENLOIICS . . . o ottt 114.3
Other Current @ssetS . . . . . ..ottt tt ettt e e e e e e e 24.4
Current assets of discontinued Operations . . . .. ...« ittt 28.5
Property, plant and equipment . . .. ... ... 169.2
GoodWill. . .o 203.6
Other intangible assets. . .. ... ... 79.1
Other long-lived assets . ... ...ttt 20.9
Long-lived assets of discontinued operations . ..................c..ouueeonn... 13.9
TOtal ASSELS . . o . vttt e $783.8
Current labilities . . ... ... .. $ 84.0
Current liabilities of discontinued operations . ........................ooo.... 18.5
Long-term debt . . . . ... 111.0
Other postretirement benefits liabilities ............. . ... .. ... ... ...... 20.8
Other long-term liabilities . . . ... ... ... e 44.2
MINOTity INTEIESt . . . o o v vttt ettt et e e e e e e e e e 14.6
Total Habilities . . ... ..ot $293.1
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Goodwill and other intangible assets reflected above were determined by management to meet the criterion for
recognition apart from tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed and include the following:

Estimated Amortization
As of July 15, 2004 Fair Value Period
(In millions) (In years)
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Customer relations . . ........ ottt $ 549 25.6
Developed technologies. . .. ......... ... 6.0 20.0
Favorable contracts. . .. ........ ... ... ... . . . . . . .. 1.1 35
Backlog . . ..o 2.0 0.8
Total intangible assets subject to amortization ............... 64.0
Intangible assets not subject to amortization:
Goodwill .. ... 203.6
Trademarks . .......... ... . ... 15.1
Total intangible assets not subject to amortization. . ........... 218.7
Total intangible assets . . ... ..ottt $282.7
Weighted average amortization period. . .. ....................... 24.1

Goodwill of $55.5 million was assigned to the Electronics segment. The residual goodwill of $148.1 million
was not assigned to a specific segment since management believed it benefited the entire Company; therefore, it was
recognized in Finance and Administration (F&A) in the Company’s segment information. None of the goodwill is
deductible for tax purposes.

Trademarks have been determined by management to have indefinite lives and are not being amortized, based
on management’s expectation that the trademarked products will generate cash flows for the Company for an
indefinite period. Management expects to maintain use of trademarks on existing products and introduce new
products in the future that will also display the trademarks, thus extending their lives indefinitely.

The amortizable intangible assets reflected in the table above were determined by management to have finite
lives. The useful life for the developed technologies intangible asset was based on the remaining lives of the related
patents. The useful life for the customer base intangible asset was based on management’s forecasts of customer
turnover. The useful life for the favorable contracts intangible asset was based on the remaining terms of the
contracts. The useful life of the backlog intangible asset was based on management’s estimate of the remaining
useful life based on when the ordered items would ship.

These amortizable intangible assets are being amortized over their remaining useful lives on a straight-line
basis. Annual amortization expense for these intangible assets was $2.7 million and $3.3 million in 2004 and 2005,
respectively. The Company expects to recognize annual amortization expense of $2.9 million in both 2006 and 2007
and approximately $2.6 million thereafter.

Belden CDT’s consolidated results of operations for 2004 include the results of operations of the CDT entities
from July 16, 2004. The following table presents pro forma consolidated results of operations for Belden CDT for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 as though the Merger had been completed as of the beginning of each
period. This pro forma information is intended to provide information regarding how Belden CDT might have
looked if the Merger had occurred as of the dates indicated. The amounts for the CDT entities included in this pro
forma information for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are based on the historical results of the CDT
entities and, therefore, may not be indicative of the actual results of the CDT entities when operated as part of
Belden CDT. Moreover, the pro forma information does not reflect all of the changes that may result from the
Merger, including, but not limited to, challenges of transition, integration and restructuring associated with the
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transaction; achievement of further synergies; ability to retain qualified employees and existing business alliances;
and customer demand for CDT products. The pro forma results reflect pro forma adjustments for interest expense,
depreciation, amortization and related income taxes. The pro forma financial information should not be relied upon
as being indicative of the historical results that would have been realized had the Merger occurred as of the dates
indicated or that may be achieved in the future.

2004 Pro Forma 2003 Pro Forma

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share date)
Revenues . .. ... . . . . . e $1,241,229 $1,071,172
Income from continuing operations . ....................... 19,457 11,734
Net income (I0SS) . .. ...t 17,372 (62,711)
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing OPerations . . .. ... ... vuttuinneeeennnnn.. 42 .26
Net income (I0SS) .. ... . .38 (1.24)

Income (loss) from continuing operations include certain material charges and Merger-related items, as listed
below on an after-tax basis:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Merger-related plant closings and other restructuring actions. . . . . . .. $1,592  $13,657 $4.911
Merger-related retention awards and other compensation . ......... 1,031 3,440 —
Impact of inventory and short-lived intangibles purchase
AdjuUSMENTS « . . . oot e 230 3,121 4,027
Merger-related professional fees . ........................... — 1,075 —

Note 4: Discontinued Operations

During 2004 and 2005, the Company reported four operations — Belden Communications Company (BCC)
in Phoenix, Arizona; Raydex/CDT Ltd. (Raydex) in Skelmersdale, United Kingdom; Montrose/CDT (Montrose)
in Auburn, Massachusetts; and Admiral/CDT (Admiral) in Wadsworth, Ohio and Barberton, Ohio — as discon-
tinued operations. Raydex, Montrose and Admiral were acquired through the Merger. As of the effective date of the
Merger, management had formulated a plan to dispose of these operations. In regard to all discontinued operations,
the remaining assets of these operations were held for sale during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

BCC-Phoenix Operation

In March 2004, the Board of Directors of Belden decided to sell the assets of the BCC manufacturing facility in
Phoenix, Arizona. BCC’s Phoenix facility manufactured communications cables for the telecommunications
industry. In June 2004, Belden sold certain assets to Superior Essex Communications LLC (Superior). Superior
purchased certain inventory and equipment, and assumed Belden’s supply agreements with major telecommuni-
cations customers, for an amount not to exceed $92.1 million. At the time the transaction closed, Belden received
$82.1 million in cash ($47.1 million for inventory and $35.0 million for equipment). During the third quarter of
2004, the Company and Superior agreed to the closing-date inventory adjustment that resulted in the Company
paying $3.9 million to Superior and retaining certain inventory. The Company recognized a gain of $0.4 million
pretax ($0.3 million after tax) on the disposal of the inventory. The sale of the equipment resulted in no material gain
or loss.

The remaining payment of $10.0 million was contingent upon Superior’s retention of the assumed customer
agreements. The Company received this $10.0 million payment from Superior in March 2005 and recorded an
additional $6.4 million after-tax gain on the disposal of this discontinued operation during the first quarter of 2005.
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In April 2005, the Company sold BCC’s Phoenix real estate to Phoenix Van Buren Partners, LLC for
$20.7 million cash. The Company recognized a gain on disposal of discontinued operations in the amount of
$13.7 million pretax ($8.8 million after tax) during the second quarter of 2005.

Raydex-Skelmersdale Operation

In September 2004, the Company announced that it was in discussions with employee representatives
regarding its intention to close the Raydex manufacturing facility in Skelmersdale, United Kingdom. The
Skelmersdale facility manufactured twisted-pair and coaxial cables for data networking, telecommunications,
and broadcast applications. During the first quarter of 2005, some of the Raydex-Skelmersdale equipment was
transferred to other European locations of Belden CDT. Management does not believe the migration of revenues and
cash flows from Raydex-Skelmersdale to the Company’s continuing operations is material.

In July 2005, the Company sold the Skelmersdale real estate for $5.4 million cash. The proceeds received from
the sale exceeded the carrying value of these assets by $1.9 million. Upon the finalization of purchase accounting,
the Company increased the portion of Merger consideration it previously allocated to the tangible assets of the
Raydex-Skelmersdale operation and reduced the portion of Merger consideration it previously allocated to
goodwill by this excess amount.

Montrose Operation

In September 2004, the Company announced the pending closure and sale of Montrose. This operation
manufactured and marketed coaxial and twisted-pair cable products principally for the telecommunications
industry and had faced declining demand in recent years. Select equipment was transferred to other Belden
CDT manufacturing locations beginning in December and the Company closed the operation during the first quarter
of 2005. Management does not believe the migration of revenues and cash flows from Montrose to the Company’s
continuing operations is material.

In June 2005, the Company sold the Montrose real estate for $2.4 million cash. The carrying value of these
assets exceeded the proceeds received from the sale by $1.7 million. Upon the finalization of purchase accounting,
the Company reduced the portion of Merger consideration it previously allocated to the tangible assets of Montrose
and increased the portion of Merger consideration it previously allocated to goodwill by this excess amount.

Admiral Operation

In December 2004, a management buyout group purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of
Admiral for less than $0.1 million cash. In March 2005, the Company sold a former Admiral manufacturing facility
in Barberton, Ohio for $1.5 million cash. The carrying value of this facility exceeded the proceeds received from the
sale by less than $0.1 million. Upon the finalization of purchase accounting, the Company reduced the portion of
Merger consideration it previously allocated to the tangible assets of Admiral and increased the portion of Merger
consideration it previously allocated to goodwill by this excess amount. Admiral manufactured precision tire
castings and was not considered a core business of the Company.

Disclosure regarding severance and other benefits related to these discontinued operations is included in
Note 13, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

67



Belden CDT Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Operating results from discontinued operations include the following revenues and income before taxes:

2005 2004 2003
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss)
Years Ended December 31, Revenues Before Taxes Revenues Before Taxes Revenues Before Taxes
(In thousands)
BCC — Phoenix Operation . . . . . $ — $(1,408) $ 93,557 $(17,315)  $202,415  $(112,139)
Raydex — Skelmersdale

Operation . ............... 137 (1,435) 14,924 (1,570) — —
Networking Segment . . . .. ... 137 (2,843) 108,481 (18,885) 202,415 (112,139)
Montrose Operation. . . ........ 2,196 (633) 9,692 1,122 — —
Admiral Operation . .......... — 32) 1,494 (190) — —
Electronics Segment . ....... 2,196 (665) 11,186 932 — —
Total .o oo $2,333  $(3,508)  $119,667  $(17,953) $202,415  $(112,139)

At December 31, 2005, there were no assets or liabilities belonging to the discontinued operations of the
Electronics segment. Listed below are the major classes of assets and liabilities belonging to the discontinued
operations of the Networking segment at December 31, 2005 that remain as part of the disposal group:

(In thousands)

Assets:

OHher @SSELS . .« . v et e e e e e e e e e e e $129
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . .. ........ ... ... .. . L. 388

Listed below are the major classes of assets and liabilities belonging to the discontinued operations of the
Company at December 31, 2004 that remained as part of the disposal group:
Networking Segment
BCC Raydex Electronics Segment
Phoenix Skelmersdale Montrose Admiral Total
(In thousands)

Assets:
Receivables. .. ................... $ 309 $ 9,786 $2,901 $§ —  $1299%
Inventories . ..................... — 3,020 408 — 3,428
Other current assets . . . .. ........... 81 2,837 231 — 3,149
Total current assets . ............. $ 390 $15,643 $3,540 $ —  $19,573
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . . . $7,214 $ 9,594 $5,731 $1,455  $23,994
Other long-lived assets. ... .......... 218 — 77 41 336
Total long-lived assets . ........... $7,432 $ 9,594 $5,808  $1,496  $24,330
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities . . .. .................. $2,045 $12,640 $2,772 $ 84 $17,541

Note 5: Business Divestiture

The Company sold certain fully impaired equipment and technology used for the production of deflection coils
during 2003 and received a cash payment of $1.3 million. The Company could not receive the remaining
$0.4 million of the contracted purchase amount or recognize a gain on the sale of the equipment until certain
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technical conditions of the sale were fulfilled. During 2004, the technical conditions of the sale were fulfilled, the
Company received the remainder of the contracted purchase amount, and the Company recognized a gain on the
disposal of assets in the amount of $1.7 million pretax ($1.1 million after tax) as a component of income from
continuing operations before taxes in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Note 6: European Operations

In the second quarter of 2005, British Telecom plc requested bids from both the Company and several other
suppliers on a supply agreement currently awarded to the Company. This business provided reasonably satisfactory
profit contribution in the past, but the Company viewed the communications cable market as mature, with falling
demand, excess capacity, and continuing price pressure. For this reason, on September 29, 2005, the Company
announced its decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable business. The Company viewed this
decision as an indicator that the aggregate carrying amount of the long-lived assets at certain European manu-
facturing facilities might no longer be recoverable. The Company estimated the future undiscounted cash flows
expected in connection with certain assets recognized in the financial records of these facilities and compared such
future cash flows to the aggregate carrying amount of these assets. The Company determined that the carrying
amount of these assets was not recoverable. The Company reduced the carrying amount of these assets to their
estimated fair value as determined by discounting their estimated future cash flows. The factors used to determine
estimated fair value included, but were not limited to, operating cash flows anticipated during the remaining useful
lives of these assets, estimated market values for certain assets, and a discount rate commensurate with the risk-free
interest rate reflective of the useful life remaining for these assets.

On September 29, 2005, the Company also announced its decision to restructure its European operations in an
effort to reduce manufacturing floor space and overhead. The Company viewed this decision as an indicator that the
aggregate carrying amount of the long-lived assets at certain European manufacturing facilities to be affected by the
restructuring might no longer be recoverable. The Company estimated the future undiscounted cash flows expected
in connection with certain assets recognized in the financial records of these facilities and compared such future
cash flows to the aggregate carrying amount of these assets. The Company determined that the carrying amount of
these assets and liabilities was recoverable and, accordingly, no impairment loss was recognized.

The Company also viewed both decisions as indicators that the carrying amounts of its two European reporting
units might no longer be recoverable. The Company estimated the future discounted cash flows of the Europe
Specialty/Electronics reporting unit and compared such future cash flows to the carrying amount of the Europe
Specialty/Electronics reporting unit. The Company determined that the carrying amount of the Europe Specialty/
Electronics reporting unit was fully recoverable. The Company also estimated the future discounted cash flows of
the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit and compared such future cash flows to the carrying amount
of the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit. The Company determined that the carrying amount of the
Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit was not recoverable. The Company reduced the carrying amount
of goodwill recognized in the financial records of the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit and
reduced the carrying amount of goodwill recognized in the F&A financial records (which the Company allocated to
the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit for the purpose of impairment testing) to their respective
implied fair values. The factors used to determine the implied fair values included, but were not limited to, operating
cash flows anticipated during the remaining life of the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit and a
discount rate commensurate with the Company’s weighted average cost of capital reflective of the remaining life for
the Europe Communications/Networks reporting unit.
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The following impairment losses were reported as a component of operating income during the third quarter of
2005:

Networking
Segment F&A Total
(In thousands)
Long-lived tangible assets impairment. . .................... $ 3,323 $ — $3323
Goodwill impairment . ... ........ ... .. 7,126 2,400 9,526
Total . ... $10,449 $2,400 $12,849

Losses may be incurred in the future as individual assets are disposed of during both the Company’s exit from
the United Kingdom communications cable business and the European restructuring.

The Company recognized accelerated depreciation of $3.5 million in cost of sales during the current year
related to its decisions to exit the United Kingdom communications cable market and restructure its European
manufacturing operations.

Disclosure regarding severance and other benefits related to both decisions is included in Note 13, Accounts
Payable and Accrued Liabilities, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Note 7: Share Information

Changes in shares of common stock and treasury stock for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
were as follows:

Common Treasury

Stock Stock
(Number of shares in
thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2002 . . . . . ... . 26,204 (1,091)
Issuance of stock:
Stock OPLIONS . . . o o e — 10
Stock COMPENSAtioN . . . .. oot vttt — 103
Retirement savings plan . . ....... ... ... ... o i i — 249
Employee stock purchase plans. . ........... ... . .. ... — 182
Balance at December 31,2003 . . ... ... ... . . ... .. 26,204 (547)
Merger between Belden and CDT. .. ........ ... ... ... .. ............ 23,820 (3,166)
Issuance of stock:
StOCK OPLIONS .« o v ottt 175 77
Stock compensation . . ... ... — 518
Retirement savings plan . . . ... .. — 118
Employee stock purchase plans. .. .......... ... ... i, 12 4
Receipt of stock:
Forfeiture of stock by incentive plan participants in lieu of cash payment of
individual tax liabilities related to share-based compensation . .......... — (13)
Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . 50,211 (3,009)
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Common Treasury

Stock Stock
(Number of shares in
thousands)
Issuance of stock:
Stock OPLIONS . . . . o 122 265
Stock COMPENSAtION . . . . oottt 13 3
Receipt of stock:
Forfeiture of stock by incentive plan participants in lieu of cash payment of
individual tax liabilities related to share-based compensation . .......... — (69)
Share repurchase program . .............. .. .. ... — (5,200)
Balance at December 31, 2005. . . . . . . 50,346 (8,010)

On May 23, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $125.0 million of
common stock in the open market. From that date through December 31, 2005, the Company repurchased
approximately 5.2 million shares of its common stock at an average share price of $21.04 for an aggregate cost of
$109.4 million.

Note 8: Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted income per share is computed by dividing net income as adjusted for the tax-effected
interest expense on convertible subordinated debentures by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding plus additional potential dilutive shares assumed to be outstanding. Except for additional potential
shares associated with convertible subordinated debentures, additional potential shares are calculated for each
measurement period based on the treasury stock method, under which repurchases are assumed to be made at the
average fair market value price per share of the Company’s common stock during the period. Additional potential
shares associated with convertible subordinated debentures are calculated by dividing the principal amount of the
debentures by their conversion price. The Company’s additional potential dilutive shares currently consist of stock
options, nonvested restricted stock awards, and convertible subordinated debentures. Nonvested restricted stock
awards carry dividend and voting rights but are not included in the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding used to compute basic income per share.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share
amounts)

Numerator for basic income (loss) per share:

Income from continuing operations . . ... ................. $32,642  $15,353  $ 10,157
Loss from discontinued operations. . .. ................... (247) 417) (71,768)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations ............... 15,163 253 —
Netincome (I0SS) . .o $47,558  $15,189  $(61,611)
Numerator for diluted income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations . . ... ................. $32,642  $15,353  $ 10,157
Tax-effected interest expense on convertible subordinated
debentures . .. ... .. 2,710 1,272 —
Adjusted income from continuing operations . ............ 35,352 16,625 10,157
Loss from discontinued operations. . .. ................. (247) 417) (71,768)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations. . ............ 15,163 253 —
Adjusted net income (10SS). . . . ..o v i $50,268  $16,461  $(61,611)
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Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share
amounts)
Denominator:
Basic average shares outstanding. . .. .................... 45,655 35,404 25,158
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents . .............. 6,467 3,320 229
Diluted average shares outstanding . ................... 52,122 38,724 25,387
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing OPerations . . . . ...t v v vttt $ 72 $ 43 9 40
Discontinued operations . .................. ... .01 .01 (2.85)
Disposal of discontinued operations. . . ................... 33 .01 —
Netincome (10SS) . . . ..o v it e 1.04 43 (2.45)
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing OPerations . . . . ... .ot e vt et $ 68 $ 43 § 40
Discontinued operations . ................. ... .01 .01 (2.83)
Disposal of discontinued operations. . .................... .29 .01 —
Netincome (10SS) . . . ..ottt .96 43 (2.43)

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company did not include 2.4 million, 2.5 million,
and 2.6 million outstanding stock options, respectively, in its development of the denominators used in the diluted
earnings (loss) per share computations because the exercise prices of these options were greater than the respective
average market price of the Company’s common stock during those measurement periods.

Note 9: Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of two components — net income (loss) and other comprehensive
income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are recorded as an element of stockholders’ equity but
are excluded from net income (loss). The Company’s other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of
(a) adjustments that result from translation of the Company’s foreign entity financial statements from their
functional currencies to United States dollars, (b) adjustments that result from translation of affiliate foreign
currency transactions that are of a long-term investment nature (that is, settlement is not planned or anticipated in
the foreseeable future) between entities that are consolidated in the Company’s financial statements, and (c) min-
imum pension liability adjustments.

The components of comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Net income (I0SS) .« . v v v vt e e e e e $ 47,558  $15,189  $(61,611)
Adjustments to foreign currency translation component of
CQUILY © oo (34,144) 24,233 24,650
Adjustments to minimum pension liability . ................. (599) (3,832) 670
Comprehensive income (10sS). .. ....................... $ 12,815 $35,590 $(36,291)
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Translation component of €qUIty . . ... ..o vttt $ 11,622  $ 45,766
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax benefit of $11,358 and
$10,421, respectively. . ..o vt (18,503) (17,904)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ioss) . .. ................. $ (6,881) $ 27,862

Note 10: Inventories

The major classes of inventories were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Raw materialS . . . . . ..o $ 68,661 $ 55,229
WOrK-In-proCess . . . ... ..ottt ittt e e 45,365 38,921
Finished goods . .. ... .. .. 160,356 151,753
Perishable tooling and supplies . ........... . ... ... . 3,977 3,822
Gross INVENTOTIES . .+« o v v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 278,359 249,725
Obsolescence and Other T€SEIVES . . . . v v v it e e e e e e e (16,396) (22,691)
NEt INVENLOTIES . . v v oottt et e et e e e e e e $261,963  $227,034

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Land and land improvements. . .. ............c. i $ 25926 $ 33,089
Buildings and leasehold improvements . .......................... 133,178 139,990
Machinery and equipment . . . .. ... ... 422,078 442,078
ConStruction 1N PrOCESS . « « v v v v v v e e et e e e e et 14,015 10,071
Gross property, plant and equipment .. ......................... 595,197 625,228
Accumulated depreciation . . . ... ... (290,860) (286,981)
Net property, plant and equipment . . . ..............outtenn.... $ 304,337  $ 338,247
Disposals

During 2005, the Company sold real estate in Kingston, Canada and Villingen, Germany for $6.1 million cash.
The Company recognized an aggregate gain on the sales of these assets in the amount of $0.5 million pretax
($0.3 million after tax).

Also during 2005, the Company sold a Fort Lauderdale, Florida manufacturing facility that was acquired in the
Merger for $1.4 million cash. The proceeds received from the sale exceeded the carrying value of this facility by less
than $0.1 million. Upon the finalization of purchase accounting, the Company increased the portion of Merger
consideration it previously allocated to the assets and reduced the portion of Merger consideration it previously
allocated to goodwill by this excess amount.
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Impairment

During 2004, the Company determined that certain asset groups within both the Europe operations and the
United States operations of its Electronics segment were impaired. The applicable assets of the segment’s Europe
operations were impaired due to the exit from certain product lines within those operations. The applicable assets of
the segment’s United States operations were impaired due to excess capacity (primarily as a result of the combined
capacity after the Merger). The Company estimated the fair value of the equipment based upon anticipated net
proceeds from its sale and recognized an impairment loss of $8.9 million based on the difference between the
carrying value of the equipment and its estimated fair value.

Disclosure regarding asset impairment related to the Company’s decisions to exit the United Kingdom
communications cable market and restructure its European manufacturing operations is included in Note 6,
European Operations, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Depreciation Expense

The Company recognized depreciation expense of $37.1 million, $27.6 million and $23.0 million in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

Disclosure regarding accelerated depreciation related to the Company’s decisions to exit the United Kingdom
communications cable market and restructure its European manufacturing operations is included in Note 6,
European Operations, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 12: Intangible Assets

The carrying values of intangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Customer Telations. . . . . . oot e $ 54,608 $ 55,702
Developed technologies . . .. ... .. 6,179 6,558
Favorable contracts ... ......... ... 1,094 1,094
Backlog. . . .o oo 1,976 2,357
Gross intangible assets subject to amortization . ................ 63,857 65,711
Accumulated amortization . . . ... ... ... (6,634) (3,434)
Net intangible assets subject to amortization . . ................. 57,223 62,277
Intangible assets not subject to amortization:

Goodwill. . . . e 272,290 286,163
Trademarks . . . . ... . 15,236 15,989
Total intangible assets not subject to amortization . . ............. 287,526 302,152

Net intangible assets. . ... .......... .. $344,749  $364.,429

Segment Allocation

The Electronics segment reported goodwill, net of accumulated amortization, at December 31, 2005 in the
amount of $127.5 million. There was no goodwill reported by the Networking segment at December 31, 2005.
Goodwill allocated to the Electronics segment and the Networking segment decreased by $1.4 million and
$7.8 million, respectively, from December 31, 2004 primarily because of goodwill impairment in the Networking
segment resulting from the Company’s decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable business and the
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impact of translation on goodwill denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar in both segments.
Goodwill of $144.8 million has not been assigned to any specific segment. Management believes it benefits the
entire Company because it represents acquirer-specific synergies unique to the Merger and is therefore recognized
in the F&A financial records. Goodwill recognized in the F&A financial records decreased by $4.7 million from
December 31, 2004 primarily because of the $2.4 million impairment of goodwill associated with the Company’s
decision to exit the United Kingdom communications cable business and adjustments in the allocation of the
Merger consideration to the assets of the legacy CDT operations.

Impairment

At both December 31, 2005 and 2004, the remaining carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets not
subject to amortization were considered recoverable.

Disclosure regarding goodwill impairment related to the Company’s decisions to exit the United Kingdom
communications cable market and restructure its European manufacturing operations is included in Note 6,
European Operations, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Amortization Expense

The Company recognized amortization expense of $3.3 million, $2.9 million and less than $0.1 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note 13: Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The carrying values of accounts payable and accrued liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Accounts payable . ... ... ... $111,323  $ 77,591
Wages, severance and related taxes . .............. ..., 33,591 39,876
Employee benefits. . . .. ... ... 34,526 37,351
Interest . . ... e 5,485 5,804
Other (individual items less than 5% of total current liabilities) .......... 24,106 24,413
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . .................... $209,031  $185,035

Accrued Severance and Other Related Benefits Under 2005 Restructuring Plans

The Company recognized severance and other related benefits costs in the amount of $8.7 million ($8.5 million
in cost of sales and $0.2 million in SG&A expense) in 2005 related to personnel reductions within the Networking
segment in the United Kingdom, the Netherlands and the Czech Republic because of the Company’s decision to exit
the United Kingdom communications cable market. The Company offered special termination benefits to
51 employees in the United Kingdom. Each of these employees agreed to the terms of the special termination
agreement prior to the end of the quarter in which their severance costs were recognized. The Company will provide
contractual termination benefits statutorily defined by the Dutch, Czech and British governments to 61 employees
in the Netherlands, 78 employees in the Czech Republic and 4 employees in the United Kingdom. The Company
offered one-time termination benefits to 1 employee in the United Kingdom.

The Company also recognized severance and other related benefits costs in the amount of $0.9 million
($0.6 million in cost of sales and $0.3 million in SG&A expenses) in 2005 related to personnel reductions (1) within
the Electronics segment in the United States and Canada and (2) within the Networking segment in Australia. The
Company notified 14 employees, prior to the end of the respective quarter in which their severance costs were
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recognized, of the pending terminations as well as the amount of severance and other related benefits they each
should expect to receive.

Accrued Severance and Other Related Benefits Under 2004 Restructuring Plans

On September 10, 2004, the Company announced its decision to close legacy CDT operations in Skelmersdale,
United Kingdom and Auburn, Massachusetts and to reduce personnel at several other legacy CDT locations. The
Company accrued severance and other related benefits costs of $19.4 million ($2.8 million, $9.0 million and
$7.6 million in the financial records of the Electronics segment, the Networking segment, and F&A, respectively)
associated with the closures and the personnel reductions. These costs were recognized as a liability assumed in the
Merger and were included in the cost to acquire CDT. The number of employees eligible for severance payments
because of these actions was 538.

During 2005, the Company decided to terminate its restructuring plans for certain legacy CDT operations
because of improved capacity utilization at those operations. The Company reduced accrued severance and other
related benefits recorded by $1.6 million ($1.5 million and $0.1 million in the financial records of the Networking
segment and the Electronics segment, respectively) and reduced the portion of Merger consideration it had
previously allocated to goodwill by this same amount. This action reduced the number of employees eligible for
severance payments by 75.

On June 1, 2004, the Company announced its decision to close its BCC manufacturing facility in Phoenix,
Arizona. The Company reported this facility’s operating results and financial position within its Networking
segment. The Company recognized severance and other related benefits costs of $5.7 million in loss from
discontinued operations during 2004 and 2005. The Company notified 889 employees, prior to June 30, 2004, of the
pending terminations as well as the amount of severance and other related benefits they each should expect to
receive.

During 2004 and 2005, the Company recognized severance and other related benefits costs in the amount of
$13.1 million ($11.7 million in costs of sales and $1.4 million in SG&A expenses) related to (1) personnel
reductions within the Electronics segment in the United States, Canada, the Netherlands, and Germany, (2) per-
sonnel reductions within the Networking segment in the United States and Australia, and (3) the pending closure of
an Electronics segment manufacturing facility in the United States. The Company notified 249 employees, prior to
the end of the respective quarter in which their severance costs were recognized, of the pending terminations as well
as the amount of severance and other related benefits they each should expect to receive.

Accrued Severance and Other Related Benefits Under 2003 Restructuring Plans

In 2004, the Company was notified by Inland Revenue that it owed an additional $0.4 million in other benefits
related to severance paid in 2003 to terminated employees within the Company’s Networking segment in the United
Kingdom. The Company recognized these other benefits costs in cost of sales during 2004.

During 2003 and 2004, the Company recognized severance and other related benefits costs in the amount of
$4.3 million ($1.7 million in cost of sales and $2.6 million in SG&A expense) related to (1) personnel reductions
within the Electronics segment in the United States, Canada and the Netherlands and (2) personnel reductions
within the Networking segment in the United Kingdom The Company notified 153 employees, prior to the end of
the respective quarter in which their severance costs were recognized, of the pending terminations as well as the
amount of severance and other related benefits they each should expect to receive.

The Company anticipates making substantially all severance payments against these accruals within one year
of each accrual date.
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The following table sets forth termination activity that occurred during the years ended December 31, 2005 and

2004:
Total Number
of Employees
Total Eligible for
Severance and Severance and
2002 2003 2004 2005 Other Related Other Related
Plans Plans Plans Plans Benefits Benefits
(In thousands, except number of employees)
Balance at December 31, 2003... $ 1,023 $238 $ — 3 — $ 3,409 115
Merger-related activities:
Cash payments/terminations . . . — — (8,303) — (8,303) (26)
New charges(1) ............ — — 16,697 — 16,697 516
Foreign currency translation . . . — — 317 — 317 —
Other activities:
Cash payments/terminations . . . (1,256) (2,155) (7,520) — (10,931) (999)
New charges(2) ............ 240 618 17,935 — 18,793 1,127
Foreign currency translation . . . (7 13 556 — 562 —
Other adjustments .......... — (320) 216 — (104) —
Balance at December 31,
20043) ..o — 542 19,898 — 20,440 733
Merger-related activities:
Cash payments/terminations . . . — — (7,168) — (7,168) (365)
New charges(4) ............ — — 2,664 — 2,664 22
Foreign currency translation . . . — — (85) — (85) —
Other adjustments .......... — — (1,648) — (1,648) (76)
Other activities:
Cash payments/terminations . . . — (325) (10,139) (1,307) (11,771) (283)
New charges(5) ............ — — 869 10,273 11,142 216
Foreign currency translation . . . — (29) (989) a7 (1,065) —
Other adjustments .......... — (188) (428) 132 (484) (12)
Balance at December 31,
2005(6) . ..o $ — $ — $ 2974 §$ 9,051 $ 12,025 235

(1) Includes charges totaling $5.1 million related to discontinued operations

(2) Includes charges totaling $5.6 million related to discontinued operations

(3) Includes severance and other related benefits totaling $5.7 million and 328 employees related to discontinued

operations
(4) Includes charges totaling $0.2 million related to discontinued operations

(5) Includes charges totaling $0.1 million related to discontinued operations

(6) Includes severance and other related benefits totaling less than $0.1 million and 2 employees related to

discontinued operations

The Company continues to review its business strategies and evaluate further restructuring actions. This could

result in additional severance and other related benefits charges in future periods.
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Environmental Remediation Liabilities

The Company is involved in the environmental remediation of various current and former manufacturing sites.
The Company estimates the range of potential costs to remediate environmental sites, which can vary significantly
depending on the final determination on the extent of remediation required, the method of remediation required, the
Company’s share of remediation costs if other parties are involved, and other factors. The Company records a
liability for its most likely estimate of remediation costs.

The Company’s reserve for environmental remediation and related costs was approximately $7.2 million and
$8.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company expects to fund these environmental
remediation liabilities over the next 5 years. It is reasonably possible that a change in the estimated remediation
costs will occur before remediation is completed.

Executive Succession Costs

The Company’s former President and Chief Executive Officer, C. Baker Cunningham, entered into a
separation of employment agreement with the Company in November 2005. The separation agreement confirmed
Mr. Cunningham’s entitlement and obligations under his change of control employment agreement with Belden,
dated as of July 31, 2001, as a result of his separation of employment. The Company recognized SG&A expense of
$6.2 million in 2005 related to Mr. Cunningham’s separation of employment and associated executive succession
planning services.

The Company’s former Chief Financial Officer, Richard K. Reece, entered into a separation of employment
agreement with the Company in November 2005. The separation agreement confirmed Mr. Reece’s entitlement and
obligations under his change of control employment agreement with Belden, dated as of July 31,2001, as a result of
his separation of employment. The Company recognized SG&A expense of $0.8 million in 2005 related to
Mr. Reece’s separation of employment and associated executive succession planning services.

Note 14: Long-Term Debt and Other Borrowing Arrangements

The carrying values of long-term debt and other borrowing arrangements were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Medium-term notes, face amount of $60,000 due from 2006 through 20009,

contractual interest rate 6.92%, effective interest rate 6.92% . .......... $ 60,000 $ 75,000
Medium-term notes, face amount of $44,000 due 2006, contractual interest

rate 7.74%, effective interest rate 7.85% . . . .. .. ... .. 44,000 44,000
Medium-term notes, face amount of $17,000 due 2009, contractual interest

rate 7.95%, effective interest rate 8.06%. .. ... ... .. .. ... ... ... ... 17,000 17,000
Contingently convertible notes, face amount of $110,000 due 2023,

contractual interest rate 4.00%, effective interest rate 4.00% ........... 110,000 110,000

Variable-rate bank revolving credit agreement, due 2006 ............... — —
Short-term borrowings. . . . ...ttt — —
Other . ... 51 2,525

$231,051  $248,525

Medium-Term Notes

In 1999, the Company completed a private placement of $64.0, $44.0 and $17.0 million of unsecured medium-
term notes. The Company repaid the $64.0 million tranche of these notes in September 2004. The agreement for the
notes contains various customary affirmative and negative covenants and other provisions, including restrictions on
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the incurrence of debt, maintenance of a maximum leverage ratio and minimum net worth. The Company was in
compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2005.

In 1997, the Company completed a private placement of $75.0 million of unsecured medium-term notes. The
notes bear interest at 6.92% and mature in 8 to 12 years from closing with an average life of 10 years. The Company
repaid a $15.0 million tranche of these notes in August 2005. The agreement for the notes contains various
customary affirmative and negative covenants and other provisions, including restrictions on the incurrence of debt,
maintenance of a maximum leverage ratio and minimum net worth. The Company was in compliance with these
covenants at December 31, 2005.

Credit Agreement

The Company entered into a credit agreement with a group of 6 banks on October 9, 2003 (Credit Agreement).
The Credit Agreement provided for a secured, variable-rate and revolving credit facility not to exceed $75.0 million
expiring in June 2006. In general, the Company’s assets in the United States, other than real property, secured any
borrowing under the Credit Agreement. The amount of any such borrowing was subject to a borrowing base
comprised of a portion of the Company’s receivables and inventories located in the United States. A fixed charge
coverage ratio covenant became applicable if the sum of the Company’s excess borrowing availability and
unrestricted cash falls below $25.0 million. The banks party to the Credit Agreement could advance loans to the
Company based on their respective commitments (syndicated loans). Syndicated loans accrued interest at the option
of the Company at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.25%, or the higher of the prime rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.00%
to 1.50%. An unused commitment fee of 0.375% to 0.750% per annum was charged on the unused credit. The
Company had $18.9 million and $23.6 million in borrowing capacity at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
There were no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at December 31, 2005 or 2004.

On January 24, 2006, the Company entered into a new $165.0 million credit facility with a group of 8 banks,
expandable to $200.0 million and secured by the Company’s overall cash flow and its assets in the United States.
The new facility replaces the $75.0 million facility discussed above.

Short-Term Borrowings

At December 31, 2005, the Company had unsecured, uncommitted arrangements with 9 banks under which it
could borrow up to $4.4 million at prevailing interest rates. There were no outstanding borrowings under these
arrangements at December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had unsecured, uncommitted arrangements with 10 banks under which it
could borrow up to $13.2 million at prevailing interest rates. There were no outstanding borrowings under these
arrangements at December 31, 2004.

Contingently Convertible Notes

At December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding $110.0 million of unsecured subordinated debentures.
The debentures are convertible into approximately 6.2 million shares of common stock, at a conversion price of
$17.859 per share, upon the occurrence of certain events. The conversion price is subject to adjustment for
dividends and other equity transactions. Holders may surrender their debentures for conversion into shares of
common stock upon satisfaction of any of the following conditions: (1) the closing sale price of the Company’s
common stock is at least 110% of the conversion price for a minimum of 20 days in the 30 trading-day period ending
on the trading day prior to surrender; (2) the senior implied rating assigned to the Company by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc. is downgraded to B2 or below and the corporate credit rating assigned to the Company by Standard &
Poor’s is downgraded to B or below; (3) the Company has called the debentures for redemption; or (4) upon the
occurrence of certain corporate transactions as specified in the indenture. As of December 31, 2005, condition
(1) had been met, but condition (2) had not been met as the senior implied rating was Ba2 and the corporate credit
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rating was BB-. Interest of 4.0% is payable semiannually in arrears, on January 15 and July 15. The debentures
mature on July 15, 2023, if not previously redeemed. The Company may call some or all of the debentures on or
after July 21, 2008 for redemption in cash, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debentures plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date. Holders may require the Company to purchase all or part of
their debentures on July 15, 2008, July 15, 2013, or July 15, 2018, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, in which case the purchase price may
be paid in cash, shares of the Company’s common stock or a combination of cash and the Company’s common
stock, at the Company’s option.

Maturities

Payments due on outstanding long-term debt and other borrowings during each of the five years subsequent to
December 31, 2005 are as follows:

(In thousands)

2000 . . $ 59,000
2007 . 15,051
2008 . 15,000
2000 . . 32,000
2000 . —
Thereafter . . . . ... o e 110,000

$231,051

Interest Rate Management

The Company occasionally manages its debt portfolio by using interest rate swap agreements to achieve an
overall desired position of fixed and floating rates. During 2004, the Company was party to interest rate swap
agreements relating to 7.60% medium-term notes that matured in September 2004. The swaps converted a notional
amount of $64.0 million from fixed rates to floating rates and also matured in September 2004. These agreements
were designated and qualified as fair value hedges of the associated medium-term notes. The fair values of the
swaps and the notional accrued interest they hedged were reported in other current assets and accrued liabilities,
respectively, until September 2004. Credit and market risk exposures on these agreements were limited to the net
interest differentials. Net interest differentials earned from the interest rate swaps of $1.3 million pretax, or $.02 per
diluted share, were recorded as a reduction to interest expense for 2004. Net interest differentials earned from the
interest rate swaps reduced the Company’s average interest rate on long-term debt by 0.57 percentage points for
2004. The Company had no interest rate swap agreements outstanding at December 31, 2005 or during the year then
ended.

Note 15: Income Taxes

The net tax expense of $24.7 million for 2005 resulted from income from continuing operations before taxes of
$57.4 million. The Company recorded an additional $5.0 million deferred tax asset valuation reserve during 2005
with respect to net operating losses generated primarily in the Netherlands. The Company considers earnings from
foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, has not recorded a provision for United States
federal and state income taxes for foreign earnings. Undistributed earnings of the Company foreign subsidiaries
totaled $3.7 million in 2005. Upon distribution of foreign subsidiary earnings, the Company may be subject to
United States income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and withholding taxes payable to the
various foreign countries.
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In October 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (the AJCA) was signed into law. The AJCA includes a
deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defined in the AJCA. Taxpayers may elect to
apply this provision to qualifying earnings repatriations in either 2004 or 2005. The Company has decided not to
repatriate any foreign earnings under this provision.

The Company is party to a Tax Sharing and Separation Agreement (Tax Agreement) with its former owner,
Cooper Industries Ltd. (Cooper). The Tax Agreement requires the Company to pay Cooper most of the tax benefits
resulting from basis adjustments arising from the Company’s initial public offering on October 6, 1993. The effect
of the Tax Agreement is to put the Company in the same financial position it would have been in had there been no
increase in the tax basis of the Company’s assets (except for a retained 10% benefit). The retained 10% benefit
reduced income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 by $1.2 million each year.
Included in 2003 taxes paid are $8.7 million, paid to Cooper in accordance with the Tax Agreement. There were no
payments to Cooper under the Tax Agreement in 2005 and 2004.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes:
United States operations . . ... .......vouurvneenneon... $53,627  $33,905 $13,442
Foreign operations . .. ............ ... ... i, 3,734 (2,661) 1,208

$57,361  $31,244  $14,650

Income tax expense (benefit):
Currently payable (receivable):

United States state and local . . . ....................... $ 155 % — 3 —
Foreign ... ... . .. 10,437 (3,197) (1,671)
10,592 (3,197) (1,671)
Deferred:
United States federal ........... ... .. .. .. ... .. ...... 13,759 9,240 3,798
United States state and local . . . ........ ... ... .. ...... 1,739 1,959 408
Foreign ... ... . ... (1,371) 7,889 1,958
14,127 19,088 6,164
Total income tax expense (benefit) . ... ..................... $24,719  $15,891 $ 4,493
Years Ended December 31, % w w
Effective income tax rate reconciliation:
United States federal statutory rate . . ...............cneee.... 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local INCOME tAXES. . . . . o vt ittt et e e e e e 33 1.4 2.8
Increase in deferred tax asset valuation allowance . ................... 8.8 30.1 2.1
Resolution of prior-period tax contingency . ........................ 6.5 (71.8) (7.3)
Foreign income tax rate differences. . .................. ... . ... 1.7 5.0) (6.9
Other . . .o 0.8 (2.8) 5.0

43.1% 50.9% 30.7%
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December 31, 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Components of deferred income tax balances:
Deferred income tax liabilities, net:

Plant, equipment and intangibles . ............... ... ... ...... $(108,373) $(104,823)
Deferred income tax assets:
Postretirement and pension accruals . .. .............. ... ...... 20,366 20,330
Reserves and accruals .. ........... ... .. 21,975 27,233
Net operating loss carryforwards .. .......................... 47,812 50,286
Valuation allowances . . . . ... (27,786) (22,565)
62,367 75,284
Net deferred income tax liability . . ....... ... ... ... ... ..., $ (46,006) $ (29,539)
2005 2004
DecLberM, Current Noncurrent Total Current Noncurrent Total

(In thousands)

Deferred income tax

assets. . ........... $27,845 $ 34,522 $ 62,367 $15911 $ 59,373 $ 75,284
Deferred income tax
liabilities . . ........ — (108,373) (108,373) — (104,823) (104,823)

$27,845 $ (73,851) $ (46,006) $15911 § (45450) § (29,539)

Deferred income taxes have been established for differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial
statement and tax reporting purposes as adjusted for the Tax Agreement with Cooper.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had $300.7 million of net operating loss carryforwards (as adjusted by
the Tax Agreement with Cooper). Unless otherwise utilized, net operating loss carryforwards will expire as follows:
$11.7 million in 2006, $13.8 million in 2007, $27.4 million between 2008 and 2010, and $155.8 million between
2011 and 2025. Net operating loss carryforwards with an indefinite carryforward period total $92.0 million. The net
operating loss carryforwards expiring in 2006 through 2008 will have not have a significant impact on the effective
tax rate because of deferred tax asset valuation allowances recorded for those loss carryforwards.

Note 16: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Substantially all employees in Canada, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom, and the United States are
covered by defined benefit or defined contribution pension plans maintained by the Company. The Company
terminated its separate defined benefit plan in the Netherlands at the end of 2005. Employees in the Netherlands will
participate in an industry pension plan in 2006. Annual contributions to retirement plans equal or exceed the
minimum funding requirements of applicable local regulations. The assets of the pension plans are maintained in
various trusts and invested primarily in equity and fixed income securities.

Benefits provided to employees under defined contribution plans include cash contributions by the Company
based on either hours worked by the employee or a percentage of the employee’s compensation and in certain plans
a partial matching of employees’ salary deferrals with Company common stock. Defined contribution expense for
2005, 2004 and 2003 was $6.0 million, $4.2 million and $3.8 million, respectively. The increase in contributions
during 2005 resulted primarily from the Belden CDT merger.

The Company sponsors unfunded postretirement (medical and life insurance) benefit plans for certain of its
employees in Canada and the United States. The medical benefit portion of the United States plan is only for
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employees who retired prior to 1989 as well as certain other employees who were near retirement and elected to
receive certain benefits.

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of
assets as well as a statement of the funded status and balance sheet reporting for these plans.

Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation, beginning of year. ... ..... $(263,913)  $(198,303) $(41,279) $(17,005)
Service Cost. . ..o (9,476) (7,589) (530) (206)
Interest cost. .. ....... ..., (13,151) (12,014) (2,344) (1,525)
Participant contributions . . . ............... (1,300) (1,156) 40) (58)
Actuarial gain (loss) and other ............. (16,056) (15,578) (4,908) (2,435)
Special termination benefits . . ............. (5,869) (976) — —
Acquisitions. . . ... — (27,201) — (20,314)
Curtailments ............ .. ... .. ... ... 17,250 — — —
Settlements . ........... .. ... .. .. ... ... 85,146 241 — —
Foreign currency exchange rate changes . . . . .. 11,444 (12,966) 976) (2,189)
Benefits paid . .. ....... . ... .. .. 18,759 11,629 2,494 2,453

Benefit obligation, end of year ........... $(177,166)  $(263,913) $(47,583) $(41,279)

Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year . . ... $190,066 $145211 § — 3 —
Actual return on plan assets ................ 23,117 13,083 — —
Employer contributions. . .. ................ 26,071 14,531 2,454 2,571
Plan participant contributions ............... 1,300 1,156 40 58
AcCqQUisitions . . . ..o — 18,573 — —
Settlements. . . .................. ... (78,894) — — —
Foreign currency exchange rate changes . ... ... (8,185) 9,141 — —
Benefits paid ........................... (18,759) (11,629) (2,494) (2,629)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year........ $134,716  $190,066 $ — 3 —
Funded status:
Fundedstatus . .......................... $(42,450) $(73,847) $(47,583) $(41,256)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss......... 43,559 60,200 14,351 9,856
Unrecognized prior service cost ............. (104) (143) (514) (620)
Accrued benefitcost . . .................. $ 1,005 $(13,790) $(33,746) $(32,020)
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Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets:

Prepaid benefit cost . ... ................... $ 750 $ 1,232 $ — 3 —
Accrued benefit liability (current). . ........... (18,678) (23,766) (2,949) (2,503)
Accrued benefit liability (noncurrent) . ......... (10,954) (19,582) (30,797) (29,517)
Noncurrent deferred taxes . ................. 11,358 10,422 — —
Accumulated other comprehensive income
(OSS) v v v e e e 18,529 17,904 — —
Net amount recognized. . .. ............... $ 1,005 $(13,790) $(33,746) $(32,020)

In both 2005 and 2004, the change in benefit obligation for pension and other postretirement benefits
attributable to actuarial gains or losses related primarily to a decrease in the discount rates used in the computation
of such benefits.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $164.0 million and $225.2 million
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the pension
plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets were $165.4 million, $152.2 million, and
$122.3 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2005 and $172.8 million, $159.2 million, and $123.1 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2004.

A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the actuarial present value of accumulated benefits
exceeds the fair value of plan assets and accrued pension liabilities. As of December 31, 2005, the Company
recorded minimum pension liabilities of $30.0 million with offsets to noncurrent deferred taxes, other compre-
hensive income, and long-lived assets in the amounts of $11.4 million, $18.5 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.
As of December 31, 2004, the Company recorded minimum pension liabilities of $28.4 million with offsets to
noncurrent deferred taxes, other comprehensive income, and long-lived assets in the amounts of $10.4 million,
$17.9 million, and $0.1 million, respectively. The change in the amount included in other comprehensive income
due to a change in the additional minimum pension liability was $0.6 million and $3.8 million net of tax for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs for the plans.

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Components of net periodic
benefit cost:

Service cost. . ............. $ 9476 $ 7589 $ 7,156 $ 530 $ 205 $ 26
Interest cost. . ............. 13,151 12,014 11,003 2,344 1,525 1,077
Expected return on plan

assetS. .. ... (14,838) (13,047) (13,112) — — —
Amortization of prior service

COSE . v (39) (39) (40) (106) (106) (106)
Special termination benefits . . . 5,869 976 — — — —
Settlement loss. . ........... 863 46 — — — —
Net (gain) loss recognition . . . . 3,432 2,116 246 619 432 430

Net periodic benefit cost. ... $ 17,914 $§ 9,655 $ 5,253 $3,387 $2,056  $1,427

The following table presents the assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations and the net periodic
benefit cost amounts.

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
December 31, 2005 2004 2005 2004
Weighted average assumptions for benefit
obligations at year-end:
Discountrate. .. .................. 5.2% 5.4% 5.2% 5.8%
Salary increase ................... 4.0% 4.0% N/A N/A
Weighted-average assumptions for net
periodic cost for the year:
Discountrate. . ................... 5.4% 5.7% 5.8% 6.0%
Salary increase ................... 4.0% 4.0% N/A N/A
Expected return on assets. . .......... 8.1% 8.1% N/A N/A
Assumed health care cost trend rates:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for
NEXE YAl . . v oo N/A N/A 10.0% 10.0%
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually
declinesto..................... N/A N/A 5.0% 5.0%
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is
assumed to remain at . . . .......... N/A N/A 2010 2010
Measurement date . . . ................ 12/31/2005  12/31/2004  12/31/2005  12/31/2004

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan.
A one percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on 2005
expense and year-end liabilities.

1% Increase 1% Decrease
(In thousands)

Effect on total of service and interest cost components . ............. $ 393 $ (313)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ....................... $6,541 $(5,271)
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In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act). FSP 106-2
provides guidance on the accounting for and disclosure of the subsidy available under the Act for employers that
sponsor postretirement health care plans providing prescription drug benefits. The Company elected to apply the
requirements of FSP 106-2 for the quarter ended April 1, 2004, retroactive to the date of enactment of the Act. The
reduction in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation attributed to past service as a result of the subsidy
available under the Act is $1.6 million. The effect of the subsidy on the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for
2004 is $0.2 million.

The following table reflects the pension plans’ actual and target asset allocations.

Target Actual Actual

Asset Category 12/31/2006 12/31/2005 12/31/2004

Equity securities . . .. ... 52% 78% 66%
Debt SeCurities . . ... ...t e 48% 22% 34%
Real estate . ........ ... . 0% 0% 0%
Other . ... e 0% 0% 0%
Total. . ... e 100% 100% 100%

Absent regulatory or statutory limitations, the target asset allocation for the investment of the assets for the
Company’s ongoing pension plans is 25% in debt securities and 75% in equity securities and for the Company’s
pension plans where the majority of the participants are in payment or terminated vested status is 100% in debt
securities. The plans only invest in debt and equity instruments for which there is a ready public market. The
Company develops its expected long-term rate of return assumptions based on the historical rates of returns for
equity and debt securities of the type in which its plans invest.

The following table reflects the benefits as of December 31, 2005 expected to be paid in each of the next five
years and in the aggregate for the five years thereafter from the Company’s pension and other postretirement plans
as well as the expected subsidy receipts available under the Act in these years. Because the Company’s other
postretirement plans are unfunded, the anticipated benefits with respect to these plans will come from the
Company’s own assets. Because the Company’s pension plans are primarily funded plans, the anticipated benefits
with respect to these plans will come primarily from the trusts established for these plans.

Medicare
Pension Other Subsidy
Plans Plans Receipts

(In thousands)
2000 . . $ 11,358 $ 2,949 $ 229
2007« 11,289 3,071 233
2008 . L 9,961 3,153 232
2000 . L e 12,095 3,237 228
2000 . 12,214 3,286 222
2011-2005 . . e 64,494 16,418 937
Total . .. $121,411  $32,114 $2,081

The Company anticipates contributing $33.7 million and $2.7 million to its pension and other postretirement
plans, respectively, during 2006.
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Note 17: Share-Based Payment Plans

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company sponsored six stock compensation plans — the four Incentive
Plans and the two Stock Purchase Plans discussed in the section entitled “Share-Based Payments” in Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Incentive Plans

Under the Incentive Plans, certain employees of the Company are eligible to receive awards in the form of
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock grants and performance shares.

The following table summarizes award positions for those Incentive Plans that were active during 2005:
Shares Originally

Reserved for Shares Available
Issuance for Future Awards
(In thousands)
Belden 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan. . ................. 800 —
CDT 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan .......... 4,300 3,205

Options to purchase stock are granted at not less than fair market value, become exercisable in equal amounts
on each of the first 3 anniversaries of the grant date and expire 10 years from the grant date.

The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity and related information:

2005 2004 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Years Ended December 31, Options Price Options Price Options Price

(In thousands, except weighted average exercise price)

Outstanding at beginning of year ... 4,143 $24.25 2,785 $25.17 2,741 $26.08
Granted...................... 1,031 21.39 402 19.39 207 13.08
Exercised .................... (393) 17.87 (259) 16.93 (10) 16.94
Canceled . .................... (233) 24.76 (557) 24.52 (153) 25.96
Merger-related additions . ........ — — 1,772 22.92 — —
Outstanding at end of year . ....... 4,548 $24.06 4,143 $24.25 2,785 $25.17
Exercisable at end of year ........ 3,682 $24.74 4,098 $24.27 2,262 $26.58

During 2005, the Company amended the terms and conditions of certain stock option grants to conform
exercise periods upon employee retirement or termination. The Company recognized $0.8 million in compensation
expense during 2005 related to this modification.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average
Options Contractual Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

(In thousands, except weighted average amounts)

Range of Exercise Prices

$10.80. .. ..ot 4 6.84 years $10.80 4 $10.80
$10.81 to $15.80 ... ... 229 6.55 years 12.87 229 12.87
$15.81 t0 $20.80 . . . . .. 1,649 5.96 years 19.18 1,169 18.87
$20.81 to $25.80 .. .. .. 1,129 6.29 years 21.99 743 21.64
$25.81 to $30.80 . . .. .. 940 3.18 years 27.98 940 27.98
$30.81 t0 $35.80 ... ... 83 1.24 years 35.08 83 35.08
$35.81 to $40.80 .. .. .. 439 2.13 years 39.51 439 39.51
$40.81 to $45.80 ... . .. 38 4.36 years 43.66 38 43.66
$45.81 t0 $50.80 ... ... 37 1.54 years 4716 37 47.16
$10.80 to $50.80 . . . . .. 4,548 4.99 years $24.06 3,682 $24.74

The Company issued an aggregate 395,000 nonvested restricted stock awards to a number of its key employees
during 2005, 2004 and 2003. Participants receive a stated amount of the Company’s common stock, as well as
dividends declared on that stock that have accumulated during the vesting period, provided they remain employed
with the Company for three years from the grant date.

The following table summarizes the activity and related information regarding nonvested restricted stock
awards issued to key employees:

Unearned Deferred
Awards Compensation Compensation Expense

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Outstanding at
beginning of

period ........... 259 246 155 $2462 $1,700 $2014 $ — $ — $ —
Merger-related

additions ......... — 13 — — 526 — — — —
Granted . .. ......... 151 150 94 — 3,881 1,255 — — —
Forfeited . .......... 9 — 3) (78) — 21) (109 — (46)
Vested/Amortized or

accrued .......... (179) (150) — (2,048) (3,645) (1,548) 2,148 3,645 1,548

Outstanding at end of
period ........... 222 259 246 $ 336 $2462 $ 1,700 $2,039 $3,645 $1,502

The Company issued 12,500 shares and 16,000 shares of restricted stock to its nonemployee directors during
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This restricted stock vested immediately but each
recipient is restricted from selling, transferring, pledging or otherwise disposing of his shares until he departs from
the Company’s Board of Directors, and then no sooner than 6 months after the date of issue. Each recipient receives
cash dividends on a quarterly basis in the amount of $.05 per share. The aggregate market value of the restricted
stock on the date the shares were issued was recognized as SG&A expense in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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The Belden 1994 Incentive Plan expired by its own terms in October 2003 and no future awards are available
under this plan. Although neither plan has been terminated, there are also no future awards available under either the
CDT 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan or the CDT Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan. The Belden
1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan expired by its own terms in September 2003 and no future purchase rights are
available under this plan.

Stock Purchase Plans

Under the Stock Purchase Plans, all full-time employees and part-time employees whose customary employ-
ment is for 20 or more hours per week and 5 or more months per year in Canada, the Netherlands, the United States
and, prior to January 1, 2004, Germany received the right to purchase a specified amount of common stock at the
lesser of 85% of the average selling price on the offering date or 85% of the average selling price on the exercise
date.

At July 15, 2004, participants in the Company’s Belden 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan held rights to
purchase approximately 0.1 million shares of the Company’s common stock at $14.92 per share. The Company’s
Belden 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides that, in the event of a change of control such as the Merger,
the Company’s Board of Directors may cancel any stock purchase right by paying in cash to a participant an amount
equal to the excess of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of said cancellation over the
offering date price per share times the number of shares covered by the cancelled stock purchase right. The fair
market value of the Company’s common stock on the consummation date of the merger between Belden and CDT
was $20.69 per share. The Company recognized $0.4 million of compensation expense during the third quarter of
2004 related to the cancellation of stock purchase rights granted under its Belden 2003 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan.

The Belden Inc. 1993 Employee Stock Purchase Plan expired by its own term in September 2003 and no future
purchase rights are available under this plan. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Belden Inc. 2003 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan was terminated on July 15, 2004.

Note 18: Stockholder Rights Plan

Under the Company’s Stockholder Rights Plan, each share of common stock generally has “attached” to it one
preferred share purchase right. Each right, when exercisable, entitles the holder to purchase 1/1000th of a share of
the Company’s Junior Participating Preferred Stock Series A at a purchase price of $150.00 (subject to adjustment).
Each 1/1000th of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock will be substantially equivalent to one
share of common stock and will be entitled to one vote, voting together with the shares of common stock. The rights
will become exercisable only if, without the prior approval of the Board of Directors, a person or group of persons
acquires or announces the intention to acquire 20% or more of the common stock. If the Company is acquired
through a merger or other business combination transaction, each right will entitle the holder to purchase $300.00
worth of the surviving company’s common stock for $150.00 (subject to adjustment). In addition, if a person or
group of persons acquires 20% or more of the common stock, each right not owned by the 20% or greater
shareholder would permit the holder to purchase $300.00 worth of common stock for $150.00 (subject to
adjustment). The rights are redeemable, at the option of the Company, at $.01 per right at any time prior to an
announcement of a beneficial owner of 20% or more of the common stock then outstanding. The rights expire on
December 11, 2006.

Note 19: Operating Leases

Operating lease expense incurred primarily for office space, machinery and equipment by the Company’s
continuing operations was $12.5 million, $8.6 million and $5.4 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Operating lease charges incurred by the Company’s discontinued operations were less than $0.4 million,
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$0.6 million and $0.3 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These charges are included in loss from
discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Minimum annual lease payments for noncancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2005 are as
follows:

(In thousands)

2000 . . $ 6,224
2007 3,795
2 2,570
2000 . . 1,443
2000 . 563
Thereafter . . ... .. 30

$14,625

Note 20: Market Concentrations and Risks
Major Customers

The following table presents revenues generated from sales to the Company’s two major customers. Both of
the Company’s segments report revenues from Anixter International, Inc. Only the Networking segment reports
revenues from British Telecom plc.

2005 2004 2003
Percent of Total Percent of Total Percent of Total
Years Ended December 31, Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
(In thousands, except % data)
Anixter International, Inc.. .. $216,104 16% $197,345 20% $118,627 19%
British Telecom plc . . ... .. 100,462 7% 94,604 10% 62,714 10%

Concentrations of Credit

The Company sells its products to many customers in several markets across multiple geographic areas. The
ten largest customers, primarily the larger distributors and communications companies, constitute in aggregate
approximately 42%, 52% and 50% of revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The following table reflects the receivables that represent the only significant concentrations of credit to which
the Company was exposed. Historically, these customers generally pay all outstanding receivables within thirty to
sixty days of invoice receipt.

2005 2004
Percent of Net Percent of Net
December 31, Amount Receivables Amount Receivables
(In thousands, except % data)
Anixter International, Inc. .. .............. $29,300 15% $23,006 13%
British Telecom plc . .. .................. 21,064 11% 11,746 7%
Graybar Electric Company, Inc. .. .......... 13,183 1% 12,971 1%
Total .. ..... ... .. . . $63,547 ﬁ % $47,723 Z%
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Labor

Approximately 41% of the Company’s labor force is covered by collective bargaining agreements at various
locations around the world. Approximately 39% of the Company’s labor force is covered by collective bargaining
agreements that the Company expects to renegotiate during 2006.

International Operations

The carrying amounts of net assets belonging to the Company’s international operations were as follows:

December 31, 2005 2004

(In thousands)
BUTOpE .« .o $211,841  $248,326
Canada . . ... e 108,830 84,604
ReSt Of WOIld . . . v vt e e e e e (22,182)  (17,704)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, debt instruments and interest rate swap agreements. The book values of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade payables and, at December 31, 2004, interest rate swap agreements are considered representative
of their respective fair values. The book value of the Company’s debt instruments at December 31, 2005 was
$231.1 million. The fair value of the debt instruments at December 31, 2005 was approximately $281.7 million
estimated on a discounted cash flow basis using currently obtainable rates for similar financing. Included in this
amount was an estimated $160.6 million fair value of convertible subordinated debentures with a face value of
$110.0 million. The fair value premium of $39.9 million related to these debentures as of the effective date of the
Merger, which related to the conversion option embedded within the debentures, was recognized as an increase to
both additional paid in capital and goodwill.

Note 21: Contingent Liabilities
General

Various claims are asserted against the Company in the ordinary course of business including those pertaining
to income tax examinations and product liability, customer, employment, vendor and patent matters. Based on facts
currently available, management believes that the disposition of the claims that are pending or asserted will not have
a materially adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flow of the Company.

Letters of Credit, Guarantees and Bonds

At December 31, 2005, the Company was party to unused standby letters of credit and unused bank guarantees
totaling $10.6 million and $5.2 million, respectively. The Company also maintains bonds totaling $4.5 million in
connection with workers compensation self-insurance programs in several states, taxation in Canada, retirement
benefits in Germany and the importation of product into the United States and Canada.

Severance and Other Related Benefits

On October 29, 2003, the Company completed the sale of part of its business in Germany to a management-led
buyout group. The Company retained liability for severance and other related benefits estimated at $0.9 million on
December 31, 2005 in the event the buyout group terminates transferred employees within three years of the buyout
date. The severance and other related benefits amounts are reduced based upon the transferred employees’ duration
of employment with the buyout group. The Company will be relieved of any remaining contingent liability related
to the transferred employees on the third anniversary of the buyout date.
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Note 22: Business Segments and Geographic Information

The Company conducts its operations through two business segments — Electronics and Networking. The
Electronics segment designs, manufactures and markets metallic and fiber optic cable products primarily with
industrial, video/sound/security and transportation/defense applications. These products are sold principally
through distributors or directly to systems integrators and original equipment manufacturers (OEMs). The
Networking segment designs, manufactures and markets metallic cable, fiber optic cable, connectivity and certain
other non-cable products primarily with networking/communications applications. These products are sold
principally through distributors or directly to systems integrators, OEMs and large telecommunications companies.

The Company evaluates business segment performance and allocates resources based on operating income
before interest and income taxes. Operating income of the two principal business segments include all the ongoing
costs of operations. Allocations to or from these business segments are not significant. Transactions between the
business segments are conducted on an arms-length basis. With the exception of certain unallocated tax assets,
substantially all the business assets are utilized by the business segments.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company began accounting for all internal sourcing of product between its
business segments as affiliate sales and directed any business segment that sold product it had sourced from an
affiliate to recognize profit applicable to both the manufacturing and selling efforts. In prior years, a business
segment that sold product it had sourced from an affiliate only recognized profit margin applicable to the selling
effort. The Company made this change as a result of increased transactions between its business segments largely
resulting from the Merger. The Company believes this change provides more useful information for purposes of
making decisions about allocating resources to the business segments and assessing their performance. The
Company has reclassified the business segment information presented for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 to reflect business segment performance as if the Company had implemented this new accounting procedure
effective January 1, 2003.

Business Segment Information

Amounts reflected in the column entitled F&A in the tables below represent corporate headquarters operating,
treasury and income tax expenses, corporate assets, and corporate investment in certain affiliates. Amounts
reflected in the column entitled Eliminations in the tables below represent the eliminations of affiliate revenues,
affiliate cost of sales, and certain investments in affiliates.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Electronics Networking F&A Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

External customer revenues . . . . . $798,986 $553,145 $ — 3 —  $1,352,131
Affiliate revenues . ........... 94,790 14,449 — (109,239) —
Total revenues . . . ............ 893,776 567,594 — (109,239) 1,352,131
Depreciation and amortization . . . (25,923) (14,307) (239) — (40,469)
Asset impairment. . .. ......... — (10,449) (2,400) — (12,849)
Operating income (loss)........ 108,899 13,023 (30,767) (23,004) 68,151
Interest expense, net .......... — — (10,091) — (10,091)
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before taxes. ... ... 108,374 12,849 (40,858) (23,004) 57,361
Identifiable assets(1) .......... 688,152 332,836 620,272 (355,313) 1,285,947
Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment(1) . ............. 17,449 5,945 395 — 23,789
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Year Ended December 31, 2004 Electronics Networking F&A  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

External customer revenues. . . .. ........... $604,372 $361,802 $ — % — $ 966,174
Affiliate revenues . . . ... ... ... 81,055 3,105 — (84,160) —
Total revenues . . ............... ... ... 685,427 364,907 —  (84,160) 966,174
Depreciation and amortization. . .. .......... (23,0190  (7,154) (319) — (30,492)
Asset impairment . . ... ... ... ... (8,871) — — — (8,871)
Operating income (10SS) . . ................ 54,100 24726  (24,534)  (11,528) 42,764
Interest expense, net . .. .................. — —  (12,881) — (12,881)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

BAXES & oo 55,532 24,655 (37,415) (11,528) 31,244
Identifiable assets(1)..................... 665,897 357,474 436,185 (132,238) 1,327,318
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment(1) . . 6,957 4,319 19 — 11,295
Year Ended December 31, 2003 Electronics Networking F&A  Eliminations Consolidated

(In thousands)

External customer revenues. . .. ............. $428,066 $196,040 — —  $624,106
Affiliate revenues. . ... ... .. .. ... ... 30,739 1,872 —  (32,611) —
Total revenues . .. .........c .. 458,805 197,912 —  (32,611) 624,106
Depreciation and amortization. . . .. .......... (18,831)  (3,944) (260) — (23,035)
Asset impairment . . .. ............. ... ... (352) — — — (352)
Operating income (loss) . .. ................ 29,657 10,201 (10,332)  (2,305) 27,221
Interest expense, net. . .................... — — (12,571) — (12,571)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

BAXES « v v v e e e 29,657 10,201 (22,903)  (2,305) 14,650
Identifiable assets(1). . .................... 333,928 111,431 250,659 (125,777) 570,241
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment(1) . . 8,953 1,029 — — 9,982

(1) Excludes discontinued operations
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Total segment operating income differs from net income (loss) reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Operating inComME. . . ..ottt t ettt $ 68,151 $42,764 $ 27,221

Interest XPense . . . . o v v vttt (15,032) (14,709) (13,118)
Interest iNCOME . . ... ...ttt e e 4,941 1,828 547

Minority interest . ... ...ttt (699) (371) —
Gain on disposal of assets . ................... .. ... ... — 1,732 —
Income tax expense . .. ... (24,719) (15,891) (4,493)
Income from continuing operations. . . .................... 32,642 15,353 10,157

Loss from discontinued operations(l) .. ................... (247) 417) (71,768)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations(2) . ............. 15,163 253 —
Net income (10SS). « . v v vt o e e e e e e e $ 47,558 $15,189  $(61,611)

(1) Net of income tax benefit of $3,261, $17,536 and $40,371, respectively
(2) Net of income tax expense of $8,529 and $142, respectively

Product and Service Group Information

It is currently impracticable for all of the Company’s operations to capture and report external customer
revenues for each group of similar products and services.

Geographic Information

The following table identifies revenues by country based on the location of the customer and long-lived assets
by country based on physical location.
United United Continental Rest of

States Canada Kingdom Europe World Total
(In thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2005

Revenues................ $690,344  $137,488  $159,622  $252,752  $111,925 $1,352,131

Percent of total revenues . . .. 51% 10% 12% 19% 8% 100%

Long-lived assets(1)........ $353,087 $ 52,674 $142,288  $106,818 % 303 $ 655,170
Year ended December 31, 2004

Revenues................ $494,173  $ 81,445 $131,663  $168,784  $ 90,109 $ 966,174

Percent of total revenues . . .. 51% 8% 14% 18% 9% 100%

Long-lived assets(1)........ $368,317 $ 56,476  $150,075  $133,648 $ 620 $ 709,136
Year ended December 31, 2003

Revenues................ $314,603 $ 51,794 $ 82,623  $102,637 $ 72,449 $ 624,106

Percent of total revenues . . .. 50% 8% 13% 17% 12% 100%

Long-lived assets(1)........ $146,130 $ 14,712 $ 28,800 $ 67,372 $ 536 $ 257,550

(1) Excludes long-lived assets of discontinued operations
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Note 23: Quarterly Operating Results (unaudited)

2005 ™ 2 3 4 Year
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Number of days in quarter. .. ................ 86 91 91 97 365
Revenues ....... ... .. ... .. . . ... $309,111 $337,701 $342,389 $362,930 $1,352,131
Gross profit . ......... ... ... ... ... . ... ... 65,131 75,214 76,345 68,434 285,124
Operating income . . . .............o. ..., 16,201 18,734 14,774 18,442 68,151
Income from continuing operations . ........... 8,524 10,546 6,078 7,494 32,642
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . (1,881) (544) (13) 2,191 (247)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations. . . . . . 6,400 8,763 — — 15,163
Netincome. ........o.vuiiiinneennnnnn.. 13,043 18,765 6,065 9,685 47,558
Basic income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations . . .................. $ 18 3 223 A3 3 17 72

Discontinued operations. . . ................ (.04) .01) — .05 .01)

Disposal of discontinued operations . . .. ... ... .14 .19 — — .33

Net income (10SS) . ...................... .28 .40 13 22 1.04
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations . . .................. $ 17 % 21 % A3 % .16 .68

Discontinued operations. . .. ............... (.03) .01) — .05 .01)

Disposal of discontinued operations . . . ....... 12 .16 — — .29

Net income (10SS) . .........coviiinnn... .26 .36 13 21 .96
2004 1* 2 3 Q) 4 Year

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Number of days in quarter ................ 88 91 91 96 366
Revenues .. ........ ... ... ... ... . ... $170,103  $184,307  $281,454  $330,310 $966,174
Gross profit . ............. . ... 34,135 34,068 53,211 78,659 200,073
Operating income (10ss) .. ................ 8,922 9,823 (3,187) 27,206 42,764
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . 3,796 6,162 (3,201) 8,596 15,353
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . . (1,496) (5,823) (2,809) 9,711 417)
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued

OpPerations. . . .. v v vttt — 3,020 (1,529) (1,238) 253
Net income (10SS) . . . ... ovvv v 2,300 3,359 (7,539) 17,069 15,189
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing operations . . . ............... $ A5 3 24 % (08 $ .18 43

Discontinued operations . ............... (.06) (.23) .07 21 01

Disposal of discontinued operations. . . ... .. — 12 (.03) (.03) .01

Net income (loss) .. ................... .09 13 (.18) .36 43
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing operations . . . ............... $ A5 08 24 % (08) $ 17 43

Discontinued operations . . .............. (.06) (.23) .07 18 .01)

Disposal of discontinued operations. . ... ... — 12 (.03) (.02) .01

Net income (Ioss) . . ................... .09 13 (.18) 33 43

(1) Includes asset impairment totaling $12.8 million.

(2) Includes asset impairment totaling $8.9 million.
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Note 24: Minimum Requirements Contract Income

The Company had a contractual “sales incentive” agreement with a Networking segment customer that
requires the customer to purchase quantities of product from the Company generating at a minimum $3.0 million in
gross profit per annum or pay the Company compensation according to contractual terms through December 31,
2005. During each of the years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the customer did not make the minimum required purchases
and the Company was entitled to receive compensation according to the terms of the agreement. As a result, the
Company recognized $3.0 million in operating income in the fourth quarter of 2005, 2004 and 2003. The contract
expired upon receipt of the 2005 payment.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision
and with the participation of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)). Based on this evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the
period covered by this report.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company experienced the departure of key financial personnel at one of
its business units. As a result of those departures, the Company identified a material weakness at that business unit
that was remediated by implementing additional manual control procedures and reassigning duties of remaining
personnel until appropriate replacement personnel are hired.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Belden CDT is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f).

Belden CDT management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. In conducting its evaluation, Belden CDT management used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management believes the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report that follows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Belden CDT Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Belden CDT Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Belden
CDT Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Belden CDT Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, Belden CDT Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Belden CDT Inc. as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 8, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 8, 2006
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant

Information regarding directors is incorporated herein by reference to “Matters to Be Voted On: Item 1 —
Election of Directors,” as described in the Proxy Statement. Information regarding executive officers is set forth in
Part I herein under the heading “Executive Officers.” The additional information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to “Board Structure and Compensation” (opening paragraph and table), “Board
Structure and Compensation — Audit Committee,” “Beneficial Ownership Table of Directors, Nominees and
Executive Officers — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Board Structure and
Compensation — Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee” as described in the Proxy Statement.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated herein by reference to “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” as described in
the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters

Incorporated herein by reference to “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Stock Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” as described in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Incorporated herein by reference to “Executive Compensation — Certain Relationships and Related Trans-
actions” as described in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated herein by reference to “Board Structure and Compensation — Fees to Independent Registered
Public Accountants for 2005 and 2004” and “Board Structure and Compensation — Audit Committee’s Pre-
Approval Policies and Procedures” as described in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:
1. Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Operations for Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 31,
2005

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 31, 2005

Consolidated Stockholders’ Equity Statements for Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended
December 31, 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Charged to
Beginning Costs and Divestures/ Charge Currency Ending
Balance  Expenses Acquisitions Offs Recoveries Movement Balance

(In thousands)

Accounts Receivable — Allowance
for Doubtful Accounts:

2005 ... $ 5618 $ 708 $§ 269 $ (2,063) $(612) $ (54) $ 3,866
2004 .. 2,683 706 3,704 (1,681) — 206 5,618
2003 .. 2,536 819 — (681) — 9 2,683

Inventories — Obsolescence and
Other Valuation Allowances:

2005 . oo $22,691 $7,582 $ — $(13,071) $ — $ (806) $16,396
2004 .o 3,763 3,013 19360  (5001) — 1556 22,691
2003 . 7953 4310 (757)  (8,066)  — 323 3,763

Deferred Income Tax Asset —
Valuation Allowance:

2005 . $22,565 $5510 $ — S — $476) $ 187 $27.,786
2004 .. 9,792 9,473 3,370 — (70) — 22,565
2003 .. 6,805 3,473 — —  (4806) — 9,792

All other financial statement schedules not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been omitted
because they are not applicable.

3. Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference. Documents
indicated by an asterisk (*) are filed herewith; documents indicated by a double asterisk identify each
management contract or compensatory plan. Documents not indicated by an asterisk are incorporated herein by
reference to the document indicated.

Exhibit No. Description

2.1  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 4, 2004, by and among Cable Design
Technologies Corporation, BC Merger Corp. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Cable Design Technologies Corporation
(“CDT”) filed on February 5, 2004)

2.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 25, 2004, by and among
Cable Design Technologies Corporation, BC Merger Corp. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 to Amendment No. 2 to CDT’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, File
Number 333-113875, filed on May 28, 2004)

3.1  Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31,
2005)

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2005)

4.1  Rights Agreement dated as of December 11, 1996, between the Company and Equiserve Trust
Company, N.A., successor to The First National Bank of Boston, as Rights Agent, including the form of
Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Junior Participating Preferred Stock, Series A
attached thereto as Exhibit A, the form of Rights Certificate attached thereto as Exhibit B and the
Summary of Rights attached thereto as Exhibit C (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the
Registration Statement of Cable Design Technologies Corporation (“CDT”) on Form 8-A, File
Number 000-22724, filed on December 11, 1996)
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Exhibit No.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

10.1

10.2

10.3

Description

Amendment to Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Indenture, dated July 8, 2003, between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debentures Due July 15, 2023 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to CDT’s Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2003 filed on
October 29, 2003)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 8, 2003, relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended July 31, 2003 filed on October 29, 2003)

Purchase Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, between the Company and Credit Suisse First Boston LLC,
relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debentures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to
CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2003 filed on October 29, 2003)

Form of 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debenture due 2023 (included in the Indenture filed as
Exhibit 4.3 above)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 1, 1997, providing for up to $200,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of Senior Notes issuable in series, with an initial series of Senior Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of $75,000,000, between Belden Inc. as issuer and, as purchasers,
Swanbird and Company, Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company, Nationwide Mutual Insurance
Company, State Farm Life Insurance Company, Gerlach and Company and Cudd and Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Annual Report of Belden Inc. (“Belden”) on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997 filed on March 25, 1998)

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.7, dated as of September 1,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Amended and Restated Series 1997-A Guaranty of Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cable Systems
International Inc. (later Belden Inc.) dated as of September 1, 1999, pertaining to the First Amendment
to Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.8 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to
Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1999, providing for $125,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of Senior Notes issuable in series, with three series of Senior Notes in the principal
amounts of $64,000,000, $44,000,000, and $17,000,000, respectively, between Belden Inc. as issuer
and, as purchasers, State Farm Life Insurance Company, State Farm Life and Accident Assurance
Company, United of Omaha Life Insurance Company, American United Life Insurance Company, The
State Life Insurance Company, Ameritas Variable Life Insurance Company, Modern Woodmen of
America, Woodmen Accident and Life Company, Chimebridge and Company and Pru and Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Guaranty of Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cable Systems International Inc. (later Belden Inc.)
dated as of September 1, 1999, pertaining to the Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.10
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Asset Transfer Agreement by and between Cooper Industries, Inc. and Belden Wire & Cable Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Canadian Asset Transfer Agreement by and between Cooper Industries (Canada) Inc. and Belden
(Canada) Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Trademark License Agreement by and between Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cooper Industries,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)
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Exhibit No.

10.4

10.5

**10.6

**10.7

**10.8

**10.9

*%10.10

*#10.11

**10.12

*#10.13

*+10.14

*%10.15

**10.16

**10.17

*#10.18

Description

Stock Agreement by and between Cooper Industries, Inc. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993
filed on November 15, 1993)

Tax Sharing and Separation Agreement by and among Belden Inc., Cooper Industries, Inc., and Belden
Wire & Cable Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Change of Control Employment Agreements, dated as of July 31, 2001, between Belden Inc. and each
of C. Baker Cunningham, Richard K. Reece, Cathy O. Staples and Kevin L. Bloomfield (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001 filed on November 13, 2001)

Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2002, between Belden Inc. and
D. Larrie Rose, and Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2002, between
Belden Inc. and Robert W. Matz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Belden’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2002)

Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2003, between Belden Inc. and
Stephen H. Johnson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Belden’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)

First Amendment to Change of Control Employment Agreement dated as of June 28, 2004 between
Belden Inc. (assumed by the Company) and each of C. Baker Cunningham, Richard K. Reece,
Kevin L. Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Robert W. Matz, Stephen H. Johnson and Cathy O. Staples
(incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.13-10.19 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Form of Change in Control Agreement dated October 6, 2003 between the Company and each of
Robert Canny and Peter Sheehan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to CDT’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2003 filed on December 15, 2003)

Retention Award Letter Agreement dated June 28, 2004 between Belden Inc. (assumed by the
Company) and each of Kevin L. Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Stephen H. Johnson and Cathy O.
Staples (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.3, 10.4, 10.6 and 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Retention Award Letter Agreement dated July 8, 2004 between the Company and each of Robert Canny
and Peter Sheehan (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.8 and 10.10 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Separation of Employment Agreement dated November 2, 2005 between the Company and C. Baker
Cunningham (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2005)

General Release of All Claims dated November 2, 2005 between the Company and C. Baker
Cunningham (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2005)

Executive Employment Agreement dated September 26, 2005 between the Company and John Stroup
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 27, 2005)

Separation Agreement dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 2, 2005)

Non-Compete Covenant dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 2, 2005)

General Release of All Claims dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 2, 2005)
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Exhibit No.

**10.19

**10.20

*%10.21

*%10.22

*%10.23

*%10.24

*%10.25

*%10.26

*%10.27

*%10.28

*%10.29

*%10.30

*%10.31

*%10.32

*%10.33

*%10.34

*%10.35

Description

Separation Agreement dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on February 10, 2006)

Non-Compete Covenant dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on February 10, 2006)

General Release of All Claims dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 10, 2006)

Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 1, 2004 between the Company and each of C. Baker
Cunningham, Richard K. Reece, Kevin L. Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Robert Matz, Stephen H.
Johnson, Cathy O. Staples, Robert Canny, Peter Sheehan, Christopher I. Byrnes, John M. Monter,
Lorne D. Bain, Bernard G. Rethore, Bryan C. Cressey, Lance C. Balk, Michael F.O. Harris and Glenn
Kalnasy (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.32-10.49 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Belden’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-51088, filed on December 1, 2000)

Amendment to Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 4, 2004)

Amendment to Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-117906, filed on August 3,
2004)

Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Belden’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-107241, filed on July 22, 2003)

Amendment to Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 4,
2004)

Amendment to Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-117906, filed on August 3,
2004)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
September 23, 1993) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to CDT’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, File Number 33-69992, filed on November 1, 1993)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation Supplemental Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(adopted December 12, 1995) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to CDT’s Proxy Statement
filed on January 17, 1996)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
April 19, 1999 and amended June 11, 1999) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to CDT’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Amendment No. 2, dated July 13, 2000, to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 1999 Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to CDT’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2000 filed on October 27, 2000)

Form of June 11, 1999 Stock Option Grant under the 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Form of April 23, 1999 Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to CDT’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
December 6, 2000) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2001 filed on March 15, 2001)
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Exhibit No.

*%10.36

*##%10.37
*%10.38

*%10.39

*%10.40

*#10.41

*%10.42

*%10.43

410,44

*%10.45

*%10.46

*%10.47

*#%10.48
*##%10.49
*%10.50

**10.51

*%10.52

Description

Amendment to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended January 31, 2002 filed on March 13, 2002)

Amendment to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan

Amendments to Long Term Performance Incentive Plan (1993), Supplemental Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (1995), 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan and 2001 Long-
Term Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Grant under Cable Design Technologies Corporation
2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CDT’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2001 filed on March 15, 2001)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant, dated October 16, 2002, under the 2001 and Supplemental Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2002 filed on December 16, 2002)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan to each of Bryan C. Cressey, Lance C. Balk, Glenn Kalnasy, and Michael
F.O. Harris in the amount of 2,000 shares each (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan to each of Bryan C. Cressey, Lorne D. Bain, Lance C. Balk, Christopher I.
Byrnes, Michael F.O. Harris, Glenn Kalnasy, John M. Monter and Bernard G. Rethore in the amount of
2,500 shares each (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan and the Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 filed on May 10, 2005)

Belden CDT Inc. Long-Term Cash Performance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31,
2005)

Belden CDT Inc. Annual Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2006)

2004 Belden CDT Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2004)

Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan, restated effective January 1, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2005 filed on November 9, 2005)

First Amendment to the Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan
Second Amendment to the Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan

Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan, as amended and restated
as of January 1, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Belden’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

First Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

Second Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)
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Exhibit No.

*%10.53

*%10.54

*%10.55

*#10.56

**10.57

*%10.58

*%10.59

*%10.60

*#10.61

*##%10.62
10.63

*14.1
*21.1
*23.1
*24.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2

Description

Third Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan, as amended and
restated as of January 1, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Belden’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

First Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

Second Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)

Third Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Trust Agreement dated as of January 1, 2001 establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire &
Cable Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan) and CG Trust Company (now
Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)
First Amendment to the Trust Agreement establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire & Cable
Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan) and CG Trust Company (now Prudential
Bank & Trust, F.S.B.) dated as of July 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)

Trust Agreement dated as of January 1, 2001 establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire &
Cable Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan) and CG Trust Company
(now Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)
First Amendment to the Trust Agreement establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire & Cable
Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan) and CG Trust Company (now
Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.) dated as of July 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)

Indemnification Agreement dated as of October 31, 2005 between the Company and John Stroup
Credit Agreement dated as of January 24, 2006 among Belden CDT Inc., as Borrower, Belden Wire &
Cable Company, Belden CDT Networking, Inc., Nordx/CDT Corp., Thermax/CDT, Inc., Belden
Holdings, Inc., Belden Technologies, Inc., Belden Inc. and CDT International Holdings Inc., as
Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administrative
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 Belden’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 27, 2006)

Code of Ethics

List of Subsidiaries of Belden CDT Inc.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Powers of Attorney from Members of the Board of Directors of Belden CDT Inc.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
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Copies of the above Exhibits are available to shareholders at a charge of $.25 per page, minimum order of
$10.00. Direct requests to:

Belden CDT Inc., Attention: Secretary
7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 800
St. Louis, Missouri 63105
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 16, 2006

BELDEN CDT INC.

By: /s/ JOHN S. STROUP

John S. Stroup

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ JOHN S. STROUP

John S. Stroup

/s/  STEPHEN H. JOHNSON

Stephen H. Johnson

/s/ JOHN S. NORMAN

John S. Norman

/s/  BRYAN C. CRESSEY*

Bryan C. Cressey

/s/  LORNE D. BAIN*

Lorne D. Bain

/s/  LANCE BALK*

Lance Balk

/s/  CHRISTOPER I. BYRNES*

Christoper 1. Byrnes

/s/  MICHAEL F.O. HARRIS*

Michael F.O. Harris

/s/  GLENN KALNASY*

Glenn Kalnasy

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial
Officer

Controller and Chief Accounting

Officer

Chairman of the Board and Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006



/s/  JOHN M. MONTER* Director
John M. Monter

/s/ BERNARD G. RETHORE#* Director
Bernard G. Rethore

*By: /s/ JOHN S. STROUP
John S. Stroup,
Attorney-in-fact
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Exhibit No.

2.1

2.2

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 4, 2004, by and among Cable Design
Technologies Corporation, BC Merger Corp. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Cable Design Technologies Corporation
(“CDT”) filed on February 5, 2004)

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 25, 2004, by and among
Cable Design Technologies Corporation, BC Merger Corp. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 to Amendment No. 2 to CDT’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, File
Number 333-113875, filed on May 28, 2004)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31,
2005)

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2005)

Rights Agreement dated as of December 11, 1996, between the Company and Equiserve Trust
Company, N.A., successor to The First National Bank of Boston, as Rights Agent, including the form of
Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Junior Participating Preferred Stock, Series A
attached thereto as Exhibit A, the form of Rights Certificate attached thereto as Exhibit B and the
Summary of Rights attached thereto as Exhibit C (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the
Registration Statement of Cable Design Technologies Corporation (“CDT”) on Form 8-A, File
Number 000-22724, filed on December 11, 1996)

Amendment to Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Indenture, dated July 8, 2003, between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debentures Due July 15, 2023 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2003 filed on
October 29, 2003)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 8, 2003, relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended July 31, 2003 filed on October 29, 2003)

Purchase Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, between the Company and Credit Suisse First Boston LLC,
relating to 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debentures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to
CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2003 filed on October 29, 2003)

Form of 4.00% Convertible Subordinated Debenture due 2023 (included in the Indenture filed as
Exhibit 4.3 above)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 1, 1997, providing for up to $200,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of Senior Notes issuable in series, with an initial series of Senior Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of $75,000,000, between Belden Inc. as issuer and, as purchasers,
Swanbird and Company, Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company, Nationwide Mutual Insurance
Company, State Farm Life Insurance Company, Gerlach and Company and Cudd and Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Annual Report of Belden Inc. (“Belden”) on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997 filed on March 25, 1998)

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.7, dated as of September 1,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Amended and Restated Series 1997-A Guaranty of Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cable Systems
International Inc. (later Belden Inc.) dated as of September 1, 1999, pertaining to the First Amendment
to Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.8 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to
Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)
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Exhibit No.

4.10

4.11

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

*%10.6

*#10.7

*#10.8

*%10.9

*%10.10

*+10.11

Description

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1999, providing for $125,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of Senior Notes issuable in series, with three series of Senior Notes in the principal
amounts of $64,000,000, $44,000,000, and $17,000,000, respectively, between Belden Inc. as issuer
and, as purchasers, State Farm Life Insurance Company, State Farm Life and Accident Assurance
Company, United of Omaha Life Insurance Company, American United Life Insurance Company, The
State Life Insurance Company, Ameritas Variable Life Insurance Company, Modern Woodmen of
America, Woodmen Accident and Life Company, Chimebridge and Company and Pru and Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Guaranty of Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cable Systems International Inc. (later Belden Inc.)
dated as of September 1, 1999, pertaining to the Note Purchase Agreement listed above as Exhibit 4.10
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 filed on March 24, 2000)

Asset Transfer Agreement by and between Cooper Industries, Inc. and Belden Wire & Cable Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Canadian Asset Transfer Agreement by and between Cooper Industries (Canada) Inc. and Belden
(Canada) Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Trademark License Agreement by and between Belden Wire & Cable Company and Cooper Industries,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Stock Agreement by and between Cooper Industries, Inc. and Belden Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993
filed on November 15, 1993)

Tax Sharing and Separation Agreement by and among Belden Inc., Cooper Industries, Inc., and Belden
Wire & Cable Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 filed on November 15, 1993)

Change of Control Employment Agreements, dated as of July 31, 2001, between Belden Inc. and each
of C. Baker Cunningham, Richard K. Reece, Cathy O. Staples and Kevin L. Bloomfield (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Belden’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001 filed on November 13, 2001)

Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2002, between Belden Inc. and
D. Larrie Rose, and Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2002, between
Belden Inc. and Robert W. Matz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Belden’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2002)

Change of Control Employment Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2003, between Belden Inc. and
Stephen H. Johnson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Belden’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)

First Amendment to Change of Control Employment Agreement dated as of June 28, 2004 between
Belden Inc. (assumed by the Company) and each of C. Baker Cunningham, Richard K. Reece, Kevin L.
Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Robert W. Matz, Stephen H. Johnson and Cathy O. Staples (incorporated
by reference to Exhibits 10.13-10.19 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Form of Change in Control Agreement dated October 6, 2003 between the Company and each of
Robert Canny and Peter Sheehan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to CDT’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2003 filed on December 15, 2003)

Retention Award Letter Agreement dated June 28, 2004 between Belden Inc. (assumed by the
Company) and each of Kevin L. Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Stephen H. Johnson and Cathy O.
Staples (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.3, 10.4, 10.6 and 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)
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Exhibit No.

*%10.12

*%10.13

*%10.14

*#10.15

*%10.16

*10.17

*%10.18

*%10.19

*%10.20

*%10.21

*%10.22

*%10.23

*%10.24

*%10.25

*%10.26

*10.27

*%10.28

Description

Retention Award Letter Agreement dated July 8, 2004 between the Company and each of Robert Canny
and Peter Sheehan (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.8 and 10.10 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Separation of Employment Agreement dated November 2, 2005 between the Company and C. Baker
Cunningham (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2005)

General Release of All Claims dated November 2, 2005 between the Company and C. Baker
Cunningham (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 8, 2005)

Executive Employment Agreement dated September 26, 2005 between the Company and John Stroup
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 27, 2005)

Separation Agreement dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 2, 2005)

Non-Compete Covenant dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 2, 2005)

General Release of All Claims dated November 30, 2005 between the Company and Richard K. Reece
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 2, 2005)

Separation Agreement dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on February 10, 2006)

Non-Compete Covenant dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on February 10, 2006)

General Release of All Claims dated February 6, 2006 between the Company and Robert W. Matz
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 10, 2006)

Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 1, 2004 between the Company and each of C. Baker
Cunningham, Richard K. Reece, Kevin L. Bloomfield, D. Larrie Rose, Robert Matz, Stephen H.
Johnson, Cathy O. Staples, Robert Canny, Peter Sheehan, Christopher I. Byrnes, John M. Monter,
Lorne D. Bain, Bernard G. Rethore, Bryan C. Cressey, Lance C. Balk, Michael F.O. Harris and Glenn
Kalnasy (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.32-10.49 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Belden’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-51088, filed on December 1, 2000)

Amendment to Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 4, 2004)

Amendment to Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-117906, filed on August 3,
2004)

Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Belden’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-107241, filed on July 22, 2003)
Amendment to Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 4,
2004)

Amendment to Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3

to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File Number 333-117906, filed on August 3,
2004)
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*%10.29

*%10.30

*%10.31

*%10.32

*%10.33

*%10.34

*%10.35

*%10.36

*H%10.37
*%10.38

*%10.39

*%10.40

*+10.41

*%10.42

*%10.43

*%10.44

Description

Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
September 23, 1993) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to CDT’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, File Number 33-69992, filed on November 1, 1993)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation Supplemental Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(adopted December 12, 1995) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to CDT’s Proxy Statement
filed on January 17, 1996)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
April 19, 1999 and amended June 11, 1999) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to CDT’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Amendment No. 2, dated July 13, 2000, to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 1999 Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to CDT’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2000 filed on October 27, 2000)

Form of June 11, 1999 Stock Option Grant under the 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to CDT’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Form of April 23, 1999 Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to CDT’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 1999 filed on October 27, 1999)

Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (adopted
December 6, 2000) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2001 filed on March 15, 2001)

Amendment to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended January 31, 2002 filed on March 13, 2002)

Amendment to Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan

Amendments to Long Term Performance Incentive Plan (1993), Supplemental Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (1995), 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan and 2001 Long-
Term Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Grant under Cable Design Technologies Corporation
2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CDT’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2001 filed on March 15, 2001)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant, dated October 16, 2002, under the 2001 and Supplemental Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to CDT’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2002 filed on December 16, 2002)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan to each of Bryan C. Cressey, Lance C. Balk, Glenn Kalnasy, and Michael
F.O. Harris in the amount of 2,000 shares each (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)

Form of Restricted Stock Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan to each of Bryan C. Cressey, Lorne D. Bain, Lance C. Balk, Christopher I.
Byrnes, Michael F.O. Harris, Glenn Kalnasy, John M. Monter and Bernard G. Rethore in the amount of
2,500 shares each (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Grant under the 2001 Cable Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term
Performance Incentive Plan and the Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005 filed on May 10, 2005)

Belden CDT Inc. Long-Term Cash Performance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31,
2005)
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*%10.45

*%10.46

*%10.47

*%10.48
*#%10.49
*%10.50

*%10.51

*%10.52
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*%10.54

*%10.55

*#10.56

**10.57

*%10.58

*%10.59

*%10.60
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Description

Belden CDT Inc. Annual Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2006)

2004 Belden CDT Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2004)

Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan, restated effective January 1, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2005 filed on November 9, 2005)

First Amendment to the Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan
Second Amendment to the Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan

Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan, as amended and restated
as of January 1, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Belden’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

First Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

Second Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)

Third Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan, as amended and
restated as of January 1, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Belden’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

First Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 filed on March 22, 2002)

Second Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Belden’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 filed on March 14, 2003)

Third Amendment to Belden Wire & Cable Company Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

Trust Agreement dated as of January 1, 2001 establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire &
Cable Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan) and CG Trust Company (now
Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)

First Amendment to the Trust Agreement establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire & Cable
Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Benefit Plan) and CG Trust Company (now Prudential
Bank & Trust, F.S.B.) dated as of July 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)

Trust Agreement dated as of January 1, 2001 establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire &
Cable Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan) and CG Trust Company
(now Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on November 15, 2004)
First Amendment to the Trust Agreement establishing the Trust by and between Belden Wire & Cable
Company (for the Supplemental Excess Defined Contribution Plan) and CG Trust Company (now
Prudential Bank & Trust, F.S.B.) dated as of July 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55

to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 filed on
November 15, 2004)
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##%10.62
10.63

*14.1
*21.1
*23.1
*24.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2

Description

Indemnification Agreement dated as of October 31, 2005 between the Company and John Stroup

Credit Agreement dated as of January 24, 2006 among Belden CDT Inc., as Borrower, Belden Wire &
Cable Company, Belden CDT Networking, Inc., Nordx/CDT Corp., Thermax/CDT, Inc., Belden
Holdings, Inc., Belden Technologies, Inc., Belden Inc. and CDT International Holdings Inc., as
Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administrative
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 Belden’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 27, 2006)

Code of Ethics

List of Subsidiaries of Belden CDT Inc.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Powers of Attorney from Members of the Board of Directors of Belden CDT Inc.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 10.37

AMENDMENT TO CABLE DESIGN TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
2001 LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN

The Cable Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance
Incentive Plan is amended as follows:

1. The first sentence in Paragraph 4 (b) is revised to read: "There
may be issued under the Plan (as Restricted Stock, in payment of
Performance Grants, pursuant to the exercise of Stock Options or Stock
Appreciation Rights, or in payment of or pursuant to the exercise of such
other Awards as the Committee, in its discretion, may determine) an
aggregate of not more than 3,400,000 Common Shares (after the reverse
stock split effective on July 15, 2004), subject to adjustment as provided
in Paragraph 14.

2. The second sentence of Paragraph 4 (b) is revised to read: "In any
one calendar year, the Committee shall not grant to any one participant
options or SARs to purchase a number of shares of Common Stock, and shall
not grant to any one participant Restricted Stock or Performance Grants,
in excess of 400,000 shares."

3. The first sentence of Paragraph 5(a) 1s revised to read: "The
option price shall not be less than the fair market value of the Common
Shares subject to such Option at the time the Option is granted, as
determined by the Committee, and if an incentive stock option is granted
to an employee who owns stock representing more than ten percent of the
voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any parent or
subsidiary (a "Ten Percent Employee"), such option price shall not be less
than 110% of such fair market value at the time the Option is granted."

4. The following sentence is added at the end of Paragraph 6(d):
"The exercise price of a Common Share subject to a Stock Appreciation
Right shall not be less than the fair market value of a Common Share on
the grant date."

5. The last sentence in Paragraph 11 is revised to read:
"Notwithstanding any contrary provision, without approval of shareholders,
the Committee may not reprice Options or permit holders of Awards to
surrender outstanding Awards in exchange for the grant of new Awards under
the Plan."



EXHIBIT 10.48

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
BELDEN CDT INC.
RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

WHEREAS, Belden CDT Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer") established
the Belden Wire & Cable Company Retirement Savings Plan (hereinafter referred to
as the "Plan") restated as of January 1, 2005 for the benefit of certain
employees of the Employer;

WHEREAS, Section 1 of Article XVIII of the Plan in effect prior to this
amendment provides that the Employer may amend the Plan at any time;

WHEREAS, the Employer deems it desirable to make certain revisions to the Plan;

WHEREAS, the Employer has authorized and directed the merger of the Belden
Communications Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan effective December
31, 2005;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is amended hereinafter set forth, effective December
31, 2005, unless otherwise stated therein.

1. The Plan is hereby amended by the addition of the Addendum following:

"BELDEN CDT INC.
RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

FOR THE PARTICIPANTS OF THE
BELDEN COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OCCUPATIONAL EMPLOYEES SAVINGS PLAN

Section 1 Merger

Effective December 31, 2005, the Belden Communications Company
Occupational Employees Savings Plan was merged into this Plan. The
transfer of the Belden Communications Company Occupational Employees
Savings Plan assets and liabilities to this Plan and the trust fund
hereunder is expected to occur as soon as administratively possible after
December 31, 2005. As a result of that merger, the benefits of all
participants of the Belden Communications Company Occupational Employees
Savings Plan shall be paid by this Plan, subject to the terms of this
Addendum. Such participants of the Belden Communications Company
Occupational Employees Savings Plan shall accordingly become Participants
of this Plan as of December 31, 2005, and shall be covered by the terms of
this Plan subject to the terms of this Addendum as to the provisions
enumerated below.

Section 2 Terminated Vested Belden Communications Company Occupational
Employees Savings Plan Participants on December 31, 2005. (There were no
active



employees in the Belden Communications Company Occupational Employees
Savings Plan on or after December 31, 2005.)

Effective December 31, 2005 all benefits of the Belden Communications
Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan participants who had
terminated employment with Belden Communications Company prior to December
31, 2005 with a vested right to a benefit under the Belden Communications
Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan but had not yet begun to
receive that benefit shall become liabilities of this Plan and shall be
paid by this Plan in accordance with the terms of this Plan including this
Addendum.

Section 3 Protection of Benefits

Effective December 31, 2005, the former participants in the Belden
Communications Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan are treated as
specified in the Plan except as noted below.

1. Article XIV, Section 5: A former Belden Communications Company
Occupational Employees Savings Plan Participant may elect that his
vested Account balance from the Belden Communications Company
Occupational Employees Savings Plan be distributed in two parts as a
percent or in a dollar amount between: a lump sum payment and leave
in the plan (the remaining Account balance after the distribution
must be at least $5,000). No other Form of Payment under Section 5
of Article XIV is available to the transferred Account balance from
the Belden Communications Company Occupational Employees Savings
Plan.

2. Article XIV, Section 4(B): Separate Accounts shall be maintained
with respect to benefits that will be transferred from the Belden
Communications Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan to the
Plan as soon as administratively possible after December 31, 2005,
the Account balance transferred shall be the Participant’s Account
balance as of the day before the transfer. Each Participant shall be
vested in all monies transferred in this transfer from the Belden
Communications Company Occupational Employees Savings Plan according
to the vesting requirements of that plan."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Belden Wire & Cable Company, by its duly authorized officer,
executes this amendment on the 8th day of December, 2005.

BELDEN CDT INC.

By /s/ CATHY ODOM STAPLES
Cathy Odom Staples

Its: Vice President, Human Resources

ATTEST:

/s/ EIVIND J. KOLEMAINEN



EXHIBIT 10.49

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE
BELDEN CDT INC.
RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

WHEREAS, Belden CDT Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") established
the Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan (hereinafter referred to as the
"Plan") restated as of January 1, 2005 for the benefit of certain employees of
the Employer;

WHEREAS, Section 1 of Article XVIII of the Plan provides that the Company may
amend the Plan at any time by resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors or
by any persons authorized by resolution of the Directors to make amendments;

WHEREAS, the Plan must be amended to conform to the final 401 (k) and 401 (m)
regulations published on December 29, 2004. This Amendment is intended as good
faith compliance with the requirements of the final 401 (k) and 401 (m)
regulations and is to be construed in accordance with these regulations and
guidance issued thereunder;

WHEREAS, the Company deems it desirable to make certain revisions to the Plan
regarding the investment fund designed to invest primarily in employer
securities effective January 1, 2006 (unless expressly noted otherwise); and

WHEREAS, the Company deems it desirable to make certain revisions to Plan
regarding the interest rate for Participant loans.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is amended hereinafter set forth.

1. Article I is amended to delete definition 8 and replace it with the
following:

"8. Prior to the discontinuance beginning after December 31, 2006, the
"Belden CDT Stock Fund" meant the Investment Fund virtually all invested
in Belden CDT Stock, as further described in Article XVI, Section 2(B).
Before July 15, 2004, the Belden CDT Stock Fund was known as the Belden
Stock Fund."

2. Article IV Section 3 is deleted and replaced with the following
"Section 3. Transmittal to Trustee

Elective Deferrals shall be deposited with the Trustee as of the earliest
date the contributions can reasonably be segregated from the Employer’s
general assets. In no event shall those amounts be deposited later than 90
days from the date the amounts would otherwise have been payable to the
Participant in cash or, effective February 3, 1997, later than 15 business
days (plus any extension permitted by final Department of Labor
regulation) after the end of the month during which the amounts would
otherwise have been payable to the Participant in cash.



Effective for Plan Years beginning on or after January 1, 2006, Elective
Deferrals must be deposited with the Trustee after the Employee’s
performance of service with respect to which the Elective Deferrals are
made or, if earlier, when the cash or other taxable benefit would be
currently available. This requirement shall not apply to Elective
Deferrals for a pay period that occasionally are made before the services
with respect to that pay period are performed if the contributions are
made early to accommodate bona fide administration considerations and are
not paid early with a principal purpose of accelerating deductions."

3. Article VI Section 3 (A), the first paragraph is deleted and replaced with
the following:

"(A) Nondiscrimination Test

For each Plan Year the Plan must satisfy a special nondiscrimination test
to be referred to as the Actual Deferral Percentage Test (ADP Test).
However, for Plan Years beginning after December 31, 1998, the ADP Test is
deemed to have been satisfied".

4. Article VII Section 2 is amended by the adding of paragraph (D) to the end of
the Section as follows:

" (D) Transmittal to Trustee

Effective for Plan Years beginning on or after January 1, 2006, Employer
Matching Contributions attributable to Elective Deferrals must be
deposited with the Trustee after the Employee’s performance of service
with respect to which the Elective Deferrals are made or, if earlier, when
the cash or other taxable benefit would be currently available. This
requirement shall not apply to any Forfeitures allocated as Employer
Matching Contributions and contributions for a pay period that
occasionally are made before the services with respect to that pay period
are performed if the contributions are made early to accommodate bona fide
administration considerations and are not paid early with a principal
purpose of accelerating deductions."

5. Article VII, Section 3(C) the last paragraph is deleted and replaced with the
following:

"Notwithstanding the above, the Company may elect pursuant to a resolution
that the Qualified Nonelective Contributions may be allocated only to
Eligible Participants who are Nonhighly Compensated Employees. The Company
may also elect that the amounts of Qualified Nonelective Contributions be
evenly distributed to the Eligible Participants who are Nonhighly
Compensated Employees. Lastly, the Board of Directors may elect to
allocate Qualified Nonelective Contributions to the Eligible Participants
employed on the last day of the Plan Year who are Nonhighly Compensated
Employees in order of compensation beginning with the Employee with the
lowest compensation with each Employee receiving the maximum amount of
Qualified Nonelective Contributions allowed under Article IX, effective
for Plan Years beginning on or after January 1, 2006, are not more than 5%
of Compensation until sufficient Qualified Nonelective Contributions have
been contributed to satisfy the Actual Deferral Percentage Test and the
Actual Contribution Percentage Test. Any



Qualified Nonelective Contributions to be included in the Actual Deferral
Percentage Test or Actual Contribution Percentage Test must be contributed
within 12 months of the end of the applicable year, even though the
applicable year is different from the Plan Year being tested."

6. Article VIII, Section 1 (A), the first paragraph is deleted and replaced with
the following:

"(A) Nondiscrimination Test

In addition to meeting the Actual Deferral Percentage Test as defined in
Article VI, the Plan must satisfy for each Plan Year a nondiscrimination
test to be referred to as the Actual Contribution Percentage Test (ACP
Test). However, for Plan Years beginning after December 31, 1998, the
Actual Contribution Percentage Test is deemed to have been satisfied with
respect to matching contributions. "

7. Article XI, Section 5 is deleted and replaced with the following:
"Section 5 Investment of Employer Matching Contributions Account

Effective January 1, 2006, all of the Employer Matching Contributions will
be invested in accordance with Sections 1 and 2 of this Article XI. Any
Matching Contributions received for a Participant for which the
Participant has not made an investment election or which is not governed
by any prior section of Article XI shall be invested in accordance with
Section 8 of this Article.

Effective January 1, 2006, a Participant may transfer all or a portion of
the Participant’s Company Matching Contributions Account out of the Belden
CDT Stock Fund to other Investment Funds as of any Valuation Date.
Participants may not transfer any portion of their Accounts into the
Belden CDT Stock Fund. This transfer is executed using procedures similar
to those specified in Section 3 of this Article.

Additional restrictions on the timing of this election apply to officers
of the Employer required to comply with Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended) and regulations issued thereunder.

Prior to January 1, 2006, regardless of the Participant’s election
pursuant to the other sections in this Article, all of the Employer
Matching Contributions Account were invested in the Belden CDT Stock Fund
(effective January 11, 2000 for Participants of Belden Communications and
effective January 1, 2005 for former CDT Retirement Savings Plan
Participants) .

Prior to January 1, 2006, a Participant could transfer all or a portion of
the Participant’s Company Matching Contributions Account into the Belden
CDT Stock Fund or out of the Belden CDT Stock Fund to other Investment
Funds as of any Valuation Date. This transfer is executed using procedures
similar to those specified in Section 3 of this Article.



Prior to January 1, 2004, a Participant may transfer all or a portion of
the Participant’s Company Matching Contributions Account invested in the
Belden CDT Stock Fund to other Investment Funds as of any Valuation Date.
This transfer is executed using procedures similar to those specified in
Section 3 of this Article. Additional restrictions on the timing of this
election apply to officers of the Employer required to comply with Section
16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended) and regulations
issued thereunder.

Prior to March 1, 2002, a Participant may transfer all or a portion of the
Participant’s Company Matching Contributions Account as of any Valuation
Date on or after the Participant reaches age 55. This transfer is executed
using procedures similar to those specified in Section 3 of this Article.
Additional restrictions on the timing of this election apply to officers
of the Employer required to comply with Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended) and regulations issued thereunder."

8. Article XII, Section 2(B) is amended by inserting the following first
paragraph

For new loans effective on or after January 1, 2006, the interest rate
shall be reset annually at the bank prime loan rate provided on
www.Federalreserve.gov established as of the last business day of the
prior calendar year.

9. Article XII, Section 5(B) is deleted and replaced with the following:
"(B) Order of Withdrawal

Effective January 1, 2007, the loan amount is taken from Accounts in the
following order: Elective Deferrals Account, Rollover Account, Employer
After-Tax Contributions Account, from any other Accounts (other than the
Company Matching Contributions Account), lastly from the Company Matching
Contributions Account. Within each Account, the loan amount is taken from
the Investment Funds pro rata."

Prior to January 1, 2007, the loan amount is taken from Accounts in the
following order: Elective Deferrals Account, rollover Account, Employer
After-Tax Contributions Account, from any other Accounts (other than the
Company Matching Contributions Account), lastly from the Company Matching
Contributions Account. Within each Account, the loan amount is taken first
from the Investment Funds pro rata other than the Belden CDT Stock Fund or
the Investment Fund primarily holding Cooper Industries, Inc. stock,
second from the Investment Fund holding primarily Cooper Industries, Inc.
stock, and third from the Belden CDT Stock Fund."

10. Article XIII Section 3(A) (vii) is deleted and replaced with the following:

"(vii) Expenses for the repair of damage to the employee’s principal
residence that would qualify for the casualty deduction under
Section 165 of the Internal Revenue Code (determined without
regard to whether the loss exceeds 10% of adjusted gross
income) .



(vii) Other needs announced by the appropriate governmental
authority in a document of general applicability to constitute
immediate and heavy needs."

11. Article XIII, Section 6 is deleted and replaced with the following:
"Section 4. Direct Rollovers of Withdrawals; Payment in Cash or Shares

Withdrawals are subject to the provisions of Section 6 of Article XIV.
However, effective as of October 1, 1999 withdrawals of Elective Deferrals
under Section 1 of this Article; and effective January 1, 2002, any
withdrawals permitted under the Plan under Section 1 of this Article are
not subject to Section 6 of Article XIV. Withdrawals are also subject to
the provisions of Section 1 of Article XIV."

Effective January 1, 2007 or such later date as when the Belden CDT Stock
Fund is completely eliminated, all distributions shall be paid in cash.

Prior to January 1, 2007, all distributions shall be paid in cash,
including whole shares of stock from the Belden CDT Stock Fund unless the
recipient elects to receive payment in shares of Belden CDT Stock."

12. Article XIV, Section 1(B) is deleted and replaced with the following:
"(B) Distribution in Cash or Shares

Effective January 1, 2007 or such later date as when the Belden CDT Stock
Fund 1s completely eliminated, all distributions shall be paid in cash.

Prior to January 1, 2007, all distributions shall be paid in cash,
including whole shares of Belden CDT Stock unless the recipient elects to
receive payment in shares of Belden CDT Stock."

13. Article XVI, Section 2(B) is deleted and replaced with the following:

"(B) Beginning on or after January 1, 2007, the Company will discontinue,
gradually or completely, the Belden CDT Stock Fund. The Company may retain
a third party as fiduciary or co-fiduciary for this purpose.

Effective January 1, 2006, company matching contributions will be paid in
cash and allocated to the Investment Funds in accordance with the
Participant’s election under Sections 1 and 2 of Article XI.

Until the Belden CDT Stock Fund is discontinued, the Investment Funds
included the Belden CDT Stock Fund. A portion of the Belden CDT Stock Fund
may be invested in short-term fixed income investments and money market
investments. Pursuant to the direction of the Company, the Trustee (or
investment fund manager) is authorized to acquire, hold and dispose of
Belden CDT Stock. As provided for in ERISA Section 404 (a) (2), the
fiduciary duty of diversifying plan investments is not violated by the



establishment and maintenance of this Belden CDT Stock Fund. The Company
may decide that this fund not hold contributions other than Employer
Matching Contributions.

Prior to January 1, 2006, contributions to the Belden CDT Stock Fund may
be paid by contributing (i) newly issued shares of Belden CDT Stock, (ii)
treasury shares of Belden CDT Stock, or (iii) cash with the instruction to
the Trustee to spend such cash to acquire Belden CDT Stock. Contributions
to other Investment Funds must be paid in cash.

Participants who have shares of Belden CDT Stock in their Participant
Accounts shall be named fiduciaries with respect to the voting of such
shares and shall have the following rights and responsibilities.

(1) Prior to each annual or special meeting of the shareholders of
Belden Inc., the Company shall direct the Trustee to furnish
each Participant to whose Account shares of Belden CDT Stock
are allocated a copy of the proxy solicitation material
together with a form requesting confidential voting
instructions with respect to the voting of such shares. The
Company shall also direct the Trustee as to how to handle the
voting of shares for which the Trustee does not receive
instructions. The Company shall instruct the Trustee to vote
shares on which instruction is received as directed by the
Participants and shall vote shares on which no instruction is
received in the same proportion as the shares on which
instruction was received. Upon receipt of such instructions,
the Company hereby directs the Trustee to then vote in person
or by proxy such shares of Belden CDT Stock as so instructed.

(ii) The Company shall direct the Trustee to furnish each
Participant to whose Account shares of Belden CDT Stock are
allocated notice of any tender or exchange offer for or a
request or invitation for tenders or exchanges of Belden CDT
Stock made to the Trustee. The Company also directs that the
Trustee shall request from each such Participant instructions
as to the tendering or exchanging of the shares of Belden CDT
Stock allocated to the Participant’s Account as well as to the
tendering or exchanging of shares for which the Trustee does
not receive instructions. The Company shall instruct the
Trustee to vote shares on which instruction is received as
directed by the Participants and shall vote shares on which no
instruction is received in the same proportion as the shares
on which instruction was received. The Company directs that
the Trustee shall provide Participants with a reasonable
period of time in which they may consider any such tender or
exchange offer for or request or invitation for tenders or
exchanges of Belden CDT Stock made to the Trustee. Within the
time specified by the Trustee, as directed by the Company, the
Trustee shall tender or exchange such shares as to which the
Trustee has received instructions to tender or exchange.

(iii) Instructions received from Participants by the Trustee
regarding the voting, tendering, or exchanging of Belden CDT
Stock shall be held in strictest confidence and shall not be
divulged to any other person, including officers



or employees of the Company, except as otherwise required by
law, regulation, or lawful process."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Belden CDT Inc., by its duly authorized officer, executes
this amendment on the 13th day of March, 2006.

BELDEN CDT INC.
By /s/ CATHY ODOM STAPLES

Cathy Odom Staples
ATTEST:

Its Vice President, Human Resources

/s/ EIVIND J. KOLEMAINEN



EXHIBIT 10.62
INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT, effective as of October 31, 2005, between Belden CDT
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and John Stroup (the
"Indemnitee").

WHEREAS, it is essential to the Company to retain and attract as
directors and officers the most capable persons available;

WHEREAS, Indemnitee is a director or officer of the Company;

WHEREAS, both the Company and Indemnitee recognize the increased
risk of litigation and other claims being asserted against directors and
officers of public companies in today’s environment;

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company require the
Company to indemnify and advance expenses to its directors and officers to the
full extent permitted by law and the Indemnitee has been serving and continues
to serve as a director or officer of the Company in part in reliance on such
Bylaws;

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company and the
Delaware General Corporation Law each provide that the indemnification provided
herein shall not be exclusive;

WHEREAS, in recognition of Indemnitee’s need for substantial
protection against personal liability in order to enhance Indemnitee’s continued
service to the Company in an effective manner, the Company wishes to provide in
this Agreement for the indemnification of and the advancing of expenses to
Indemnitee to the fullest extent (whether partial or complete) permitted by law
and as set forth in this Agreement, and, to the extent insurance is maintained,
for the continued coverage of Indemnitee under the Company’s directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policies;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of Indemnitee
continuing to serve the Company directly or, at its request, another enterprise,
and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions:

(a) Change in Control: shall be deemed to have occurred if (i) any
"person" (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), other than a trustee
or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan
of the Company or a corporation owned directly or indirectly by the
stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as
their ownership of stock of the Company, is or becomes the
"beneficial owner" (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under said Act),
directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company



representing 20% or more of the total voting power represented by
the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, or (ii) during any
period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of
such period constitute the Board of Directors of the Company and any
new director whose election by the Board of Directors or nomination
for election by the Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote of
at least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors then still in office who
either were directors at the beginning of the period or whose
election or nomination for election was previously so approved,
cease for any reason to constitute a majority thereof, or (iii) the
stockholders of the Company approve a merger or consolidation of the
Company with any other corporation, other than a merger or
consolidation which would result in the Voting Securities of the
Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to
represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted
into Voting Securities of the surviving entity) at least 80% of the
total voting power represented by the Voting Securities of the
Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such
merger or consolidation, or the stockholders of the Company approve
a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for
the sale or disposition by the Company of (in one transaction or a
series of transactions) all or substantially all the Company’s
assets.

Claim: any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceeding, or any inquiry or investigation, whether instituted by
the Company or any other party, that Indemnitee in good faith
believes might lead to the institution of any such action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative
or other.

Expenses: include attorneys’ fees and all other costs, expenses and
obligations paid or incurred in connection with investigating,
defending, being a witness in or participating in (including on
appeal), or preparing to defend, be a witness in or participate in,
any Claim relating to any Indemnifiable Event.

Indemnifiable Event: any event or occurrence related to the fact
that Indemnitee is or was a director, officer, employee, agent or
fiduciary of the Company, or Belden Inc., or is or was serving at
the request of the Company or Belden Inc. as a director, officer,
employee, trustee, agent or fiduciary of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, employee benefit plan, trust or other
enterprise, or by reason of anything done or not done by Indemnitee
in any such capacity.

Independent Legal Counsel: an attorney or firm of attorneys,
selected in accordance with the provisions of Section 3, who shall
not have otherwise performed services for the Company or Indemnitee
within the last five years (other than with respect to matters
concerning the rights of



Indemnitee under this Agreement, or of other indemnitees under
similar indemnity agreements) .

Potential Change in Control: shall be deemed to have occurred if (i)
the Company enters into an agreement, the consummation of which
would result in the occurrence of a Change in Control; (ii) any
person (including the Company) publicly announces an intention to
take or to consider taking actions which if consummated would
constitute a Change in Control; (iii) any person, other than a
trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee
benefit plan of the Company or a corporation owned, directly or
indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the
same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company, who is
or becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of
securities of the Company representing 9.5% or more of the combined
voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities,
increases his beneficial ownership of such securities by five
percentage points (5%) or more over the percentage so owned by such
person; or (iv) the Board adopts a resolution to the effect that,
for purposes of this Agreement, a Potential Change in Control has
occurred.

Reviewing Party: any appropriate person or body consisting of a
member or members of the Company’s Board of Directors or any other
person or body appointed by the Board who is not a party to the
particular Claim for which Indemnitee is seeking indemnification, or
Independent Legal Counsel.

Voting Securities: any securities of the Company which vote
generally in the election of directors.

Indemnification Arrangement.

In the event Indemnitee was, 1s or becomes a party to or witness or
other participant in, or is threatened to be made a party to or
witness or other participant in, a Claim by reason of (or arising in
part out of) an Indemnifiable Event, the Company shall indemnify
Indemnitee to the fullest extent permitted by law as soon as
practicable but in any event no later than thirty days after written
demand is presented to the Company, against any and all Expenses,
judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement
(including all interest, assessments and other charges paid or
pavable in connection with or in respect of such Expenses,
judgments, fines, penalties or amounts paid in settlement) arising
from or relating to such Claim. If so requested by Indemnitee, the
Company shall advance (within two business days of such request) any
and all Expenses to Indemnitee (an "Expense Advance").

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) the obligations of the Company
under Section 2(a) shall be subject to the condition that the
Reviewing Party



shall not have determined (in a written opinion, in any case in
which the Independent Legal Counsel referred to in Section 3 hereof
is involved) that Indemnitee would not be permitted to be
indemnified under applicable law, and (ii) the obligation of the
Company to make an Expense Advance pursuant to Section 2(a) shall be
subject to the condition that, if, when and to the extent that the
Reviewing Party determines that Indemnitee would not be permitted to
be so indemnified under applicable law, the Company shall be
entitled to be reimbursed by Indemnitee (who hereby agrees to
reimburse the Company) for all such amounts theretofore paid;
provided, however, that if Indemnitee has commenced or thereafter
commences legal proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction to
secure a determination that Indemnitee should be indemnified under
applicable law, any determination made by the Reviewing Party that
Indemnitee would not be permitted to be indemnified under applicable
law shall not be binding and Indemnitee shall not be required to
reimburse the Company for any Expense Advance until a final judicial
determination is made with respect thereto (as to which all rights
of appeal therefrom have been exhausted or lapsed). If there has not
been a Change in Control, the Reviewing Party shall be selected by
the Board of Directors, and if there has been such a Change in
Control (other than a Change in Control which has been approved by a
majority of the Company’s Board of Directors who were directors
immediately prior to such Change in Control), the Reviewing Party
shall be the Independent Legal Counsel referred to in Section 3
hereof. If there has been no determination by the Reviewing Party or
if the Reviewing Party determines that Indemnitee substantively
would not be permitted to be indemnified in whole or in part under
applicable law, Indemnitee shall have the right to commence
litigation in any court in the State of Delaware having subject
matter jurisdiction thereof and in which venue is proper seeking an
initial determination by the court or challenging any such
determination by the Reviewing Party or any aspect thereof,
including the legal or factual bases therefor, and the Company
hereby consents to service of process and to appear in any such
proceeding. Any determination by the Reviewing Party otherwise shall
be conclusive and binding on the Company and Indemnitee.

Change in Control. The Company agrees that if there is a Change in Control
of the Company (other than a Change in Control which has been approved by
a majority of the Company’s Board of Directors who were directors
immediately prior to such Change in Control) then with respect to all
matters thereafter arising concerning the rights of Indemnitee to
indemnity payments and Expense Advances under this Agreement or any other
agreement or Company Bylaw now or hereafter in effect relating to Claims
for Indemnifiable Events, the Company shall seek legal advice only from
Independent Legal Counsel selected by Indemnitee and approved by the
Company (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld). Such counsel,
among other things, shall render its written opinion to the Company and
Indemnitee as to whether and to what extent the Indemnitee would be
permitted to be indemnified under applicable law. The

4



Company agrees to pay the reasonable fees of the Independent Legal Counsel
referred to above and to indemnify fully such counsel against any and all
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), claims, liabilities and damages
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or its engagement pursuant
hereto.

Establishment of Trust. In the event of a Potential Change in Control, the
Company shall, upon written request by Indemnitee, create a trust for the
benefit of Indemnitee and from time to time upon written request of
Indemnitee shall fund such trust in an amount sufficient to satisfy any
and all Expenses reasonably anticipated at the time of each such request
to be incurred in connection with investigating, preparing for and
defending any Claim relating to an Indemnifiable Event, and any and all
judgments, fines, penalties and settlement amounts of any and all Claims
relating to an Indemnifiable Event from time to time actually paid or
claimed, reasonably anticipated or proposed to be paid. The amount or
amounts to be deposited in the trust pursuant to the foregoing funding
obligation shall be determined by the Reviewing Party, in any case in
which the Independent Legal Counsel referred to above is involved. The
terms of the trust shall provide that (i) the trust shall not be revoked
or the principal thereof invaded, without the written consent of the
Indemnitee, (11) the trustee shall advance, within two business days of a
request by the Indemnitee, any and all Expenses to the Indemnitee (and the
Indemnitee hereby agrees to reimburse the trust under the circumstances
under which the Indemnitee would be required to reimburse the Company

under Section 2 (b) of this Agreement), (iii) the trust shall continue to
be funded by the Company in accordance with the funding obligation set
forth above, (iv) the trustee shall promptly pay to Indemnitee all amounts

for which Indemnitee shall be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this
Agreement or otherwise, and (v) all unexpended funds in such trust shall
revert to the Company upon a final determination by the Reviewing Party or
a court of competent jurisdiction, as the case may be, that Indemnitee has
been fully indemnified under the terms of this Agreement. The trustee
shall be chosen by Indemnitee. Nothing in this Section 4 shall relieve the
Company of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Indemnification for Additional Expenses. The Company shall indemnify
Indemnitee against any and all expenses (including attorneys’ fees) and,
if requested by Indemnitee, shall (within two business days of such
request) advance such expenses to Indemnitee, which are incurred by
Indemnitee in connection with any action brought by Indemnitee for (i)
indemnification or advance payment of Expenses by the Company under this
Agreement or any other agreement or Company Bylaw now or hereafter in
effect relating to Claims for Indemnifiable Events and/or (ii) recovery
under any directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policies maintained
by the Company, regardless of whether Indemnitee ultimately is determined
to be entitled to such indemnification, advance expense payment or
insurance recovery, as the case may be.

Partial Indemnity, Etc. If Indemnitee is entitled under any provision of
this Agreement to indemnification by the Company for some or a portion of
the



10.

11.

Expenses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement
arising from or relating to a Claim but not, however, for all of the total
amount thereof, the Company shall nevertheless indemnify Indemnitee for
the portion thereof to which Indemnitee is entitled. Moreover,
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent that
Indemnitee has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of
any or all Claims relating in whole or in part to an Indemnifiable Event
or in defense of any issue or matter therein, including dismissal without
prejudice, Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all Expenses incurred
in connection therewith.

Burden of Proof. In connection with any determination by the Reviewing
Party or otherwise as to whether Indemnitee is entitled to be indemnified
hereunder the burden of proof shall be on the Company to establish that
Indemnitee is not so entitled.

No Presumptions. For purposes of this Agreement, the termination of any
claim, action, sult or proceeding, by judgment, order, settlement (whether
with or without court approval) or conviction, or upon a plea of nolo
contendere, or its equivalent, shall not create a presumption that
Indemnitee did not meet any particular standard of conduct or have any
particular belief or that a court has determined that indemnification is
not permitted by applicable law. In addition, neither the failure of the
Reviewing Party to have made a determination as to whether Indemnitee has
met any particular standard of conduct or had any particular belief, nor
an actual determination by the Reviewing Party that Indemnitee has not met
such standard of conduct or did not have such belief, prior to the
commencement of legal proceedings by Indemnitee to secure a judicial
determination that Indemnitee should be indemnified under applicable law
shall be a defense to Indemnitee’s claim or create a presumption that
Indemnitee has not met any particular standard of conduct or did not have
any particular belief.

Nonexclusivity, Etc. The rights of the Indemnitee hereunder shall be in
addition to any other rights Indemnitee may have under the Company’s
Amended and Restated Bylaws or the Delaware General Corporation Law or
otherwise. To the extent that a change in the Delaware General Corporation
Law (whether by statute or judicial decision) permits greater
indemnification by agreement than would be afforded currently under the
Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws and this Agreement, it 1s the intent
of the parties hereto that Indemnitee shall enjoy by this Agreement the
greater benefits so afforded by such change.

Liability Insurance. To the extent the Company maintains an insurance
policy or policies providing directors’ and officers’ liability insurance,
Indemnitee shall be covered by such policy or policies, in accordance with
its or their terms, to the maximum extent of the coverage available for
any Company director or officer.

Period of Limitations. No legal action shall be brought and no cause of
action shall be asserted by or in the right of the Company against
Indemnitee, Indemnitee’s spouse, heirs, executors or personal or legal
representatives after the



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

expiration of two years from the date of accrual of such cause of action,
and any claim or cause of action of the Company shall be extinguished and
deemed released unless asserted by the timely filing of a legal action
within such two-year period; provided, however, that if any shorter period
of limitations is otherwise applicable to any such cause of action such
shorter period shall govern.

Amendments, Etc. No supplement, modification or amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by both of the
parties hereto. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall
be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other provisions hereof
(whether or not similar) nor shall such wailver constitute a continuing
waiver.

Subrogation. In the event of payment under this Agreement, the Company
shall be subrogated to the extent of such payment to all of the rights of
recovery of Indemnitee, who shall execute all papers required and shall do
everything that may be necessary to secure such rights, including the
execution of such documents necessary to enable the Company effectively to
bring suit to enforce such rights.

No Duplication of Payments. The Company shall not be liable under this
Agreement to make any payment in connection with any Claim made against
Indemnitee to the extent Indemnitee has otherwise actually received
payment (under any insurance policy, Bylaw or otherwise) of the amounts
otherwise indemnifiable hereunder.

Binding Effect, Etc. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of and be enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective
successors, assigns, including any direct or indirect successor by
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise to all or substantially all
of the business and/or assets of the Company, spouses, heirs, executors
and personal and legal representatives. This Agreement shall continue in
effect regardless of whether Indemnitee continues to serve as an officer
or director of the Company or of any other enterprise at the Company’s
request.

Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable in the
event that any of the provisions hereof (including any provision within a
single section, paragraph or sentence) are held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable in any
respect, and the validity and enforceability of any such provision in
every other respect and of the remaining provisions hereof shall not be in
any way impaired and shall remain enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware applicable
to contracts made and to be performed in such state without giving effect
to the principles of conflicts of laws.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement
as of the 31st day of October, 2005.

By /s/ GLENN KALNASY

Glenn Kalnasy
Title: On Behalf of The Board of Directors
of Belden CDT Inc.

/s/ JOHN STROUP

John Stroup



[BELDEN CDT LOGO]
EXHIBIT 14.1 REVISION DATE: JUNE 30, 2005
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ETHICAL CONDUCT POLICY

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. It is Belden CDT’'s policy to comply with all applicable
laws and government rules and regulations of every nation, state or municipality
in which Belden CDT and its affiliates (collectively, the "Company") conducts
business. Where individual employees have been involved in wrongdoing, prompt
and appropriate disciplinary action will be taken.

OUTSIDE BUSINESS INTEREST AND EMPLOYMENT. It is the policy of the Company to
employ only employees who do not engage in outside jobs or other business
activities involving a firm which is competing with, selling to, or buying from
the Company. If employee family members (rather than the employee) are engaged
in such jobs or activities, the potential for conflict of interest exists and
will be judged based on the facts and circumstances. Further, employees may be
hired or retained when engaged in other outside jobs or business activity only
when such activities do not interfere in any way with the job being performed
for the Company. Belden CDT’s policy is to pay fair and competitive compensation
for full time work. The normal demands of full time employment are not
compatible with "moonlighting" and supplemental or secondary employment is
discouraged. In no event may employees have outside business interests that are
in any way detrimental to the best interests of the Company.

AFFILIATION WITH VENDOR AND CUSTOMER COMPANY. The Company buys many goods and
services from others. In doing this, it is the policy of the Company to award
business on the basis of merit, without favoritism, and wherever practicable on
a competitive basis. This Policy requires that an employee have no relationships
or engage in any activities that might impair the employee’s independence of
judgment. Therefore, officers, members of management and any other employee who
buys or sells goods or services, or who has responsibility in connection with
buying or selling, for or on behalf of the Company, together with members of any
of their respective families, are prohibited from having any substantial
economic interest in private or publicly held business concerns which transact
business with the Company or are in competition with it. An interest is
substantial if it represents a substantial proportion of such business
enterprise. An employee must not have any material interest in any business in
competition with the Company, or which deprives the Company of any business
opportunities. This Policy shall not be construed to apply to stock interest in
any corporation whose securities are regularly traded on a recognized stock
exchange, even though the corporation may, in some way, be competitive with the
Company, unless such investments are of such size as to have influence on the
employee’s judgment on Company matters or to amount to management participation
in the corporation.

COMPANY ASSETS AND OPPORTUNITIES. Company assets must be used for legitimate
business purposes. No one shall usurp a Company opportunity for personal gain.

E-MAIL AND VOICE MATL.

Electronic mail (e-mail) and voice mail systems are provided exclusively to
assist employees to conduct Company business, and



are not for personal use (except on an infrequent and limited basis in
conformity with this Policy and other applicable policies).

Messages sent through e-mail and the contents of employee computers as well as
messages contained on voice mail are the sole property of the Company, and are
considered business records of the Company. Accordingly, they may be disclosed
in connection with administrative, judicial, or other proceedings.

Any communications by employees via e-mail or voice mail that may constitute
verbal abuse, slander, or defamation or may be considered offensive, harassing,
vulgar, obscene, or threatening are prohibited. The communi-cation,
dissemination, or printing of any copyrighted materials in violation of
copyright laws is prohibited and the downloading, distribution, or sending of
pornographic or obscene materials i1s also prohibited.

By using the Company’s e-mail and voice mail, an employee knowingly and
voluntarily consents to his or her usage of these systems being monitored and
acknowledges the Company’s right to conduct such monitoring. Employees should
not expect that e-mail or voice mail is confidential or private and, therefore,
an employee should have no expectation of privacy whatsoever related to his or
her usage of these systems. Even when a message is erased, it may still be
possible to recreate the message and, therefore, privacy of messages cannot be
ensured to anyone.

GIFTS, FAVORS, ENTERTAINMENT AND PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY EMPLOYEES. Purchases of
supplies, materials and services must be accomplished in a manner that preserves
the integrity of a procurement process based on quality, performance and cost.
No employee, officer, or member of management of the Company, or members of his
or her family shall accept any gifts of more than token value, unusual
hospitality, lavish entertainment or other favors from third persons, which go
beyond common courtesies usually associated with accepted business practice and
thereby place him or her under obligation to a vendor, supplier, banker or other
person soliciting or doing business with the Company.

GIFTS, FAVORS, ENTERTAINMENT AND PAYMENTS BY THE COMPANY. Sales of Belden CDT's
products and services must be free from any inference or perception that
favorable treatment was sought, received or given due to the furnishing of
gifts, favors, entertainment or other gratuities.

Gifts, favors and entertainment may be given to others at Company expense only
if they meet all of the following criteria:

- they are consistent with accepted business practice;

- they are of sufficiently limited value, and in a form that will not be
construed as a bribe or pay-off;

- they are not in contravention of applicable law and generally accepted
ethical standards; and

- public disclosure of the facts, including the identity of the recipient,
will not result in embarrassment to the corporate office of Belden CDT or
to the headquarters office of the recipient.

INSIDER TRADING AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Confidential information about the
Company and its operations is the property of Belden CDT and may be used or
disclosed only in the performance of the employee’s duties. It is the
responsibility of each supervisor to control the disclosure and use of
confidential information by employees under his or her direction. Employees
whose responsibilities require ongoing access to



confidential information shall execute a secrecy agreement.

Employees shall not, without proper authority, give or release to anyone not
employed by the Company, or to another employee who has no need for the
information, data or information of a confidential nature concerning the
Company .

Employees shall not make use of material, non-public information regarding
Belden CDT for their personal benefit through buying or selling Belden CDT stock
or the stock of an acquisition candidate, or otherwise. In addition, employees
shall not disclose any material, non-public information to any other person who
could use such information for his or her personal benefit or when buying or
selling Belden CDT stock. Material information includes significant new
products, sales and earnings figures, major contracts, plans for stock splits or
dividend increases, and acquisitions and mergers. It also includes important
confidential information about a company with which Belden CDT does business. As
needed, advice on such matters should be sought from the Company’s General
Counsel.

BRIBES AND OTHER IMPROPER PAYMENTS. No bribe, kickback or other improper payment
shall be made by or on behalf of Belden CDT in connection with any of its
businesses. Local practices or customs may be followed with regard to tips or
gratuities for services rendered so long as the amount and timing of the
gratuity i1s such that it could not reasonably be construed as a bribe. No
agents’ fees or commissions shall be paid if by reason of the excessive amount
thereof or requested devious method of payment it appears reasonably likely that
a bribe will be paid in connection with the transaction.

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") under
U.S. law prohibits the following:

Belden CDT and its officers, directors, employees or agents from making or
authorizing payments of money or anything of value, directly or indirectly, to
foreign officials, political parties or candidates for foreign political office
to gain or retain business. All books, records and accounts, U.S. and non-U.S.,
must accurately and fairly reflect the transactions of Belden CDT.

Employees should be sensitive to the following "red flags" when dealing with the
FCPA, and should consult with the Company’s General Counsel if they arise:

- Any suggestion that bribes or other violations of law might occur during
the term of the proposed agreement;

- Dealing with a close relative or business associate of a senior government
official;

- Any request for an unusually high commission;
- Dealing with a country notorious for improper or corrupt practices; and
- A request for payment in cash or unusual payments to questionable parties.

Belden CDT may be required to terminate any further dealings with a foreign
sales agent to avoid a violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

ACCOUNTING PRACTICES.

Employees with responsibility for making public disclosures in periodic reports
or other filings or in public communications shall assure that such disclosures
are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable. Any person with a concern
or complaint regarding



accounting, internal accounting controls, or audit matters is encouraged to
express such concerns or complaints (on an anonymous basis, i1f desired) to the
Chair of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors by calling 866-BWC-8668
(866-292-8668). (See Belden CDT's Website at www.BeldenCDT.com under "Contact
the Belden Board" for international AT&T access codes if dialing from outside
the U.S.) All such communications will be forwarded promptly and directly to the
Chair of the Audit Committee and will be kept in strict confidence.

Belden CDT must maintain a system of internal accounting controls to provide
adequate corporate supervision over the accounting and reporting activities at
all levels.

No undisclosed or unrecorded fund or asset shall be established for any purpose.
No withdrawal shall be made from any disbursement account except by check or
other acceptable means of transfer customarily used by major banks, and then
only by authorized personnel, and no check shall be made payable to "cash" or
other unidentifiable payee.

No false or artificial entries shall be made in the books and records of Belden
CDT or any subsidiary for any reason and no employee shall engage in any
arrangement that results in such entry.

No payment shall be approved or made with the intention or understanding that
any part of such payment is to be used for a purpose other than that disclosed
by the documents supporting the payment.

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS. Employees shall not use Company funds or assets for
contributions of any kind to any political party or committee in the United
States or to any candidate for, or holder of, any office of any
government--national, state or local--in the U.S. In countries other than the
U.S., the policy shall be determined in accordance with local law and practice
as well as U.S. law. But under no circumstances shall any such contribution be
made unless:

- a proposal to make such a political contribution has been submitted to the
Chief Executive Officer and Company approval for the contribution has been
received; and

- such contribution is recorded in the accounting records as such.

It is the policy of the Company to encourage free and open elections in those
countries where such is the practice. The Company recognizes the needs of
candidates for public office to have the financial and personal support of
members of the electorate. To this end, the Company encourages its employees to
contribute their personal funds and their personal time to the support of
candidates of their choice. Good judgment should be exercised and we do not
encourage involvement in political activities to the extent that an individual’s
work effort is impaired.

INDIVIDUAL CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS. It is contrary to Company policy to
pressure employees into making individual contri-butions to charitable fund
drives such as the United Way in the U.S.

We believe that employees should be encouraged to assume the obligations of
responsible citizenship and support recognized charities, but under no
circumstances should an employee ever directly or indirectly be led to believe
that his or her position in the Company, or his or her chance of future
advancement, is conditioned in any way on the employee’s response to such
activities.



ANTITRUST/COMPETITION LAWS. Belden CDT’'s policy is to compete vigorously, fairly
and in compliance with laws that prohibit unreasonable restraints of trade or
monopolies (these are known as "antitrust" laws). These laws are designed to
create a level playing field in the marketplace. The outline below is intended
to help employees recognize when an antitrust concern may arise. When in doubt,
an employee should consult with the Company’s General Counsel.

U.S. law prohibits certain conduct, including:

- agreements between competitors to fix prices;

- agreements between competitors to divide markets or customers; and
- agreements between competitors to regulate or limit production.

To reduce the risk of violating antitrust laws dealing with agreements between
competitors, employees should not talk to competitors about Belden CDT's
business or the competitor’s business with respect to:

- past, present, or future prices;

- pricing policies or strategies;

- requests for quotations or bids;

- discounts and promotions; and

- whether or how to deal with a customer, or a group of customers.

At trade association meetings or sales shows, an employee should withdraw from
any meeting with competitors where the above topics are discussed and notify the
Company’s legal counsel of the incident. The Company has a special antitrust
guide, A Guide to Antitrust Law Compliance, that addresses in detail U.S.
antitrust and European Community competition laws. The Guide is available by
contacting the Company’s General Counsel.

EXPORTS. The United States, and to a more limited extent other countries,
regulate and in some instances restrict the export of products, materials and
technology to certain countries or certain end-users. U.S. law also requires
U.S. firms and certain of their foreign affiliates to refuse to participate in
foreign boycotts that the U.S. government does not sanction, such as the Arab
League boycott of Israel. The Company has an "Export and Antiboycott Control
Policy and Procedures" and has designated export compliance coordinators at its
facilities to ensure compliance by the Company and its affiliates with
applicable export and antiboycott laws. Employees should consult with the
General Counsel if they have questions regarding the scope or application of
these laws to their operations.

RESPECTING THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF OTHERS. Belden CDT’'s policy is to
respect the patents, copyrights, licenses and trade secrets of others, including
competitors and suppliers. Employees should not make unauthorized copies of
copyrighted materials. Special care should be taken in acquiring software from
others. As intellectual property, software is protected by copyright, and may
also be protected by patent, trade secret or as confidential information. Before
installing any software on or copying any software from the Company’s computer
systems, you should check with the person at your Belden CDT location who
oversees information technology. Employees should review the Company’s
"Copyright Policy" for more information regarding such matters.

HARASSMENT. Belden CDT provides a workplace free from unlawful and improper
"harassment" of employees. Harassment includes sexual and racial harassment.
Each employee has the responsibility to cooperate



in maintaining a workplace free from unlawful and improper harassment. The
Company considers harassment a serious act of misconduct, and violators will be
subject to disciplinary action, including discharge. Each employee should
consult with Human Resources for a copy of the Company’s "Harassment Policy
Bulletin", which provides more information regarding this matter.

EFFECT OF DIRECTORSHIPS ON TRANSACTIONS. The directors of Belden CDT are persons
of diversified business interests, and are connected with other corporations and
firms with which, from time to time, the Company has business dealings. No
contract or other transaction between Belden CDT and any other corporation or
firm shall be affected by the fact that any director of the Company is
interested in, or is a director or officer of such other corporation or firm. No
director of Belden CDT shall vote on any transaction in which he, or a company
or firm with which he has a connection, shall be interested.

No employee of Belden CDT shall serve as the director of any other firm which is
organized for profit without the written approval of Belden CDT’'s Chief
Executive Officer.

DISCLOSURES. It is the responsibility of the concerned director or employee to
report, without undue delay, to the General Counsel or division general manager,
as applicable, all participation in any outside business relationship or other
activity which might involve an actual or potential conflict of interest, and
all professional or consultant ventures for compensation, including
directorships, so that action may be taken to determine whether a problem exists
and, 1f so, to eliminate it. The division general manager shall confer with the
General Counsel, as necessary, concerning interpretation and application of this
Policy to particular situations.

This requirement in no way limits or restricts the prerogative of the Chairman
of Belden CDT to request any employee to submit a statement of disclosure at any
time or as frequently as the Chairman may deem necessary. In the event that
changing circumstances alter the statements or representations made in the
original statement of disclosure, it is the responsibility of the employee to
submit such additional statements as will keep and maintain all information
current.

It is difficult to describe all of the circumstances and conditions that border
on situations that might be considered a conflict of interest. The Company
recognizes that there can be borderline situations, and these situations will be
reasonably considered with full recognition of the attendant circumstances.
Accordingly, the Company encourages employees to talk to their supervisors or
managers when in doubt about the best course of action in a particular
situation. Where a definite possibility of a conflict of interest is determined,
the employee will be given a reasonable time to correct the conflict.

In implementing this Policy, it is vital that management be made aware of any
violation so that corrective action can be taken promptly. Belden CDT calls on
each employee to report any violation or apparent violation of this Policy. The
Company strongly encourages employees to work with their supervisors in making
such reports. In addition, employees may report violations by calling or
reporting in writing to:

Kevin L. Bloomfield
General Counsel
Belden CDT Inc.



7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 800
St. Louis, MO 63105

Any employee who, in good faith, reports what he or she believes to be a
violation of this Policy will not be subject to any disciplinary action or
retaliation on account of making such a report. To the fullest extent possible,
the identity of an employee making a report will be kept confidential. If an
employee feels that he or she is being treated unfairly because of reporting a
violation, this should immediately be brought to the attention of the General
Counsel. The General Counsel to the extent possible will investigate anonymous
reports.

COMPLIANCE AND DISCIPLINE. Violations of this Policy will result in disciplinary
action that may include termination, referral for criminal prosecution, and
reimbursement to Belden CDT for any losses or damages resulting from the
violation. As with all matters involving investigations of violations and
discipline, principles of fairness and dignity will be applied. Any employee
charged with a violation of this Policy will be afforded an opportunity to
explain his or her actions before disciplinary action is taken.

Disciplinary action will be taken:

- against employees who authorize or participate directly in actions which
are a violation of this Policy;

- against any employee who may have deliberately failed to report a
violation or deliberately withheld relevant and material information
concerning a violation of this Policy;

- against the violator'’s managerial superiors, to the extent that the
circumstances of the violation reflect inadequate supervision or a lack of
diligence; or

- against any supervisor who retaliates, directly or indirectly, or
encourages others to do so, against an employee who reports a suspected
violation of this Policy.

Only the Board of Directors of Belden CDT may make any waiver of this Policy for
Belden CDT’'s executive officers or directors.



EXHIBIT 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF BELDEN CDT INC.

<TABLE>

<S>

190 Partnership L.P.

Anglo-American Cables Ltd.

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden

Belden-

Belden

(Canada) Finco Limited Partnership
CDT (Canada) Inc.

(UK) Finco Limited Partnership
Australia Pty Ltd.

Brasil Comercial LTDA
Communications Holding, Inc.
Deutschland GmbH

Electronics Argentina S.A.
Electronics GmbH

Electronics S.a.r.1l.

Electronics, S.A. de C.V.

Europe B.V.

Europe B.V. & Belden Wire & Cable B.V. Finance GbR
Foreign Sales Corporation
Holdings, Inc.

Inc.

Insurance Company

International Holdings B.V.

CDT European Shared Services B.V.
CDT International, Inc.
Technologies, Inc.

UK Limited

Wire & Cable B.V.

Wire & Cable Company

Wire & Cable Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
Dorfler GmbH

- Duna Kabel Kft

</TABLE>

<C>

(Illinois Limited Partnership)

(Incorporated

in the United Kingdom)

(Canadian Limited Partnership)

(Incorporated

in Canada)

(United Kingdom Limited Partnership)

(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(German Civil
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated

(Incorporated

in Australia)

in Brazil)

in Delaware)

in Germany)

in Argentina)

in Germany)

in France)

in Mexico)

in The Netherlands)
Code Partnership)
in Barbados)

in Delaware)

in Delaware)

in Vermont)

in The Netherlands)
in The Netherlands)
in Delaware)

in Delaware)

in the United Kingdom)
in The Netherlands)
in Delaware)

in Hong Kong)

in Austria)

in Hungary)



<TABLE>

<S>

Belden-EIW GmbH & Co. KG
Boselan Europe Ltd.

Belden CDT Networking, Inc.

CDT (CZ), S.R.O.

CDT Asia-Pacific PTE Ltd.

Cable Design Technologies Deutschland GmbH

CDT International Holdings Inc.
Belden CDT Orebro AB
CDT/Nordic Holding AB

CDTCO Ltd.

Cekan/CDT A/S

Dearborn/CDT, Inc.
HEW-Kabel/CDT Skandinaviska AB
HEW-Kabel/CDT GmbH & Co. KG

HEW-Kabel /CDT Verwaltungs GmbH

ITC/CDT Industria Tecnica Cavi S.R.L.

Kabelovna Decin-Podmokly A.S.
CDT Kabeltechnik Berlin GmbH
Nordx/CDT Asia Limited

Nordx/CDT Australia Pty. Limited
Nordx/CDT do Brazil Ltda.
Nordx/CDT IP Corp.

Nordx/CDT Limited

Nordx/CDT Corp.

Noslo Limited

Raydex/CDT Limited

Redhawk/CDT, Inc.

The Tennecast Company
Thermax/CDT, Inc.

Wire Group International Limited

X-Mark/CDT Inc.
</TABLE>

<C>

(German Limited Partnership)

(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated
(Incorporated

(Incorporated

the United Kingdom)

in
in
in
in

in

Washington)
Czech Republic)
Singapore)
Germany)
Delaware)
Sweden)

Sweden)
Bermuda)
Denmark)
Delaware)
Sweden)
Germany)
Germany)

Italy)

Czech Republic)
Germany)

Hong Kong)
Australia)
Brazil)

Delaware)

the United Kingdom)

Delaware)

the United Kingdom)

the United Kingdom)

Delaware)
Ohio)

Delaware)

the United Kingdom)

Pennsylvania)



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration
Statements:

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-110944) pertaining to the
registration of $110,000,000 of the convertible subordinated debentures of
Belden CDT Inc. (formerly Cable Design Technologies Corporation).

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-73272) pertaining to the Cable
Design Technologies Corporation Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan of
Belden CDT Inc. (formerly Cable Design Technologies Corporation).

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-2450) pertaining to the Cable
Design Technologies Corporation Supplemental Long-Term Performance
Incentive Plan of Belden CDT Inc. (formerly Cable Design Technologies
Corporation) .

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-80229) pertaining to the Cable
Design Technologies Corporation 1999 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
of Belden CDT Inc. (formerly Cable Design Technologies Corporation).

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-73790) pertaining to the Cable
Design Technologies Corporation 2001 Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan
of Belden CDT Inc. (formerly Cable Design Technologies Corporation).

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-83154, No. 333-74923, No.
333-51088) pertaining to the Belden Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-107241) pertaining to the Belden
Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-111297) pertaining to the Belden
CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan.

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-117906) of Belden CDT Inc.
pertaining to the foregoing three plans (the Belden Inc. Long-Term
Incentive Plan, the Belden Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan, and the
Belden CDT Inc. Retirement Savings Plan).

of our report dated March 8, 2006, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements and schedule of Belden CDT Inc. and to our report dated March 8,
2006, with respect to



Belden CDT Inc. management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of Belden CDT Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form
10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2005.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 13, 2006



EXHIBIT 24.1

POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Lorne D. Bain

Lorne D. Bain



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Lance C. Balk

Lance C. Balk



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Christopher I. Byrnes

Christopher I. Byrnes



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Bryan C. Cressey

Bryan C. Cressey



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Michael F.O. Harris

Michael F.O. Harris



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Glenn Kalnasy

Glenn Kalnasy



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ John M. Monter

John M. Monter



POWERS OF ATTORNEY FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF BELDEN CDT INC.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, a director of BELDEN
CDT INC. (the "Company"), does constitute and appoint JOHN S. STROUP, with full
power and substitution, his true and lawful attorney and agent, to do any and
all acts and things and to execute any and all instruments which such attorney
and agent may deem necessary or advisable to enable the Company to comply with
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof,
in connection with the execution and filing of the Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
Belden CDT Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the "Annual
Report"), including specifically the power and authority to sign for and on
behalf of the undersigned the name of the undersigned as director of the Company
to the Annual Report or to any amendments thereto filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to any instrument or document filed as part of, as an
exhibit to, or in connection with such Annual Report or amendments, and the
undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his own act and deed all that such
attorney and agent shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has subscribed these presents, this
23rd day of February 2006.

/s/ Bernard G. Rethore

Bernard G. Rethore



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, John S. Stroup, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Belden CDT Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, 1is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management
or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 16, 2006

/s/ JOHN S. STROUP

John S. Stroup
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Stephen H. Johnson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Belden CDT Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, 1is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management
or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 16, 2006

/s/ STEPHEN H. JOHNSON

Stephen H. Johnson
Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Belden CDT Inc. (the "Company") on Form
10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, John S. Stroup,

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ JOHN S. STROUP

John S. Stroup

President and Chief Executive Officer
March 16, 2006



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Belden CDT Inc. (the "Company") on Form
10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Stephen H. Johnson,

Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ STEPHEN H. JOHNSON

Stephen H. Johnson

Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer
March 16, 2006
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John S. Stroup
President and Chief Executive Officer

Lorne D. Bain
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business serving the oilfield services industry.

Lance Balk
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Former Chief Executive Officer and President of Elan
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Managing Director of The Northern Group, Inc.

John M. Monter
Vice Chairman, Brand Holdings, LLC, and former
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Brand
Services, Inc., a supplier of scaffolding and specialty
industrial services.
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John S. Stroup (Age 39)
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Kevin L. Bloomfield (Age 54)
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General Counsel
Robert Canny (Age 49)
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Stephen H. Johnson (Age 56)
Interim Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Naresh Kumra (Age 35)
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Belden CDT Inc.

7701 Forsyth Boulevard
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St. Louis, Missouri 63105
(314) 854-8000
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7701 Forsyth Boulevard
Suite 800

St. Louis, Missouri 63105
(314) 854-8054

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of Belden CDT Inc. will be
held on May 24, 2006, at 11:00 a.m. local time, at the St. Louis
Club, 7701 Forsyth Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri 63105
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Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
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Market Information

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol BDC and has been since July 16,
2004. At March 1, 2006, Belden CDT had 805 stockholders
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Manufacturers of high-speed electronic cables

and products for specialty electronics,
HI”E” ”” data networking and connectivity

Belden CDT Inc.

7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 800
St. Louis, MO 63105

Phone: 314-854-8000

Fax: 314-854-8001

E-mail: info@beldencdt.com
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